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Corporate Profile
o v R

Established in Hong Kong, one of the world's most vibrant global metropolises, Guotai
Junan International Holdings Limited (“Guotai Junan International” or “the Company”
or "the Group” or “We") serves as a bridge to connect enterprises and investors in
China and the world. We provide channels for Chinese investors to access international
capital markets while at the same time enable international investors to gain access to the

dynamic growth of the Chinese markets.

Our controlling shareholder, Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”)
is one of the China's largest securities houses, predominantly owned by Shanghai
Intemational Group Company Limited. Backed by the strong operational support, we are
the designated intemnational flagship company of Guotai Junan, serving as the gateway for

international expansion of Guotai Junan.

Today Guotai Junan Intemational enjoys a host of tremendous growth opportunities and
is well positioned to participate in capital markets expansion in Hong Kong. We have
unparalleled access to our controlling shareholder’s extensive business networks, not just

in China but globally.

Guotai Junan International is the first Mainland-owned securities brokerage house with
China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") approval to list its shares through initial
public offering (“IPO") on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange"). Established in Hong Kong in 1995, we provide our services in 5 core
business areas: (i) dealing and broking in securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange, (i) corporate finance, (iii) asset management, (iv) loans and financing and (v)
investment holding and market making. By means of a sophisticated internet platform, we
are able to provide our clients with comprehensive services on global securities, derivative
and leveraged foreign exchange trading, IPO subscriptions, margin financing, stock quotes,
market news and research reports, etc. Our team of dedicated professionals, who have in-
depth knowledge and understanding of both China and Hong Kong capital markets, has
established a solid reputation for providing a wide range of high quality corporate finance

solutions to our clients in Hong Kong, China and across the world.

We have proudly provided our clients with a superb range of high quality financial services
through some of the most turbulent economic periods in history. Looking into the future,
we will continue to expand and invest in our existing platforms and customer profiles,
and become a major regional financial services conglomerate. We will commit ourselves
to assist our clients in making proper judgments in different market conditions while

upholding our service commitment with integrity, client focus, expertise and innovation.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT

BREREHERANT - BUEREZER
EiRER A A([HRE ZBR IR ARF 5%
[AEEIRHMDIREE  KREETE
REFRCEEEEENFR - AASPERE
ERERE  SHREEREATSERY  FE
HYERREELEEDERYBROTS o

ZPNEREREREREFBROBRAF
((BEHBEZ])AFERAZHFRAZ— £
ELERAREEERARER - BERYL
2XF RAKAEREZNEERREER
Al RERELZRAEZRRMEOKE

BE BREGEANE  BRELXRRCE
K% BRERABEEAMENTI - %M
%E%hh%ﬁﬁmm R EBRE  TME
EBRAEMEZBEEIR

BRERERRETRBESEEERZ
U$lﬁ%§Dm&%h@ﬁ@§a@%%m
([BRAHEEREABERIMER AR
([BERPT ) ER LT ERPEEFLLT o
AR —NANEE  BRREIRAZOEBR
() EF R BRERERIERSE
EREERE: (VCERE: (WEEERE:
(WEERBERVBRERBMER - FIAK
ANBET & - ROEABRMOZT RS
aWR%  PRENES  TEIAREER
INER S BRAREERE  FEAE K
EHE MHEEARARRES - ZMMNEE
BRERBEEATSERENRAMTH - ¥
EEVRENEE REE TEHNERRE
FRE—ZISEELEMERE

EEBRE - HMERL EEERREE K
REMEPRUEAEREREBRY - REX
¥ HZMBEHERRIRERRMREY A
kEPHEA  NERARNIZEEBREEA
¥ BABSEBERANBEFREETRATR
fELEE A - WEREREETIHE - BN
B - B3 w0 fRA A o

ﬂﬂﬁﬁr



1995

1997

2001

2003

2004

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited was incorporated.

Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited became a member of the Stock

Exchange and commenced business.

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited commenced business.

Online trading platform for Hong Kong securities was launched.
Online trading platform for futures business was launched.

Completed sponsorship and IPO fund raising in Hong Kong for the first pilot

company whose A Shares were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Our first SFC authorized fund: Guotai Junan Investment Funds — Guotai Junan

Greater China Growth Fund was launched.

Completed sponsorship and IPO fund raising in Hong Kong for the first
pilot company whose A and B Shares were listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange.

Online trading platform for United States securities was launched.

CSRC approval on China B shares trading qualification obtained.

CSRC approval for Hong Kong listing was obtained.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited was incorporated and listed on

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Guotai Junan FX Limited commenced leveraged foreign exchange trading

service.

Level | American Depository Receipt program was launched.
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Milestones

HLRER

2012

2013

2014

2015

We launched our first ROFII fund: Guotai Junan Great Dragon RMB Funds —

Guotai Junan Great Dragon China Fixed Income Fund.

Completed conversion of the B share into H share and the listing of H share

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of a Chinese enterprise.

We launched our first public fund in Luxembourg: White Fleet — Guotai

Junan Sunrise Emerging Market Fixed Income Total Retum Fund.

Completed the issuance of offshore US-denominated corporate bonds for

offshore investment for our controlling shareholder Guotai Junan.

Guotai Junan International Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Limited

commenced asset management business in Singapore
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Financial Highlights
BB

For the year ended

31 December
BE+t=-RA=t—-H
HEE
2015 2014 Change
“E-1F C-T-QNF &
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
T TAET Bt
Fee and commission income ERRAREA
- brokerage — &% 719,945 501,646 43.5%
- corporate finance —EFRE 281,447 287,825 -2.2%
- asset management - BEER 53,092 46,387 14.5%
Income from loans and financing ERREERA 1,076,018 722470 48.9%
Gain from investment holding and market making % & ki &= 146,106 98,254 48.7%
Revenue Yozt 2,276,608 1,656,582 37.4%
Profit for the year FRE A 1,015,433 801915 26.6%
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company KA RIRIER A A FE/GH F 1,013,541 799,791 26.7%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)* BRREREF GEIL)* 14.9 139 7.2%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents)* SRREERR(BIL)* 14.6 13.7 6.6%
Dividend per share (HK cents)* B B GBI )* 75 70 7.1%

Net asset value per share (HK$)* (Note)

sREEFECGET)* (M)

I.11 1.05 5.7%

* as adjusted for the completion of bonus issue in July 2015.

Note:  Based on 6,857,378,801 shares (2014: 6,748,482,984 shares) as at 31 December 2015,
being 6,934,308,201 shares issued and fully paid less 76,929,400 shares held under the
Company's share award scheme (2014: 6,821,628,384 shares issued and fully paid less

73,145,400 shares held under the Company's share award scheme).

B Investment holding &

2015 Renvenue and profit mix

—E-RFRAREN D

market making _oSUNNCEE
BREARMTER
7% 19%

Loans and financing
BRREA
47% 1 55%

m Brokerage

AR T —RFLATRARETELR

=&
=S

BER-_ZT-—RFF+_A=+—H
#6,857,378,801 i % (= & — 1M F:
6,748482,984 % 1% 17 ) + B16,934308201 f%
BT RAUR B0 7 £ 76,929,400 Bk 2 AN
NER D B ERAENRN(ZE -1
F : 6821,628384 % 2 1T R AT R R
£73,145400 R 12 AN B i 1) B2 B T &1
BRIRGD)GTE -
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Financial Summary

M BMEE

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEEBERFNTBREEREERA R

financial years is set our below: ZEIMT

RESULTS
£
For the year ended 3| December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ZE-RF _T-MF —T-=F —T--F _T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET FET

Revenue and other income Wz K HoAth e A 2278507 166104l 1,139,368 790,740 703,154
Profit before tax BB A A 1,168,122 929216 619,526 355,402 330,235
Profit for the year FREF 1,015,433 801,915 537,758 307,150 287,448
Profit attributable to equity RRAIRIERE AR RN
holders of the company 1,013,541 799,791 536,398 307,003 287,706
Revenue and other income Profit attributable to equity holders of the company
hEREEHRA KA RERE AR
(HK$mil B &) 2,279 (HK$mil & &)
1,014
1,661 800
[,139 536
791
) I ) ﬁ I
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
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Financial Summary

S

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEHERE
As at 3| December
R+=B=t+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ZE-RF TN —T-=F T —_T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR FET TAET FET
Loans and advances to customers BB PR 12,375,857 9,099,164 6,005,392 3,058,102 2,064,215
Financial assets at fair value through &2 BT AB R
profit or loss CREE 2,197,965 1,353,089 983717 482,220 150,716
Financial products TREmD 2,429,123 — — — —
Receivable from reverse repurchase = 7] [B] B 175 5%
agreements JE W IB 509,695 — — — —
Derivative financial instruments THEERIA 24,952 1,766 — — —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEM 2,408,666 889,286 485,295 384,554 661,856
Client trust bank balances B P ETRITAR 14,662,991 9,009,909 7,966,841 5,883,941 6,121,768
Other current assets HthRBEE 2,199578 1,130,166 1020404  1,130404 432439
Other non-current assets A FREEE 520608 521501 525092 547516 570470
Total assets BREMRR 37329435 22004881 16986741 11486737 10001464
Bank borrowings RITER (7,855,662)  (4462719) (3386,113)  (739.820)  (200,000)
Debt securities in issue BRITMEBRES (2,358,088) (171,123) (324,706) (86,000) —
Financial liabilties at fair value ERFEABRY
through profit or loss *REE (505,340) — — — —
Obligations under repurchase BIfE %0
agreements BB (400,517) — — — —
Derivative financial instruments TEeRIA (29,766) (1,766) — — —
Other liabilities HihB & (18,544,805) (10,304,059)  (9,328,605)  (7,261,152)  (6,569,446)
Non-controlling interests RS (11,693) (9,801) (7.677) (6317) (6,170)
Shareholders' fund REES 7,623,564 7,055,413 3,939,640 3,393,448 3,225,848
Asset Structure
(HK$mil B &)
40,000 37,329
35000 m Other non-current assets At IERENE E
30,000 Other current assets E AR ENE &
25,000 22,005 m Client trust bank balances BFEFTIRTT4#R
20,000 16,987 . Cash and cash equivalent & KRS EED
15000 10,001 11,487 m Financial products & BREE
10,000 ===
£ 000 - - . m Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss AT EFFABEN S REE
| - E m Loans and advances to customers B KRB FHK

2011 2012 2014 2015

HEZXEBEERERAA
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Chairman’s Statement

ES i e

Dear Shareholders,

| 'am pleased to report to you that the Group has outstanding performance in our
operating results for the financial year of 2015, and accomplished remarkable growth

when compared with the corresponding period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of the Group increased by 37.4%
to HK$2.277 billion during this financial year and profit after tax recorded a substantial
growth of 26.6% to HK$1.015 billion, reaching a new historical high level.

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04
per share (2014: HK$0.043). Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.035 per share
(2014: HK$0.027), the aggregate dividend for the year will be HK$0.075 per share (2014
HK$0.07).

RESULTS REVIEW

2015 was a year of roller-coaster movements in the capital market of Hong Kong. In a
volatile market environment, the Group increased its resources in the brokerage, loans
and financing, corporate finance, fixed income, investment holding and market making
businesses, while actively strengthened risk management in order to avoid the impact of

significant market risk and credit risk.

In 2015, the Group recorded a substantial growth in revenue from the brokerage business
in the global equities, futures and foreign exchange market. Total revenue from the
brokerage business for the full year increased by 43.5% to HK$720 million as compared
with the previous year. The number of the Group's new customers exceeded 23,000
in 2015 and more than 90% were customers from Mainland China. The Group's online
trading platform supported a total of 8 stock markets, namely, Hong Kong, United States,
Shanghai A Shares, Shanghai B Shares, Shenzhen B Shares, United Kingdom, Japan, Canada
and Singapore, with coverage over the stock markets in Malaysia, South Korea, Australia
and Taiwan and global bond markets, as well as 21 futures markets worldwide including
leveraged foreign exchange trading for 8 currency pairs and 21 cross-currency pairs,

inclusive of offshore Renminbi, and was recognized by customers and markets in general.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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To meet the needs of rapid growth in the brokerage business, the Group obtained
HK$10.5 billion of syndicated loan facility in April and increased capital investments
by leveraging on the favourable market opportunity in the first half of the year, and
accelerated innovations in the loans and financing business. As a result, interest income
from loans and financing grew rapidly and became one of the most important sources of
income for the Group. In 2015, revenue from margin loans and other financing amounted

to HK$1.076 billion, increased significantly by 48.9% as compared with the previous year.

Aport from driving the rapid growth in revenue, we also continued to strengthen cost and
expenses management, and effectively improved the operating leverage of the Group.

Profit after tax increased by 26.6%, maintaining a high growth momentum.

The Group stepped up the pace of business innovation and international development.
During the second half of 2015, the Group invested resources on the development and
innovation of structured products, and established a professional team. The Group also
actively planned for a presence in Southeast Asia. Guotai Junan International (Singapore)
Holdings Pte. Limited and Guotai Junan International Asset Management (Singapore) Pte.
Limited were incorporated to lay the foundation for sustainable and stable growth in

business, revenue and profit.

In view of our outstanding results track record of stable growth, optimistic development
prospect and our broad and solid investor base, the Group was admitted as a constituent
stock of Hang Seng Composite LargeCap & MidCap Index in September 2015 and
an eligible stock for trading under Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, reflecting the
Company's financial strength as a comprehensive financial service institution and its leading

position among Chinese securities firms in Hong Kong.
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Chairman’s Statement

ES i e

LOOKING FORWARD

Looking ahead in 2016, the possibility of an interest hike in the United States is expected
to weaken, and Japan and Europe still sustain a negative interest rate environment. The
trend of capital flows into the United States and other developed markets will slow
down. From the intemal perspective of China, the anti-corruption campaign of the ruling
government achieved results in stages. Although economic growth was lower under the
new normal condition, it is expected that after the adjournment of the NPC and CPPCC
meetings, measures for structural adjustments, further reforms and faster liberalization will
be further driven and implemented, and national development strategies, such as One
Belt One Road and Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank, are expected to be accelerated
in progress. Faced with increasing pressure on the exchange rate of Renminbi and the
emergence of a trend of capital outflow, a neutral to slightly relaxed monetary policy is
highly likely, and an active fiscal policy is possible to be implemented to create a positive
impact on economic growth. Considering all of the factors above, we are cautiously
optimistic about the future developments in the securities markets of Mainland and Hong

Kong.

Under this backdrop, 2016 will be a year to step up intemationalization for Guotai Junan.
We will continue to leverage on favourable factors, such as the Group's controlling
shareholder being one of the largest securities firms in Mainland, famous reputation,
solid customer base and wide range of investment products, to maximize the results of
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, capture the opportunities arising from Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect, and actively increase the Group's advantages in cross-
border business; and by insisting on the implementation of diversified business and
market strategies, fully utilizing the convenient, efficient and practical characteristics of the
integrated trading platform, encouraging and guiding high net worth customers in Mainland
to pursue global asset allocations, to ensure steady, rapid and sustainable growth of the
Group; and actively promote the business development of the Group in Hong Kong,

Singapore and other Southeast Asian regions.

In business directions, the Group will base on its enhanced capital strength in 2016 to
increase the operation capacity in large-scale capital-based and intermediary investment
and financing projects, acquire the capabilities to achieve diversified profits and strengthen
the comprehensive risk management capabilities, while maintaining fast growth in the
brokerage business and financing business, developments in corporate finance, fixed
income financing, asset management and wealth management businesses will also be

accelerated to drive the steady and rapid growth in revenue.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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As a large-scale overseas business platform for Guotai Junan, the Group will continue
to fully maximize our advantages in trading skills, core talents, innovative ability and risk
control to enhance core competitiveness, expand customer base, enrich the offerings of
our services, optimize the mix of income and accelerate international development. We
will dedicate our efforts, as we did in the past, to develop into a leading and significantly
influential international investment bank in the Asia Pacific region to maximize the value

created for the Group's shareholders.

Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited

18 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B ok S 43 A

RESULT AND OVERVIEW

We are pleased to report to our shareholders that the Group achieved a remarkable
result with a profit after tax of HK$1,015.4 million (2014: HK$801.9 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2015, representing an increase of 26.6% as compared with
the previous year. The promising result was due to the outstanding performance in the
Group's brokerage and margin financing businesses which recognized significant growth of

449% and 68% respectively for the year ended 3| December 2015.

The Board of the Company has proposed a payment of final dividend of HK$0.04 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2015. Together with the interim dividend of
HK$0.035 per share, the dividend declared for 2015 amounts to a total of HK$0.075 per

share.
MARKET REVIEW

Policy issues

In 2015, against the backdrop of struggling for the designated economic growth target
while at the same time adjusting the state economic structure, China has speeded up the
pace to open up its capital markets. Since the launch of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect Program and the Renminbi Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor (“RQFII"),
there were more voices on the second stage of the Qualified Domestic Institutional
Investor (“QDII2") trial in Free Trade-Zones. In the meantime, the inclusion of RMB
in IMF's special drawing rights reserve-currency basket during the year has marked the

speeding up process of interationalization of RMB.

China's A share market was extremely volatile during the year under review. With the
strong boost of margin trading activities, the A share market expanded quickly both in
performance and turnover in the first half of the year. The market plunged in June when
the Chinese regulators strengthened control over unregulated margin trading activities.
Meanwhile, market expectation on depreciation of RMB following the new exchange rate
reform announced in August has speeded up the capital outflow. In response to that, the
Chinese Government gradually tightened the control of cross-border capital flow, which

had impacted cross border investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Markets

In Hong Kong, the equity market basically followed the trend in China where the market
expanded rapidly in the second quarter until early July when the market collapsed. Hang
Seng Index closed at 21914 at the end of 2015, dropped by 7% when compared to the
end of 2014. The average daily turover in 2015 was HK$105.6 billion, increased by 52%
from HK$69.5 billion in 2014. The market capitalization has reached HK$24.7 trillion by
the end of 2015, 2% lower than the previous year. The number of IPO has reached a
record high of 138 newly listed companies during the year, rose by 13% from 2014.

In China, SSE Composite Index and SZSE Component Index moved up significantly
in the first half of the year but deep correction took place since June. The two indices
respectively closed 9.4% and 15.0% higher in 2015.

In overseas stock markets, Dow Jones Industry Average Index dropped by 2.2%. S&P 500
Index dropped by 0.7% while NASDAQ Composite Index rose by 37.7%. FTSE 100 Index
dropped by 4.9%.

In foreign exchange market, US Federal Reserve raised the interest rate for the first time
since 2006 in December 2015. The expectation on the rate hike has boosted the US
Dollar Index up by 9.3%. Meanwhile, higher expectation on depreciation of RMB has
widened the spread between CNH and CNY.

In commodities markets, price of commodities including crude oil, iron ore, coal and also

precious metals all dropped significantly.
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Competitive environment

Due to the open-market policy in China especially the recently launched Shanghai-
Hong Kong Stock Connect Program, the mainland Chinese securities firms accelerated
the pace to set up business in Hong Kong directly or indirectly through the acquisition
of local securities firms. Inspired by the landmark cases in the past including CITIC
Securities Company Limited's acquisition of CLSA and Haitong Securities Company
Limited's acquisition of Taifook Securities Group Limited, acquisition has been a prevalent
means used by Chinese securities firms to enter into the Hong Kong market. The rapid
development of Chinese securities firms in Hong Kong is inevitably a new trend in the

local capital market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The volatility of the China and Hong Kong stock markets during the year under review
created business opportunities for the Group. We secured all these opportunities and
transformed them into our results, for example, the increase of our average daily turnover
and our market share, the increase of new accounts and active accounts and also the

significant increase of our margin loan balance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's businesses include brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans
and financing as well as investment holding and market making. With the promising growth
in brokerage, loans and financing and investment holding and market making businesses,
the revenue of the Group increased by 37.4% to HK$2,276.6 million (2014: HK$1,656.6

million) for the year ended 31 December 2015. A breakdown of the revenue is set out

B B ok B2 43 A
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For the year ended 3| December
BEt-A=t—-HLEE
2015 2014
—E-1F T
HK$000 HK$'000
TER % THET %
Fee and commission income WERES WA
— brokerage — &4 719,945 316 501,646 303
— corporate finance s 281,447 12.4 287,825 17.4
— asset management —EEEE 53,092 2.3 46,387 28
Income from loans and financing ERRBERA 1,076,018 473 722470 436
Gain on investment holding and RE Rgmkas
market making 146,106 64 98,254 59
Total revenue B 2,276,608 1000 1656582 100.0
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Brokerage

The high volatility of the China and Hong Kong stock markets created lots of business
opportunities for the Group and we have opened over 23,000 new accounts. The average
daily turover of our trading in the Hong Kong stock market increased by 70.2% in 2015.
In addition, the north-bound trade of the Shanghai - Hong Kong Stock Connect Program
became the second pillar of the revenue in the Group's securities brokerage business, just
behind the Hong Kong stock market trading. A breakdown of the revenue of brokerage

business is set out below:

FERBEERENSABEDALEEEEX
Bl BMMAKRPHER230001E R=F
—RE  BZMEEBRETHISMNEHETY
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For the year ended 3| December

BEt-A=t-BLHE

2015 2014
—E-TE —E-EF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER % FHT %
Securities E5 628,792 87.3 435037 86.7
Futures and options HE N 42,946 6.0 30,395 6.1
Handling income FEERA 39,085 54 32,524 6.5
Leveraged foreign exchange TEAZINE 2,363 0.3 1,646 03
Insurance R 6,759 1.0 2044 04
719,945 100.0 501,646 100.0

The promising result of our brokerage business was the result of our reliable and efficient
online trading system including the mobile application trading system. Currently, it supports
8 international securities markets, including Hong Kong, the United States, Japan, London,
Canada, Singapore, Shanghai A and B shares and Shenzhen B shares, 2| global futures and
options markets and 8 currencies pairs including CNH and up to 2| cross-currency pairs
in leveraged foreign exchange trading. Our securities brokerage business also covers the
stock markets in Malaysia, Korea, Australia, Taiwan and global fixed income markets. 78%
of the brokerage commission was derived from trades executed from our online trading

system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although brokerage income is directly affected by the level of market activities, we
consider that the expansion of client base is crucial to the success of the business.
Investment conference was regularly organized to expand our clientele and we successfully

recruited over 23,000 new clients for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The volatility of the stock market encouraged turnover in futures and options in 2015.
The brokerage income from futures and options increased by 41.3% to HK$42.9 million
(2014: HK$30.4 million) for the year ended 3| December 2015. The income from
leveraged foreign exchange was HK$2.4 million (2014: HK$ 1.6 million) for the year ended

31 December 2015, representing an increase of 43.6% as compared with prior year.

We are committed to develop insurance brokerage services for our clients through
co-operating with other experienced market participants. The income from insurance
brokerage services increased by 230.7% to HK$6.8 million (2014: HK$2.0 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Corporate Finance

Our corporate finance business covers debt capital markets, equity capital markets,
consultancy and financial advisory services. A breakdown of the revenue for corporate

finance business is set out below:
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For the year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t-HLHFE

2015 2014
—E-RE —E-mE
HK$000 HK$'000
TiERT % TET %
Placing, undenwriting and A& AERDAEAE
sub-underwriting commission
— debt capital markets —BRERTIS 63,583 226 86,887 302
— equity capital markets —REEARTS 121,844 433 131,815 458
Consultancy and financial advisory fees ERRBEEAE 96,020 34.1 69,123 240
281,447 100.0 287,825 100.0
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We endeavor to provide a range of high-quality advisory services on corporate
transactions as well as debt and equity capital markets’ services to clients in Hong Kong,
China and to international clients. Our corporate finance advisory services include acting
as sponsor in the application for the listing of securities in the Main Board and the GEM
Board in Hong Kong and the provision of corporate finance and compliance advisory
services. The debt and equity capital markets services provide a variety of distribution

channels including underwriting and placements in primary and secondary markets.

The equity capital markets activities in Hong Kong were very active in 2015. There were
138 newly listed companies in 2015, representing a record high and an increase of 13.1%
when compared with the 122 newly listed companies in 2014. Funds raised through IPOs
in 2015 was HK$261.3 billion, an increase of 12.4% when compared with HK$232.5 billion
in 2014. Total funds raised in the Hong Kong equity capital market was HK$1,109.0 billion,
an increase of 17.6% when compared with HK$942.7 billion in 2014.

We acted as the sponsor of 7 companies, bookrunner of 10 companies and placing agent
of 3 companies in the primary market. In the secondary market, we acted as placing agent
for 16 placing exercises. We assisted corporations to raise a total of more than HK$28.3

billion and HK$6.7 billion respectively in the primary and secondary markets in Hong Kong.

We have also been engaged as compliance adviser for 40 newly listed companies and as

financial adviser for 26 projects.

As a result, the income generated from consultancy and financial advisory services
significantly increased by 38.9% to HK$96.0 million (2014: HK$69.1 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2015 while the income generated from equity capital markets slightly
decreased by 7.6% to HK$121.8 million (2014: HK$131.8 million) for the year ended 3|
December 2015.

In 2015, due to economic downtumn and interest rate cuts in mainland China, the debt
capital markets activities in Hong Kong slowed down and the demand in RMB debt issues
decreased. We participated in 19 debt issue exercises, assisting corporations in raising
HK$44.2 billion through the Hong Kong debt capital market. The income from our debt
capital markets services was HK$63.6 million, representing a decrease of 26.8% (2014

HK$86.9 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT

ZARNAREEE - PEDERROTPRH
EHUNBECXIARAMRBARER R
BEEATGRS - RIANEERE R AR
BREEEIRMAZRES LHORAIRER
% CRBERARTARE - BEHRERE
AW5REBRRER R R - RHHHEE R
LESZRDHERE

—LFEREREEATMBHT LR _F
—RFEHLETMRA 8K BIELHE 8=
—UER 122 KFT EMRGEMIZI% =5
—hERAERARAEEEENELRL613
AL R-ZT—MNEMLEBTEM
124% - BEBREBAMSEENESLER
1090 BB » BT —MFH) 9427 EBTIE
M17.6%°

=+

E—HmE BREALT7TRDANREA - 10
ROAIMEEEEARIRARMEENE -
EZHME  BMET I REENREENRE -
BHUEEE—BRZETHSBIHEEEES R
BRBRIEATR6TEET

BAMER R0 K LM ARN A HER K 26
{ER R MBS RN o

Bt 82— AF+-A=+—HLF
B BRRBEZARBAERAKEEN
3w%i%oﬁa%mhq ME: 9. 58

L) BEZT-RF+ZA=T—HILHF
F km§$m%% W B OB D 7.6% 2
RISEEAT(ZZE—NF : 1318BEAET) °

RZZ—HF HRPEAELETR KA
B BABBEATSEDHEAARBES
BB RRD  c RMBEIIREFET
BREBBEREATSRPCEEE40 B
ToBET-—AF+T-A=+—HLEFE"
EHEATEREMBRARCEEET -
HER268%HHE(ZZ—MF - 869BEE
L)



Management Discussion and Analysis

Asset Management

We provide a range of asset management services including portfolio management,
investment advice and transaction execution, to individual clients, private and public funds.
While the management fee income from asset management business decreased by 1.7%
to HK$42.3 million (2014: HK$43.1 million), the performance fee income increased by
224.2% to HK$10.8 million (2014: HK$3.3 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Loans and financing

Our loans and financing business has been our growth driver since the listing of the Group
in 2010. The income from loans and financing business significantly increased by 48.9% to
HK$1,076.0 million (2014: HK$722.5 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015. A

breakdown of the revenue of loans and financing business is set out below:-
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For the year ended 3| December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2015 2014
—E-TE —E-EF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr % T %
Margin loans FRER 924,121 85.9 549,716 76.1
Term loans EHER 39,350 36 60,804 8.4
IPO loans BRRARBEER 5,684 0.5 5308 07
Securities borrowing and lending EHEE 26,549 25 19910 28
Reverse repurchase agreements [z A Bl B 1 167 0.1 — —
Banks and others RITREM 80,147 74 86,732 12,0
1,076,018 100.0 722,470 100.0
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In supporting the development of loans and financing business, the Group has entered
into a 3-year syndicated loan arrangement with a number of banks for a total facility of
HK$10.5 billion in April 2015. The average margin loan balance significantly increased by
62.3% to HK$10,944.3 million (2014: HK$6,743.0 million) while the income from margin
loans increased by 68.1% to HK$924.1 million (2014: HK$549.7 million). The effective

interest rate has been also increased to reflect our current risk level.

In addition to the margin loan business, the Group is engaged in term loan business to
facilitate our customers’ other financial needs. The income from term loans decreased
by 35.3% to HK$39.4 million (2014: HK$60.8 million) while the income from IPO loans
increased by 7.19% to HK$5.7 million (2014: HK$5.3 million) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Group is also engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business. The interest
income from the securities borrowing and lending increased by 33.3% to HK$26.5 million

(2014: HK$19.9 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Investment holding and market making

The Group holds financial assets for the purpose of business development, market making
business, and for the provision of investment products. The income from investment
holding and market making business were HK$9.2 million (2014: HK$61.9 million) and
HK$102.5 million (2014: HK$36.4 million) respectively for the year ended 31 December
2015. To diversify the scope of financial services, the Group provided a range of
investment products to the customers in 2015 and recognized income of HK$34.4 million
(2014: Nil) for the year ended 3| December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group's total assets increased by 69.6% to HK$37,329.4 million (2014: HK$22,004.9
million) as at 31 December 2015.

The Group's total liabilities increased by 98.8% to HK$29,694.2 million (2014:
HK$14,939.7 million) as at 31 December 2015.

The equity attributable to owners of the parent increased by 8.1% to HK$7,623.6 million
(2014: HK$7,055.4 million) as at 31 December 2015. The leveraged ratio (defined as
total assets less accounts payable to clients divided by equity attributable to owners of the

parent) increased by 58.5% to 2.90 times (2014: 1.83 times) as at 31 December 2015.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2015, the net current assets of the Group increased by 33.6% to
HK$10,106.8 million (2014: HK$7,566.9 million). The Group's current ratio was |.38 times
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 1.54 times).

In order to provide resources for the expansion of the Group's business, the Group has
entered into a syndicated loan agreement with a number of financial institutions with an

aggregate amount of HK$10.5 billion for a term of 3 years in April 2015.
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The Group had a net cash inflow of HK$1,519.4 million (2014: HK$404.0 million) for the
year ended 3| December 2015 and the Group's bank balance was HK$2,408.7 million as
at 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$889.3 million). As at 31 December 2015, the Group
had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$7,855.7 million (2014: HK$4,462.7 million)
through facilities with a number of banks. During the year under review, the Group has
successfully renewed the Medium Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme”)
under which both listed and unlisted notes may be issued. Apart from structured notes
issued in relation to financial products amounting to HK$1,929.0 million (2014: Nil), the
notes outstanding as at 31 December 2015 were HK$429.0 million (2014: HK$171.1
million). The gearing ratio (defined as bank and other borrowings to equity attributable to
owners of the parent) was .09 times as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 0.66 times). Taking
into account of the unutilized facilities from various financial institutions and the significant
un-issued portion of the MTN Programme, we believe our operating cash flow is
adequate to finance our recurrent working capital requirements as well as any investment

opportunities that may arise in the near future.

The Group monitors its capital structure in order to ensure the compliance of the capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N)
for its licensed subsidiaries and to support the development of new business. All licensed
corporations within the Group complied with their respective liquid capital requirements

during the year and up to the date of this report.

Other than the information disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt

instruments issued by the Company during the year and at the end of the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLANS

The slowdown of economic growth and the rebalancing of the economic structure in
China caused uncertainties to the Group. However, leveraging on the internationalization
of RMB and the unparalleled opportunities arising from the opening up of capital markets,

we are confident in our business expansion in the future.

Following the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program, China capital markets are
gradually converging to international capital markets. To better serve our international
investors to access to the Chinese markets, we will co-operate with Guotai Junan, our
controlling shareholder, to provide comprehensive A share research reports for their
investment needs. We are also expecting China to further open up its capital markets
through the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program or any other programs in the
future. To provide Chinese investors with more investment channels, we will optimize the
online trading platform for clients for global investment in securities, futures, derivatives,

options, financial products, as well as funds and insurance products.

With the China Securities Regulatory Commission tightening controls over margin trading
in China, we expect that the demand for margin loans will remain strong in 2016. The
Group is committed to invest resources for the expansion of our loans and financing
business. To broaden clients’ trading strategies and to facilitate more business transactions,
we will work with market participants in expanding the securities lending portfolio as well.
To control our market risk exposure, we will continue to adopt prudent risk management

to improve the quality of our share margin finance portfolio.

With a well-established legal and regulatory system, the Stock Exchange has become one
of the preferred venues of fund raising for Chinese enterprises. Although the IPO market
in China reopened in 2015, we forecast that the demand for capital raising in the Hong
Kong IPO market will remain keen in 2016. We will continue to collaborate with Guotai
Junan to secure all different business opportunities including but not limited to corporate

finance and debt and equity financing that may arise in Hong Kong.

As a result of increasing demand for asset management services, the Group has obtained
approval from the Monetary Authority of Singapore to carry out asset management
business in Singapore. At the same time, the Group will continue to work with other
market participants for the expansion of wealth management services and the provision of

investment products.
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MATERIAL ACQUSITIONS, DISPOSALS AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

For the year ended 3| December 2015, the Group had not made any material
acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies. As at 31 December

2015, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2014 and 2015.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
OTHER COMMITMENTS

Details of operating lease commitments, capital commitments and other commitments of

the Group are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Staff is an integral part of the success of the Company. Competitive remuneration
packages are offered to employees by reference to prevailing market rate and individual
merits. As at 3|1 December 2015, we had 335 employees in total (excluding our self-
employed account executives). Salaries are reviewed on an annual basis and discretionary
bonus is paid on annual basis with reference to the Group's performance and individual
performance. Share options and share award have been granted to the directors (the
“Directors”) and employees in recognition and acknowledgement of their contribution
made or to be made to the Group. Other benefits offered by the Group include

mandatory provident fund scheme and medical and dental insurance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group adopted stringent risk management policies and monitoring systems to control
risk exposure associated with credit, liquidity, market, foreign exchange and IT system in all

its major operations.

Credit Risk
Loans and financing activities

The Board delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor the credit risk of the
Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia, the Chief Executive Officer,
the Responsible Officers, the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Equity Financing
Department. The Credit Committee has further delegated to the Equity Financing
Department to take charge in approving credit limit and margin limit of each client. The
Equity Financing Department is responsible for making settlement calls when the trades
of margin clients exceed their respective limits. Any such excess is required to be made
good according to the deficiency report. The deficiency report will be daily monitored by
the Equity Financing Department. Failure to meet margin calls may result in the liquidation
of the client's positions. The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval of stocks
acceptable as margin collateral and the margin-lending ratio. The list of approved margin

collateral stocks will be reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee when necessary.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of credit risk.
The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed credit analysis of potential
loan investment, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the

performance of the loan investment.

Loans and advances to customers also include IPO loans for subscription of new shares
which are normally settled within one week from the draw-down date. Forced liquidation
action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within specific period of

tolerance after IPO allotment result announced.

For the Group's investment in debt securities, external credit rating such as Standard
& Poor’s and Moody's rating or their equivalents are used by the Risk Management
Department for managing of the credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's

own assessment through the use of internal ratings tools.

For the Group's bank balances which we beneficially own, they are deposited in
respectable large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in

segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorized financial institutions in Hong Kong.
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Brokerage

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients arising from dealing
in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement term of | to 3
days. The Group allows a credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally from T+ to T+3 days). All application for the credit limit must
be reviewed by Credit Manager and approved by any member of the Credit Committee.
The Equity Financing Department determines whether forced liquidation action is to be
taken against clients with overdue balances on case-by-case basis. The overdue report is

regularly reviewed by the Credit Committee.

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange trading. No transaction is allowed to be executed if the
current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed
and the aggregate of the required margin deposit of each futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange contract is timely monitored by the Risk Management Department.
Margin call will be executed if there is a deficit in the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of

the client’s position will be executed if the customer fails to meet margin calls.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial institutions

which are governed by regulators.

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing-houses and other assets
which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have minimal

credit risk.

Asset management and corporate finance

Accounts receivable arising from asset management and corporate finance services are
from trade counterparties with sound credit rating and/or reputation. The credit risk with

these trade counterparties are considered to be manageable.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amount at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance sheet date on
a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individual accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.
Generally, impairment allowances will be recognised when clients failed to meet margin
call requirements and clients’ collateral are insufficient to cover their outstanding loan

balances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity Risk

The Group's operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the regulators. The Group has put in place monitoring system to ensure
that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its financial obligations and to comply
with the relevant Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.57IN). As a
safeguard, the Group has maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any contingency in

its operations.

The Board believes that even in periods of high market volatility, the Group's working

capital is adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Market Risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which arises from long positions in equity or

debt securities, interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuation.

Price Risk

The asset quality of our margin client’s collateral will deteriorate when the market comes
down drastically. The Group's exposure to underwriting commitments will be also affected

at times of volatile market.

The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling
the price risk arising in the ordinary and usual course of business. Stress tests will be

performed when necessary.

The Group also has listed investments and unlisted investments that are subject to price
risk. The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed due diligence analysis
of potential investments, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor
the performance of the investments. These key investment decisions are also subject to

approval by the Investment Committee.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's foreign exchange risk principally arises from its leveraged foreign exchange
dealing and broking business as well as the Group's transactions which are denominated in

currencies other than Hong Kong dollars.

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group hedges the majority of
the client positions through back-to-back transactions with external counterparties. As the
Group adopts a stringent control over its positions, we consider that our foreign exchange

risk exposure is manageable.
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The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars (“USD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group is not exposed to
material foreign exchange risk because HKD is pegged with USD. The Group also
conducts appropriate hedging activities when it is exposed to material exchange risk in
RMB. Other foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal to its total assets and liabilities.
The foreign exchange risk is daily managed and monitored by our Finance Department. As

a result, we consider that our foreign exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Interest Rate Risk

The interest rate risk of the Group mainly arises from the interest-bearing financial assets
which can be offset against the interest-bearing liabilities. The Group mitigates its interest
rate risk by revising the interest rates charged for the loans and advances to customers
on an ongoing basis. At the same time, the interest rate for bank borrowings are subject
to re-pricing within 3 months or less, hence, the cash flow interest rate risk is considered
to be manageable. Debt securities held for trading are expected to be traded within a
short period of time and their interest rate risk is considered to be minimal. The financial
products and derivative financial instruments held by the Group are structured as debt
securities in issue for sales to customers. They are not subject to significant risk as the risk

has been transferred to customers accordingly.

Operational Risk

Systems are installed to monitor the availability and performance of various IT systems
and a dedicated team will act and report to the senior management in accordance with
the established procedures in the event of disruption, instability and other situations which
may warrant the triggering of the contingency procedures to protect the interests of
clients. The Group maintains and updates the operation manuals of its major operations
on an ongoing basis in accordance with the regulatory and industrial requirements. We
have also put in place competent compliance and internal audit functions with their
respective aims at detecting internal control risks and recommending policy changes as

well as carrying out checks on statutory compliance and the internal rules and regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance practices within the Group and has adopted various
measures to ensure the maintenance of a high standard. The Company has adopted the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of
corporate govemance during the year ended 31 December 2015. For the year ended 3|
December 2015, except for the deviations as disclosed in this report, the Company has

complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are committed to upholding the
corporate governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent procedures

are in place to protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

This report sets out a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices adopted

and observed by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate governance structure will enable
the Company to better manage its business risks and thereby ensure the Company
is run in the best interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board is
primarily responsible for formulating overall strategic plans and key policies of the
Group, monitoring its financial performance, maintaining effective oversight over the
management, risks assessment, controls over business operations and ensuring good
corporate governance and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board
members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the

shareholders' value in the long run.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 7 Directors:
Executive Directors:

Dr. YIM Fung (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Tung Ching
Ms. QI Haiying

Mr. LI Guangjie
Independent

Dr. FU Tingmei
Non-executive Directors:

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung
Note:

Mr. LI Sang, Edward was an Executive Director of the Company during the year ended 3| December
2015. Mr. Li resigned as an Executive Director of the Company on 24 February 2016.

The list of Directors of the Company and their roles and functions is posted on the

websites of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are all with well recognised experience and
expertise in accounting or other fields who can provide valuable advice to the Board.

They were appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from 19 June 2010
and renewed for a further term of three years in 2013.

There is no relationship between members of the Board. Pursuant to the requirement
of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of his independence to the Company. The
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors were independent

in accordance with the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. YIM Fung has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer since 24 August 2012. Dr. YIM joined the Group in 2000 and has been responsible
for the overall business management of the Group, he has over 24 years' experience
in the securities industry. Although this arrangement constitutes a deviation from code
provision A2.l of the CG Code, the Directors consider that the vesting of two roles
in the same person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in the
development and execution of the Group's business strategies and is beneficial to the
Group. While the responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are vested in
one person, all major decisions are made in consultation with the Board members and
the senior management of the Company. As there are three Independent Non-executive
Directors in the Board, the Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power

and the current arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.

Board Process

The full Board meets in person no less than 4 times a year. Notice of at least 14 days is
given for a regular Board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
Agenda and accompanying Board papers for each meeting are circulated in full to all
Directors before the meeting. Senior management executives may, from time to time,
be invited to attend the Board meetings for making presentation and/or answering any

queries that may be raised by the Board.

The Company Secretary will assist the Board in setting agenda for meetings, and each
Director of the Company is given an opportunity to include any matters to be transacted
in the agenda. Where any Director is considered to be having a conflict of interest in any
transactions, the Director concerned will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant
meeting. Minutes of meetings of the Board and the respective Board committees are
recorded in details. All draft minutes are circulated to all those present at the meetings for

comments before submission to the chairman of the meetings for approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, 6 board meetings were held and the individual

attendance of each Director is set out below:

Name of Director s

Dr. YIM Fung HEE L

Mr. WONG Tung Ching FRERE

Ms. QI Haiying BBELL L

(appointed on 5 March 2015) (RZE-RE=AABEZM)
Mr. LI Guangjie FHhARE

Mr. LI Sang, Edward FHRE

(resigned on 24 February 2016) (RZB—REZAZTMARHT)
Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL

Dr. SONG Ming REEL

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung DR ST

Board meetings were held to discuss the business strategies of the Group, monitor
financial and operational performance, approve the annual and interim results of the
Group, discuss the corporate governance functions of the Board, review the Group's
policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and review

the codes applicable to directors and employees.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the Independent Non-executive
Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors and the management was held
to discuss and review the performance of the Executive Directors and the management,

and the adequacy of systems and controls in place to safeguard the interests of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into a service agreement or a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to re-election by the Company at an annual general meeting (“AGM")
upon retirement. In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors or, if the number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, will retire from office by rotation and every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire every year will be those who have been longest in

office since their last re-election or appointment.
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The Board has a board diversity policy, which is available on the Company's website.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members of the Board, it is the

policy of the Company to consider a number of factors when deciding on appointments

to the Board and the continuation of those appointments. Such factors include gender,

age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of service.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31 December

2015 is set out below:

Name of Director

Executive Directors
Dr. YIM Fung
Mr. WONG Tung Ching
Ms. QI Haiying
(appointed on 5 March 2015)
Mr. LI Guangjie
Mr. LI Sang, Edward
(resigned on 24 February 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Notes: A = attending seminar
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties, including:

(8)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

(Corporate Governance Code).

BOARD COMMITTEES

Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising

certain functions of the senior management.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

comprises only Independent Non-executive Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (Chairman)
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

The Chairman of the Committee has professional accounting qualification. The Committee
reviews financial information of the Group, monitors the effectiveness of the external audit
and oversees the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of the Company's
external auditor, as well as their independence. The Committee will meet regularly to
review financial reporting process, all business affairs managed by the Executive Directors
in particular on connected transactions and continuing connected transactions, if any, to
review the interim and final financial statements before their submission to the Board and
the annual general meeting for approval and to review the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management system of the Group, including the internal audit function.
A copy of the terms of reference of the Committee has been posted on the Company's

website (www.gtja.comhk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Committee met on 5 occasions and the

individual attendance of the Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director s
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung DR T
Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL
Dr. SONG Ming REEL

During the year, the Committee has considered the external auditor's proposed audit
fees, discussed with the external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit, reviewed the interim and annual financial statements of the Group, particularly
judgmental areas, before submission to the Board, reviewed the internal control system
and the internal audit plan, findings and management's response, reviewed the Group's
adherence to the code provisions in the Code. The Committee recommended the Board

to adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2015,

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

currently comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors:  Dr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)
Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

The responsibilities of the Committee include setting remuneration policy of the Group
and fixing remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the Board as a whole
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company. No
Directors can determine their own remuneration packages. The Committee will meet at
least once a year to discharge its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference
which has been posted on the Company's website. The Committee is provided with the
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The Chairman of the Committee will report
their findings and recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. The full
terms of reference of the Committee are available on the Company's website (www.gtja.

comhk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Committee held 4 meetings to review and
discuss remuneration matters of the Group. The individual attendance of the Committee

members is set out below:

Name of Director EEnE
Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL
Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung DR T

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee currently

comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors:  Dr. SONG Ming (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Executive Director: Dr. YIM Fung

The primary responsibilities of the Committee are, amongst other things, to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and succession planning for
the Directors. When making recommendations, the Committee will consider a number of
factors of the Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience. The full terms of reference of the Committee are

available on the Company's website (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Committee held one meeting to review and
discuss appointment and succession planning of Directors. The individual attendance of

the Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director BEEnZ
Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRBITE
Dr. YIM Fung HEEL
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DELEGATION TO THE MANAGEMENT

The management team of the Company (the “Management”) is led by the Executive
Directors of the Board and has been delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate business policies, make
decision on key business issues and exercise power and authority delegated by the Board
from time to time. The Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the

operation of the Group.

The Company has clear direction on the Board's delegation of powers to the

Management. Some powers are reserved to the Board, including but not limited to:

- Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
- Proposing dividend distribution to the shareholders’ meeting;

- Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and remuneration policy;

- Review on internal control system and risk management;

- Changes to major group structure or Board composition;

- Proposed transaction requiring shareholders approval (e.g. connected transaction,
notifiable transaction, etc.); and

- Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.
Prior to the adoption of the financial statements and the related accounting policies,
the relevant financial information is discussed between the external auditor and the

management, and then submitted to the Audit Committee for review.
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External Auditors
During the year ended 31 December 2015, Emst & Young was appointed as the external
auditors of the Group. The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditor is set out as

follows:

Services rendered FriR AR

Audit services ZH R

Interim review h HiEE R

Tax and other consultancy services R E A AR

Internal Control
The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain an adequate system of internal

control and review its effectiveness.

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, safeguard assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and faimess of the financial
statements, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. It provides
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than

elimination of risks associated with business activities.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board,
has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. It has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and

financial reporting functions and their training programs and budgets.

In addition, the Internal Auditor of the Company conducts regular and independent
reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system. The Audit Committee
reviews the findings and opinion of the Internal Auditor on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control system and reports to the Board on such reviews.
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The Board also annually reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's

accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs and budget.

The Board is of the view that the system of intemal controls in place for the year under
review and up to the date of issuance of this annual report is sound and is sufficient
to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Group's
assets. The resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's accounting and

financial functions, and their training programs and budget are adequate.

Internal Audit

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays a major role in
monitoring the corporate governance of the Group and providing objective assurance
to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by the
management. The head of the intemnal audit team directly reports to the Board and the
Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based approach to evaluate risk
level on control environment, the internal audit team makes their audit schedules annually
in consultation with, but independent of, the Management, and the audit plan is submitted
to the Audit Committee for approval. On a quarterly basis, the head of the internal audit
team will present a report and express an opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal
control environment of the Group. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and
processes of the Group's operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed

on specific areas of concem identified by the Audit Committee and the management.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The Company had made specific
enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code. All Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 3| December 2015.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is appointed by the
Board. The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board's processes and
communications among Board members, with shareholders and with management. The
Company Secretary undertakes at least |5 hours of relevant professional training annually

to update his/her skills and knowledge.
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On 24 February 2016, Mr. LI Sang, Edward resigned as the Company Secretary of the
Company, Ms. FENG Zheng Yao Helen was appointed by the Board as the Company

Secretary on the same date.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all shareholders. The
Company encourages two-way communications with both its institutional and private
investors. Extensive information about the Company's activities is provided on its website
(www.gtja.com.hk) and in its interim report and this annual report which are sent to
shareholders of the Company. The annual general meeting provides a valuable forum
for direct communication between the Board and the Company's shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees together with the external auditor are present to answer shareholders'
questions. The annual general meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each separate issue and voting of which is taken by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Any results of the poll are published on the Company's website and the
Stock Exchange's website. All corporate communication with shareholders will be posted

on the Company's website (www.gtja.com.hk) for shareholders’ information.

The 2015 annual general meeting was held on 14 May 2015. The attendance record of
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the Directors at the meeting is set out below: THRET - BEEEMHFTEEINNT
Attendance/Number of
general meetings
Name of Director EEnE HE/ BRRAGRE
Dr. YIM Fung HEEL I/1
Mr. WONG Tung Ching FRERE I/1
Ms. QI Haiying /R
(appointed on 5 March 2015) (RZE-—RF=ARAREM) /1
Mr. LI Guangjie FhATE /1
Mr. LI Sang, Edward FhRE
(resigned on 24 February 2016) (RZE-RE_AZTMAET) /1
Dr. FU Tingmei BiEEmt I/
Dr. SONG Ming REHEL 0/1
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung BiEa St I/1
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Under code provisions E.I.2 and A.6.7 of the CG Code, Independent Non-executive
Directors and chairman of each of the board committees should attend the annual general
meeting. Dr. Song Ming (Independent Non-executive Director and the Chairman of
Nomination Committee) was unable to attend the 2015 annual general meeting due to

his other business commitments. All other Directors have attended the meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
A copy of the latest version of the Articles of Association is posted on the websites of the

Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

In light of the new Companies Ordinance which took effect on 3 March 2014, a new set
of Articles of Association of the Company align with the new provisions/requirements
under the new Companies Ordinance has been approved and adopted by the 2015
annual general meeting on 14 May 2015 and was posted on the websites of the Company

(www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s)
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meeting may require the directors of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"). The shareholder shall make a written requisition
authenticated by him/her to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at
the registered address of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong, specifying the objects of the meeting, the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal regarding any

specified transaction/business and its supporting documents.

If the Directors of the Company do not within 2| days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to call an EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the EGM s given, the shareholder(s) concemed, or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after

the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same manner, as close as
possible, as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors of the

Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 580 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance
for putting forward proposals at general meetings. Any number of shareholders
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having a right to
vote at the general meeting, or at least 50 shareholders of the Company having a right to
vote at the general meeting, may request in writing the Company to circulate resolutions
which may properly be moved and are intended to be moved at an annual general
meeting; and to circulate statements regarding resolutions proposed at general meetings.
The requisition must be authenticated by the person(s) making it and should be deposited
at the registered office of the Company at 27/F.,, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 18]
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary where, (i)
in the case of requisition for the circulation of resolutions to be moved at annual general
meetings, the requisition must be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before
an annual general meeting; or (ii) in the case of requisition for the circulation of statements
regarding resolutions proposed at general meetings, such requisition must be received by

the Company not later than 7 days before the general meetings.

The procedures for nomination of Directors by the shareholders of the Company are

available on the Company's website at http://www.gtja.com.hk.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board of the
Company in writing through the Company Secretary at the registered address of the
Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to

answer the shareholders’ questions.
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Executive Directors

YIM Fung (FEU&), JP, aged 52, is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of our
Group. Dr. Yim joined Guotai Junan in 1993 and joined our Group in 2000 and is
responsible for the overall business management of our Group. Dr. Yim has over 24 years'
experience in the securities industry. Dr. Yim is a senior economist and holds a doctorate
in Economics from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
(PEIM GRIZFIFRAEPT) and a bachelor degree in Environmental Engineering
from the Tsinghua University ((EZEAZ). Dr. Yim is also a director of Guotai Junan
Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited which are the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Dr. Yim is currently also an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Urban Construction Design & Development Group Co., Limited
(stock code: 1599) and a non-executive director of Shenzhen International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 152), both listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Yim is a member of
the Inner Mongolia 10th and | Ith National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, PRC, and the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the Chinese
Securities Association of Hong Kong after being the Chairman of the 3rd and 4th terms of

office of the said Association.

WONG Tung Ching (E45), aged 44, is an executive director, the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer and the head of the corporate finance and equity capital markets
divisions of our Group. Mr. Wong joined our Group in October 2000 and is responsible
for the overall business and marketing matters of corporate finance and equity capital
markets business of our Group. Mr. Wong obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside (now known as the
University of Lincoln) in 2001 and a higher diploma in International Trading from the
Shenzhen University (RIIIRZR) in 1992.

QI Haiying (B 2), aged 34, is an executive director and the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of our Group. Between 2004 and 2012, Ms. Qi worked in Shenzhen Supervision
Bureau of the China Securities Regulatory Commission on regulatory supervision of
securities companies and listed companies. Ms. Qi joined Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited in April 2012, holding a post of Deputy General Manager in the Compliance
Department and the Strategic Management Department respectively. Ms. Qi was
appointed as executive director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
5 March 2015. Ms. Qi holds a master degree of Financial Economics from London School
of Economics and Political Science (LSE) and a bachelor degree of International Economy

and Trade from the University of Intemational Business and Economics (UIBE) in China.
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Biographies of the Directors
HHE R

Ll Guangjie (FJR), aged 47, is an executive director and the head of the sales house
team of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in November 2001 and is responsible for the
supervision and management of the Group's sales team. He has over 24 years' experience
in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. Li started his career at Shenzhen
Jinpeng Certified Public Accountants (Y& IEEFTENEFT) as the deputy head of
appraisal department. Mr. Li holds a bachelor degree in Economics from the Shenzhen
University (&JIIX2) and a master degree in Economics from the Central University of
Finance and Economics (1 R EBF4E K22, He is also an economist and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FF BIFEf @511 E) and a member
of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association (F BIZEfFRISEN ).

Independent Non-Executive Directors

FU Tingmei (f53£3E), aged 49, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Fu was
appointed a Director on 19 June 2010. Dr. Fu has extensive experiences in investment,
finance, law and business management. Between 1992 and 2003, he conducted many
corporate finance transactions in several investment banking firms based in Hong Kong,
including serving as a director of Peregrine Capital Limited, and a deputy managing director
and subsequently a managing director of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited. Dr. Fu is
currently engaged in private investment business. He is currently also an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392) and CPMC
Holdings Limited (stock code: 906), both listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Fu graduated
from the University of London with a master's degree and a doctorate degree in Law in

1989 and 1993, respectively.
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SONG Ming (R#)), aged 54, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Song has over
22 years' experience in research of bank regulation and management, financial market, and
macroeconomics. Dr. Song is the director of Centre for China Financial Research (CCFR)
and a professor in Faculty of Business and Economics at the University of Hong Kong, Dr.
Song holds a doctorate degree in Economics from Ohio State University, a master degree
of Science in Mathematics from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZEH
BH%AKZ) and a bachelor degree of Science in Mathematics from Zhejiang University
(HIKEZ). Dr. Song is appointed as an independent non-executive director of United
Laboratories International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3933) since May 2007 and
independent non-executive director of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock

code: 1369) since May 2013.

TSANG Yiu Keung (Z125%), aged 62, is an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Tsang is a professional accountant and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for
more than 27 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired from the firm
in 2003. Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the
audit committee of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited (Stock code: 558), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, and China CITIC Bank International Limited, a licensed bank in
Hong Kong and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang holds a higher
diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly the Hong
Kong Polytechnic).
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Report of the Directors
ERE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking,
corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing, investment holding and market
making. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities

during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 14 to 30 of this annual report. The discussion forms part of this

directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 77

and 78 of this annual report.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.035 per share and proposed the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the company on 25 May 2016. The dividend will be
payable on or about 10 June 2016.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Detailed segment information in respect of the Group's revenue and segment results are

shown in note 4 to the financial statements on pages 128 to |32.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 3| December 2015 is set out on pages 8 and

9 of this annual report.
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PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in the note | to the financial statements

which is set out on pages 85 to 87 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in

note 30 to the financial statements which is set out on page 166 of this annual report.

Details of equity-linked agreements are included in the section “Shared-based

Compensation Scheme” below.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2015, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$496,591,000 of which HK$274,295,000 has

been proposed as final dividend for the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to HK$169,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 3| December 2015, the revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue. The
Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no

value to disclose details of the Group's suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issuer's share capital) had any

beneficial interest in the Group's 5 largest customers.
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Report of the Directors
ERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of

BEEIREAQAR LTES

R ABERE R RE) R8I (TA D) B EEt 81 )
MERABEREIN  KORHEMKEARA]
REE-T-RAF+ A=t HLEENE

the Company's listed securities for the year ended 31 December 2015 other than as an

50

agent for the trustee of Guotai Junan Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award Scheme").

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual report

are:

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Ms. QI Haiying (appointed on 3 March 2015)
Mr. LI Guangjie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Note:

Mr. LI Sang, Edward was an Executive Director of the Company during the year ended 3| December

2015. Mr. Li resigned as an Executive Director on 24 February 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
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No Director has a service contract with the Company which is for a duration that may
exceed 3 years or which requires the Company to, in order to terminate such contract,
give a notice period of more than | year or pay compensation or make other payments

equivalent to more than | year's emolument.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements which is set out on pages 177 to 184 of this annual report.
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In accordance with Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. At each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third, shall retire from
office and be eligible for re-selection. Accordingly, Dr. YIM Fung, Mr. LI Guangjie and Mr.
TSANG Yiu Keung shall retire by rotation. They will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr. FU Tingmei,
Dr. SONG Ming and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and as at the date of this annual report, still
considers them to be independent. Generally, the term of office for each Independent
Non-executive Director is for a period of 3 years, and all of the 3 Independent Non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries

was a party during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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B

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this annual report, directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company were as follows:

Name of Subsidiaries

WEAR LM

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited
BRER(BB)ERRA

Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited
BREZEEEE(TM)BRAA

Guotai Junan Capital Limited
BRELZHEBRAT

Guotai Junan Finance (Hong Kong) Limited

BRERYH(EE)BRAR

Guotai Junan Financial Products Limited

BREZEREMBRAR

Guotai Junan Fund Management Limited

EHRBERESEEARAT

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited
BRERHE(FE)ARAR

Guotai Junan FX Limited
HRELIIMEFR AT

Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited

BRERES (BB ERAR

Guotai Junan International (Singapore)
Holdings Pte. Limited

MEBARES
BEZWISFNABLEFEEREAFRA
B ARAIMEBARZEZH TIIALET:

Name of Directors

E=ng

YIM Fung, LI Guangjie, WONG Tin Lai, LI Sang, Edward (resigned on 24/2/2016), WONG Tung Ching
B TN ERE FEQ0I6FLAUBEE)  T£5

YIM Fung, YUAN Junping
B REF

WONG Tung Ching, YAU Deirdre, WONG Anthony, LO Kwong Shun, Wilson
IRE s ZRE - BEE

LI Guangjie, WONG Tin Lai, WANG Junhong
RN BERE RTRA

QI Haiying, WONG Tin Lai
BBR BEXE

YIM Fung, QI Haiying, ZHANG Gaobo, CHAN Lap Tak Jeffrey, YUAN Junping, TAN Koon Seng
B - 8% REK - BRUE - REF - TAN Koon Seng

CHAN Ka Wah, LAl Kai Hung
PR 5 - R

CHAN Ka Wah, YEUNG Tze Fung
RRE - HTE

YIM Fung (resigned on 28/7/2015), WONG Tung Ching, QI Haiying, LI Guangjie, LEE Ming Chuan
Eric, ZHANG Jinhui

BIE(Q015F7 A28 ABHE) » TXE (BB KR  FXA  THE R\

YIM Fung, QI Haiying, TAN Koon Seng
B - #E/83 - TAN Koon Seng

Guotai Junan International Asset Management YIM Fung, QI Haiying, TAN Koon Seng

(Singapore) Pte. Limited

Guotai Junan International Securities
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

B - fE/82 - TAN Koon Seng

QI Haiying, TAN Koon Seng, LEE Oon Har
B/ + TAN Koon Seng * LEE Oon Har

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors or their
associates in the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
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YIM Fung Long 40,935,759 17,835,000 9,575,196 68,345,955 0.99%
]2 3}

WONG Tung Ching Long 3,437,200 4,158,000 5,042,364 12,637,564 0.18%
FLF RE

QI Haiying Long — — 9,000,000 9,000,000 0.13%
LN B

LI Guangjie Long 3,667,288 [,185,000 2,779,682 7,631,970 0.11%
FER $=9:)

LI Sang, Edward Long 1,287,043 990,000 2,519,790 4,796,833 0.07%
4 B

FU Tingmei Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%
B B

SONG Ming Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%
R $=9:)

TSANG Yiu Keung Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%
LR RE
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Long position in the ordinary shares of an associated corporation

REBZENSERORRE

Name of Percentage of

associated Number  issued shares
Name of director Long/short positions  corporations Nature of interest of shares {HEBTRH
- R/KR EEEE AR BENE RE#E Bak
YIM Fung (Note) Long Guotai Junan Fund Interest of a 2,010,000 20.1%
R () KA Management Limited  controlled corporation

RRELESER

BRAF
Note: In the year ended 31 December 2015, Dr. YIM Fung, Chairman, executive director and chief
executive officer, held 92% equity interests in Best New Management Limited, was deemed

to have an interest in the 20.1% equity interest held by Best New Management Limited in

Guotai Junan Fund Management Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

With effect from 10 March 2016, Dr. YIM Fung ceased to hold any equity interest in Best
New Management Limited and any deemed interest in Guotai Junan Fund Management
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model

Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARED-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEME

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes including
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and the Share Award Scheme for
the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members. Eligible
participants of the schemes include the Company's directors (including Independent Non-

executive Directors) and other employees of the Group.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members. The Board
of Directors has the discretion to grant share options to employees and directors of any
members of the Group, including independent non-executive directors. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,

will remain in force for |0 years from that date (i.e, 18 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to

shareholders' approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to

shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$| in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and ends on

a date which is not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the
date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the

Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.
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On I'l June 2015, 4,500,000 share options have been granted to a Director and an
employee with the exercise price of HK$14.56 per share. Among the share options
granted, a total of 3,000,000 share options were granted to a Director of the Company.
The closing price of the Company's shares on the date of the grant was HK$14.22. The
option period of the share options is from || June 2015 to 10 June 2025. Every one-third
of the share options granted will be vested on the first, second and third anniversaries of

the date of grant respectively.

After adjustment as a result of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, for the year ended 3|
December 2015, 1,007,916 and 2,955 share options with an exercise price of HK$1.264

each lapsed and forfeited prior to the vesting date as a result of staff resignation.

40,674,003 share options were exercised for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
weighted average share price immediately preceding the exercise date during the year was
HK$3.34.
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Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 3|

December 2015 are as follows:
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average
Share share price
Exercise price immediately Adjusted
priceof  immediately preceding the exercise
share options ~ precedingthe ~ Options held Options heldat ~ exercise date' price of
at date of grant gantdae  at| January Options 31 December (HKS) ~ share options”
(HKS) (HKS) 2015 granted 015 L] (HKS)
Opios  FHAE  BRERE MW-E-RE  duingthe Brercised Adjsted HZ%-BF  2BAR e
Date of gt BREN REH -R-8 year durng  durngthe  Lapsed during Forfited t25 REEN BhE
Name ofparticpants grant bl fikE WRE BEN  ERREN the year year theyer digtheyer  =t-B NEFHRE ikl
HRELE et ] (#7) (B7) FRE BRE  EAGE EAER FARN FARd ERNBRE (B7) (%)
Drectors
g
M Fung 140012 6000000 2150 J4] 6048387 — (608387 - - - - 33l 0827
Bl (07172014 4750000 38 3N 478759 = (15%568) 6383464 - - 957519 33l 1264
WONG Tung Ching 240012 3000000 2150 2l - - - - - - - NAE 0827
T2E 107172014 1500000 38 3N 2519788 - (839.000) 3361576 - - 5042364 33l 1264
Ql Helying (162015 3000000 4% 1361 - 3000000 - 6000000 - - 5000000 NAE 48%
et
LI Guengle 240012 1500000 2150 J4] 15120% = (15120%) - - - - 18 0827
A (07172014 1250000 38 n 1259890 = (1000000) 2519788 - - 19682 168 1264
LI Sang Ecward 240012 1500000 250 2l 15120% = (15120%) - - - - 153 0827
3 (07172014 1250000 38 n 1259894 - (419964) 1679860 - - 2509790 3 1264
FU Tingmei 240012 500000 250 251 504032 = (151209 1008084 - - - 13 0827
BiEx
SONG Ming 240012 500000 2150 J4] 504032 - (50403) - - - - 4% 0827
R
TSANG Yiu Keung 240012 500000 250 2l 504032 - (50403) - - - - 500 0827
o
Employees 40012 26500000 2150 J4] (7846764 = (B 8mME - = 13057248 33 0827
8 (07172014 40250000 38 3 %06 = (11732086 990 (1007916) (29%9) 867807 348 1264
[1/6/2015 1500000 14% 1361 - 1500000 - 3000000 - - 4500000 NAE 484
In aggregate 40012 40000000 2150 Bl B —  (Boeoen  9712%% - - 13057248 30 0827
fif (07172014 50000000 38 M 49388 = (I5386316) 791980 (100791e) (2955) 106709859 8 1264
[1/6/2015 4500000 4% 1361 - 4500000 - 000000 - — 13500000 NAE 48%

shares to be issued and allotted under the outstanding share options had been adjusted

pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise price and the number of ‘ RZZ-RF+LANATRIRELRE K
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Share Award Scheme

On 27 October 201 1, the Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) under which shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded
to selected employees (including directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected
Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the share award
scheme. The share award scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless
otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date, i.e, 26

October 2021,

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under the Share
Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme is limited to 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000 shares).
The maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected
Employee in any [2-month period up to and including the date of award shall not in
aggregate exceed |% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
(i.e. 16,400,000 shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include service
and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of Directors of the Company at
the time of making the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company forming
the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that

employee at no cost.

No payment to purchase shares shall be made to the trustee of the Share Award Scheme
and no instructions to acquire shares shall be given to the trustee under the scheme
where any Director of the Company is in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or where dealings by Directors are prohibited

under any code or rules and all applicable laws from time to time.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award Scheme shall be

exercised by the independent trustee who shall abstain from voting.

As of 31 December 2015, the Company has granted in aggregate of 37,200,000 Awarded
Shares which represents 22.7% of the limit of the Share Award Scheme.
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The remaining number of the Awarded Shares can be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme is 126,800,000, representing 1.83% of the total number of issued shares,
6,934,308,201 shares, of the Company as of 3| December 2015.

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 3| December 2015 are set out

Report of the Directors
=R

IR AR AR 17 52 B =1 & 7T 5% T ) SR B AR 17 B Rl 84
HER126800000  HERBEEZE-F—4
F+ZA=Z+-BNARRBEETRNEH
6,934,308,201 R 1.83% °

R-B-—RAF+_A=+t—BRLERKEEN

below: BEBRHNFENT
Average fair
value per share Number of Number of Number of Number of
(HKS$) Awarded Awarded Awarded Awarded

Date of Awarded BM Sharesgranted  Sharesvested  Shares lapsed Shares unvested
Shares granted TYATE RiLRE BERE KRR AERRR Vesting date
RERBRO A (Bm) ROEE ROEE BROEE ROBE  HEAH
After adjustment for bonus issue
HARBTHARE
9/4/2014 133 28,218,000 (18,684,000) (339,000) 9,195,000 3071172016
15/4/2015 329 34,653,000 (1'1,574,000) (81,000) 11,529,000 3071112016

11,469,000 30/11/2017

291,000 Awarded Shares have lapsed prior to its vesting date as a result of staff

resignation for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Movements of Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 3| BE_Z—AG+T-_A=T—HIEE Bh

December 2015 are as follows: REEAETHRBRHEBHT -
Awarded
Awarded Shares at
Shares at 31 December
| January 2015 Granted Adjusted 2015
R-ZE-1F during  Lapsed during during  Vested during RZ=B—-HF
Name of participants —R-8 the year the year the year* theyear T=HA=+—H Vesting date
SHRELR HRBRH FRRM FEREXX FRBE EREE  NRBR BEAS
Directors
EZ
Yim Fung 2,939,000 3,006,000 — 11,890,000 (8,694,000) 6,135,000 3011712016
HE 3,006,000 30/1172017
Wong Tung Ching 868,000 1,637,000 — 501000 (3,357,000) 2,523,000 301172016
I%E 1,635,000 301172017
Qi Haiying — — — — — — —
e
Li Guangjie 235,000 467,000 — 1,404,000 (921,000) 720,000 30/1112016
FRAA 465,000 30/1172017
Li Sang, Edward 203,000 390,000 — 1,186,000 (789,000) 600,000 30/11712016
F4 390,000 30/1172017
Employees 4,724,000 6,051,000 (291,000) 21,334,000 (15,099,000) 10,746,000 30/1112016
E5 5973,000 30/1172017
Total 8,969,000 [1,551,000 (291,000) 40,824,000 (28,860,000) 20,724,000 301112016
it 1,469,000 30/1172017

* Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the number of Awarded Shares under * RZE-RELANATRIRBEARE - &

the Share Award Scheme has been adjusted pursuant to the terms of the Share Award fn SEY T EIA T 2 2R 81 B B RIB4E
Scheme. ENEFCEITHEE o
Further details of the Share Award Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to the financial IR B R E M BN AR RAR M 323k

o

statements.

5o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the
year ended 3| December 2015, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not signed
any agreements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had

any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSON’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (not being a Director of our Company)
have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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ERE

Ordinary shares of the Company AR

Approximate percentage of
the Company’s total

number of shares in issue

Number of shares EARRFCBRITROEE

RH#E BAES T

Long Short Long Short

positions positions positions positions

Name of shareholders BREEE RE we RrE g}

Shanghai International Group HEBRRER

Co., Ltd (Note) ARAR (M) 4,527,057,800 Nil & 65.28% Nil£E
Guotai Junan Securities BIRELEHFR D

Co., Ltd (Note) ARAR (M) 4,527,057,800 Nil £ 65.28% Nil £
Guotai Junan Financial BRELSRER

Holdings Limited (Note) BRAR () 4,527,057,800 Nil & 65.28% Nil &

Guotai Junan Holdings Limited EREBELERER AR 4,527,057,800 Nil £ 65.28% Nil £

Note: Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited izt -

which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. Guotai Junan
Securities Co,, Ltd is a controlled corporation of Shanghai International Group Co, Ltd.
Accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, Guotai Junan Securities Co,, Ltd and
Shanghai International Group Co., Ltd are deemed to have the same interest in the shares of

the Company as Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

EHRELERERAFHERE RS RIER
BRARZEHRE MERERERBERE
RARASEARELEFRNBERABNE
BMBAR - BRBELEFROBERAAT
ER EEEREEERAR - ALt BRE
ZERERBRAE - BREBLESFRND
RAF R LBEREEERARREA/NA
DRIRID PR BERE RERBRAFMN
mAEMRROES -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company has not been notified BENFBREEN NZZEZ—AF+=A
by any persons (other than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had =+—H8 HBEEAT(TBEANTESS
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which BETRABR)HEeRNATERRNA TG SHE
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of BRmT  BERBESNHEGKRNEXVE
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the FIREIDLHEARANAREE - 6%
Company under Section 336 of the SFO. RIBEES R EFIIEBERARERE
hERRAGESSLE -

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed below, no contracts concerning BTIXFEBRNEEEET I ER AR
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of the A EET I R F A AR ERNARSEF B AT
Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year. PHUHEBALNEENTESRTHEBNEL
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Cooperation Agreement for China B shares dealing and broking

On 17 June 2010, a cooperation agreement was entered into between Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan") (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 3| December 2012)
whereby Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would maintain a China
B share trading account with Guotai Junan and place orders on behalf of its
customers to Guotai Junan. Guotai Junan would then execute the orders using
its China B shares trading platform. As the cooperation agreement expired on 31
December 2012, the parties entered into a renewed cooperation agreement on 31
December 2012 to continue the transaction contemplated under the agreement
for 3 years. As disclosed in the announcement dated 31 December 2012, the
proposed annual amount of commission payable by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited to Guotai Junan for the 3 years ended 3| December 2013, 2014
and 2015 should not exceed HK$7.2 million.

Due to the high trading volume of B shares in 2015, the commission amount paid
by Guotai Junan Securities(Hong Kong) Limited to Guotai Junan has been increasing.
As such, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Guotai Junan entered
into a Supplemental Cooperation Agreement on 16 September 2015 to revise the
annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2015 from HK$7.2 million to HK$ 15
million. The revised annual cap is determined with reference to historical amount
of commission paid and the forecast of trading volume of China B shares for the
year ending 3| December 2015. All other existing terms and conditions under the
renewed cooperation agreement remain unchanged. The total commission paid to
Guotai Junan for the year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately HK$9.2
million which is also set out in Note 39a(i) to the financial statements on page 187

to 192 of this annual report.
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Consultancy Service Agreement

On 17 June 2010, a service agreement was entered into between Guotai Junan
(Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Guotai Junan
Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited (which was subsequently amended
by two supplemental agreements dated 19 April 2011 and 31 December 2012
respectively) whereby Guotai Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co,, Limited
would provide consultancy services relating to project management and economic
information as well as marketing and planning to Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited.
As the service agreement expired on 31 December 2012, the parties entered into
a renewed service agreement on 31 December 2012 to continue the transaction
contemplated under such agreement for 3 years. As disclosed in the announcement
dated 31 December 2012, for each of the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014
and 2015, the proposed annual consultancy fee payable by Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited to Guotai Junan (Shenzhen) Co., Limited in connection with the
services provided under the renewed service agreement would be no more than
HK$ 15 million. The total consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan Consultancy Services
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited for the year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
HK$14.6 million which is also set out in Note 39(a)(ii) to the financial statements
on pages 187 to 192 of this annual report.
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Investment Advisory Agreement and Client Agreement

On Il August 2010, an advisory agreement was entered into between Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan, the investment manager of a
Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors (QDII) collective investment plan (the
"QDII Scheme”), namely FIRE LR B BB LE R EEERTEl (Guotai Junan
Jun Fu Xiang Jiang Collective Investment Plan), which was amended by two
supplemental agreements dated 27 September 2011 and 31 December 2012
respectively). Under the advisory agreement, Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited
was appointed as an investment advisor of the QDII Scheme and be entitled to

advisory fee.

On 15 September 2010, a client agreement was entered into between Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Guotai Junan, the investment manager
of the QDII Scheme, which was amended by two supplemental agreements on 27
September 201 | and 31 December 2012 respectively. Under the client agreement,
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide securities brokerage

services to the QDI Scheme and be entitled to commission income.

On 25 September 2010, the relevant parties entered into agreements under
which all rights and obligations of Guotai Junan as the investment manager of the
QDI Scheme have been transferred to F BRI ELZESHEEEEAR A A
(Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets Management Limited), a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Guotai Junan.
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As the above-mentioned agreements expired on 31 December 2012, the parties
entered into renewed agreements on 31 December 2012 to continue the
transactions contemplated under such agreements for 3 years. As disclosed in
the announcement dated 31 December 2012, for each of the years ended 31
December 2013, 2014 and 2015, the proposed annual fees payable by the QDI
Scheme to Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited under the renewed agreements would be no more than HK$4.5
million. The total fees paid by the QDII Scheme for the year ended 3| December
2015 was approximately HK$449,000 which are also set out in Note 3%9a(v) to the

financial statements on pages 187 to 192 of this annual report.
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Service Agreement

On [ July 2012, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
entered into a Securities Investment Consultancy Service Agreement (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2012)
under which Guotai Junan will provide securities investment consultancy services to
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, including but not limited to research
reports, market news and updates and commentaries, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited will pay service fee to Guotai Junan quarterly based on the actual
amount of services Guotai Junan has provided during the quarter. As disclosed in
the announcement dated 31 December 2012, the estimated maximum amount
of service fee under the Securities Investment Consultancy Service Agreement
would not exceed RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,750,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2013, RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,625,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014 and RMB6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,500,000) for the year ended 31 December
2015 respectively. There was no service fee incurred by the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2015.
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Client Agreements

On 9 August 2012, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (the Company's
intermediate holding company) and Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited
have entered into two Client Agreements for futures trading on the same terms
(which were subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31
December 2012), pursuant to which Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited
maintained two futures trading accounts at Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong)
Limited for futures trading in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars respectively, Guotai
Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide brokerage services to Guotai
Junan Financial Holdings Limited. The commission income charged by Guotai
Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited would be based on the market rate, i.e. price
receivable from independent third parties for the similar services under ordinary
commercial transactions, and the commission is payable on the settlement day

under the relevant market practice.

On | November 2012, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited have entered into a Client Agreement for securities trading (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 3| December 2012),
pursuant to which Guotai Junan maintained an account at Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited for securities trading, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited agreed to provide securities brokerage services to Guotai Junan. The
commission income charged by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would
be based on the market rate, i.e. price receivable from independent third parties for
the similar services under ordinary commercial transactions, and the commission is

payable on the settlement day under the relevant market practice.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT

EF &

R-F-——F\ANE  BHEZELH
ERARRAR (KREHRNERAR)
HERELHE (FE) ARAFK
HRGFT MO EERERZHNE
Fh#E (KEHA-Z——F+-A4
=t BENERREETE) - BEEE
EReRERERAINEFELYE
(B8) BRAFHRMERERHE
P oRIABTRETETHRER S
MBEHFELHE (&) BRARAE
MEZRE % & BIERARAARELL
R - BREZHE (B8) ARAF
BERNBERATZETHEXREE
AEREBEXSEN TRUFERS
JENCB N £ =TT ERS - WIRBEBRM
SEINGEERNENAT -

RZZE——F+—H—H BEXBELHE
BRERESR (B8) BRAREL—
NEBEARRZNEFPHES (KAH
AB-E——F+_A=+—HNEEH
ZBETE)  BUBRRELTREZELE
% (%) BRARAZ—EAZLFRS
RFE - MBERELRES (F8) ARA
AREMBERE RIREBFCLRS -
BRELES (B8) ARAFWERE
BeWATBEMSERET - AR
BREERZER T RERE RS ELE
MEZFHER - WREBEEMSEN
REFAZHERES -



On 4 June 2014, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited have entered into two Client Agreements (the “New Client
Agreements”) for securities trading, pursuant to which Guotai Junan Financial
Holdings Limited opened and maintained two securities trading accounts at Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited for its equity trading and fixed income
products trading respectively. Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited agreed
to provide securities brokerage services to Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited.
The commission income charged by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
would be based on the prevailing market rate, i.e. price receivable from independent
third parties for similar services under ordinary commercial transactions, and the

commission is payable on the settlement day a s a market practice.

On 25 June 2014, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited entered into a supplemental agreement in order to
regulate, among the other matters, the transaction contemplated under the New
Client Agreements. Under the supplemental agreement, Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited agreed to continue to provide securities brokerage services
to Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and would continue to receive the
prescribed commission income from Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited. The
expiry date of the New Client Agreements has been amended to 31 December
2015. Upon expiry, the New Client Agreements will, subject to compliance with
the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and agreement of the parties,
be renewed for a further term of three years. For each of the two years ending
31 December 2014 and 2015, the estimated annual cap amount of commission

income under the New Client Agreements will be HK$30 million.
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As the transactions under the above-mentioned Client Agreements were all related
to the Group's provision of brokerage services to its controlling shareholders,
the transactions would need to be aggregated pursuant to the Listing Rules. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 26 June 2014, the aggregate proposed annual
caps for the transactions under the above-mentioned Client Agreements would be
HK$47 million for each of the years ended 3| December 2014 and 2015.

The commission eared by the Group from Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited
and Guotai Junan were HK$2,027,000 and HK$301,000 which also set out in Note
39(vi) and (vii) to the financial statement on pages 187 to 192 of this annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and

confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group

than terms available to/from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.
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In accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the above mentioned continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Review of
Historical Financial Information” (“HKSAE 3000") and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (“PN740") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and
with reference to PN740 that the transactions:

() have been approved by the Board of the Company;
(i) arein accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the relevant CAPs disclosed in the announcements

dated 31 December 2012, 26 June 2014, and 16 September 2015.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 29 January 2014, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guotai
Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (as borrower), entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement A”) with certain financial institutions (as lenders) in respect of a revolving loan
facility and a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of HK$3,300 million for a term of 3

years.

On 29 April 2015, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guotai
Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (as borrower), entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement B, together withe Facility Agreement A, the “Facility Agreements”) with
certain financial institutions (as lenders) in respect of a revolving loan facility and a term

loan facility in an aggregate amount of HK$10,500 million for a term of 3 years.

Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Guotai Junan Securities
Co, Ltd, the controlling shareholder of the Company, does not, or ceases to directly or
indirectly own, legally and beneficially, at least 51% of the interest of the Company. In case
of an event of default, the lenders may, by notice to borrower (i) cancel all or part of the
loan; and/or (i) declare all or part of the loan, together with accrued interest, and all other
amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility Agreements be immediately due and

payable and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loan become payable on demand.

BONUS ISSUE
On 9 July 2015, the Company completed a bonus issue (the “Bonus Issue”) and
4,619,758,070 bonus shares (the “Bonus Shares”) were issued under the Bonus Issue on

the basis of two Bonus Shares for every one share held on the record date, which was 30

June 2015.

The Bonus Shares have been allotted and issued to the qualifying shareholders without
any consideration payable by the qualifying shareholders or capitalisation of any reserves
of the Company; hence, there has been no change in the amount of the Company's
share capital. As there has been no money remaining unpaid by any shareholders to the
Company on the Bonus Shares, the Company has allotted the Bonus Shares as fully-paid

shares, ranking pari passu with the shares then existing in all respects.
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Pursuant to the Company's Share Option Scheme, Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules and
the Company's Share Award Scheme, as a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments have
been made to the exercise price and the number of shares subject to the outstanding
options and the number of shares held under the Company's Share Award Scheme as at

9 July 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
As at 31 December 2015, none of the Board members of the Company and their
associates had any interests in an entity whose business competes or is likely to compete,

either directly or indirectly, with the Company's business.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Subject to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), every
Director is entitled under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which he or she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution or discharge of his or her duties and/or the exercise of
his or her powers and/or otherwise in relation to or in connection with his or her duties,
powers or office. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance, the Company has taken
out insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending any proceedings

which may be brought against directors of companies in the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total number of issued shares was held
by the public throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 44 of this report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the

Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is committed to improve the standard of corporate governance to its daily
operation and management. The management has been putting effort in maintaining the
Company's sense of responsibility towards the community and environment, to improving
general awareness of social and environmental responsibilities among employees and to
encouraging its employees to actively participate in environmental and social activities
as contributions towards the building of a more socially responsible and environmental

friendly society.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young who will retire and being
eligible and offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company to be held on 19 May 2016.

By order of the Board
Dr. Yim Fung, JP

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

e
EY::

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out
on pages 77 to 222, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such intemal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
| Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BY FTARE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of
their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
|8 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEsERkEMEEHKER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE - F-nf1t-H=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E2-1% —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TRT
Notes (Restated)
Pt (&g8751)
Revenue Yo as 5 2,276,608 1,656,582
Other income Hp g A 1,899 4459
Revenue and other income Wogs B B M A 2,278,507 1,661,041
Staff costs BIHRA 6 (505,649) (368,622)
Commission to account executives CY S ik (118,530) (68,477)
Other commission expenses HinBeR< (34,563) (33,747)
Performance fee expenses KRB (5,622) (2,037)
Depreciation e (28,664) (23,643)
Net impairment charge on loans and BTEPHERRBFRERE
advances to customers 16 (173) (92)
Net impairment charge on accounts receivable  JEU IR R B 8 18(a) (5,335) (2,750)
Other operating expenses HiRERX (162,287) (137,295)
Operating profit &R A 1,417,684 1,024,378
Finance costs =N 7 (249,562) (95,162)
Profit before tax BRBEAD R F 8 1,168,122 929216
Income tax expense ST 9 (152,689) (127,301
Profit for the year FREA 1,015,433 801915
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEERE - HKRHE
net of tax
— Exchange difference on translation —NEFE S Z
of foreign exchange (125) —
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2HKEEE 1,015,308 801,915
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBRakHEt2ERER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F—nh+—A=1—HIFE

2015 2014
—E2-1% —T-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TRT
Notes (Restated)
Pt (&g8751)
Profit for the year attributable to: FE4k F RIE A :
— Owners of the parent —BARHEEA 1,013,541 799,791
— Non-controlling interests — MRS 1,892 2,124
1,015,433 801,915
Total comprehensive income for EBEER2EKREHE
the year attributable to:
— Owners of the parent —BARHEEA 1,013,416 799,791
— Non-controlling interests — RS 1,892 2,124
1,015,308 801,915
Earnings per share attributable to BAREBERRRELEREF
ordinary equity holders of the parent
— Basic (in HK cents) —BEAR(LABALE) Il(2) 14.9 139
— Diluted (in HK cents) — 85 (DAUBILED) 11(b) 14.6 137

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 3/ December 2015
R-E—a#+=H=1—H

2015 2014
—E-1% —T-mE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P % TERr THERT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 12 512,166 513,503
Intangible assets BVEE 3 2,823 2823
Deferred tax assets BETIRAE 15 576 24
Other assets HhEE 14 5,043 5,151
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A FEFFABZNEMEE 20 120,141 —
Total non-current assets ERBEELH 640,749 521,501

Current assets RBEE

Loans and advances to customers RTEPHNERRBK 16 12,375,857 9,099,164
Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements [ i) [0 8% 75 22 FE Mt 5408 22 509,695 —
Accounts receivable [E WK TE 18 1,932,119 1,001,103
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TBTFRIE - 2 KA B KGR 19 258,782 128,852
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss I A FET ABEHNEMEE 20 4,506,947 1,353,089
Derivative financial instruments TEERMIA 21 24,952 1,766
Tax recoverable A E R 8,677 211
Client trust bank balances RPERRTER 14,662,991 9,009,909
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkReEEY 23 2,408,666 889,286
Total current assets REBEEARE 36,688,686 21,483,380
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEPBRRR

As at 3/ December 2015
REF-a#F+=A=1—H

2015 2014
—E2-1% —T-mEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i TR TRT
Current liabilities RBAE
Accounts payable JERTTRIE 24 (18,218312) (10,004,468)
Other payables and accrued liabilities H {th FE 1 3008 R T AR 25 (259,942) (196,665)
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMmIE 21 (29,766) (1,766)
Bank borrowings FITER 26 (4,765,662) (3472,719)
Debt securities in issue BRETEEES 27 (2,358,088) (171,123)
— At amortised cost 3 [N (429,040) (171,123)
— Designated as at fair value through —EERATEFABR
profit or loss (1,929,048) —
Financial liabilities at fair value through BATEABRNERAE
profit or loss 28 (505,340) —
Obligations under repurchase agreements [ & A 1 29 (400,517) =
Tax payable ERTRIE (44,282) (69,718)
Total current liabilities RBAREAR (26,581,909) (13916,459)
Net current assets RBEERE 10,106,777 7,566,921
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBEE 10,747,526 8,088,422
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITERK 26 (3,090,000) (990,000)
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEAR 15 (22,269) (33,208)
(3,112,269) (1,023,208)
Net assets BEFE 7,635,257 7065214
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 3/ December 2015
R-E—a#+=H=1—H

2015 2014
—E2-1% —T-mEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i T THERT
Equity Ei
Share capital R 30 6,004,362 5,852,194
Other reserve Hi AR 34 (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve BB A (125) -
Share-based compensation reserve PARR D R BT B A 95417 77,580
— Share option reserve —BRERAE 31 44,469 63,696
— Share award reserve — Bt B 32 50,948 3,884
Shares held under the share award scheme RR ) REN Bl A MR D 33 (199,643) (102,897)
Retained profits REEH 2,960,013 2,464,996
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BARREAR ARG ER 7,623,564 7055413
Non-controlling interests R 11,693 9,801
Total equity A 7,635,257 7065214
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. QI Haiying
Mgt WEELL
Director Director
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERSBR

Year ended 31 December 2015

BE-F—hF+=A=1—HIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BARERARLER
Shares
held under
the share
Currency Share Share award Non-
transfation option award  scheme controlling
Share Share Other  reserve  reserve  reserve MREMR  Retained interests Total
apill  premum  reserve EMEE  BRE R REHE  profis Tou  FER  eqiy
BE  ROEE HbfE fita i RERE HEORG REEN it B REEE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEx TEx TEx TEr THxr TEx TEx TEx  TEx  TEn  TEx
Balance at | January 2015 R=Z-1-A-A
g 5,852,194 — (1,236,460) — 6369 13884 (102897) 246499 7055413 9801 7,065214
Total comprehensive income ERTENELE
for the year = = = (125) = = — 1013541 1013416 1,892 1015308
Recognition of equity-settled BANERHEURA A
share-based payments ERnNR
(Notes 31 and 32) (PEE31 R 32) — = - — 03 78S - — o8l — o078l
Purchases of shares held under BERERMZEEM
the share award scheme FAENRA (M)
(Note 33) = = = = = — (11989 —  (119897) —  (119897)
Vesting of shares for the share TR EISER
award scheme (Notes 2and 33) (M3 R33) — - - = — (418 23151 17,530 (906) = (906)
Shares issued upon exercise of share  RER R HERT &I T RBE AR AE
options under the share BiEmETHRA
option scheme (Note 31) (RzE31) 152,168 - - — (41357 - - — gl - logll
Final dividend paid for 2014 XAZE-MERERS
(Note 10) (P 10) - - - = - - —  (296787) (29678) - (29787)
Interim dividend paid for 2015 THZZ-nE+hERS
(Note 10) (RtzE10) = = = = - - —  (39267) (239267) - (39267)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE1+ZA
=Bk 6,004,362 — (1,236,460) (125) 44469 50948 (199,643) 2960013 7623564 11693 7635257
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE - F-nf1t-H=1+—HIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BRARAAEEES

Shares
held under
the share
Currency Share Share award Non-
trandlation option award  scheme controlling
Share Share Other  reseve  reseve  reseve  IRIEMR(D  Retained interests Total
capitl  premium resee  BHAE  BRE Ry #EE profits Totd  FiER equity
BA BOEE HHEE il s RBEE SEORD REEN & BE  EReR
HKP000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKPOOO  HKF000  HKFOOO  HK$000  HK$000  HK$OO0  HK$000
Ter Tt  TEr  TEn T Thexr TEr  TEr  TEr  TExr  TEn
Balance at | January 2014 R-E-IE
i = :0f5 172,765 2959240 (1236460) — 3998 9054 (56702) 2051745 3939640 7677 39471317
Transfer on 3 March 2014 (Note 30) R=Z—WF=A=A
B (E30) 2959240 (2959,240) - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive ER2ERELE
income for the year = = = = = = = 7%0 7% 2124 801915
Shares issued upon placement REERAMETHRG
of shares (Note 30) (FzF30) 687,23 — — — - - — — I — 1B
Recognition of equity-settled RN ERHE
share-based payments SABRAD BERRR
(Notes 31 and 32) GEEIDEN) — — - — g 310 - - 8 — a7
Purchases of shares heldunder BB BIERMEEHEIM
the share award scheme (Note 33) BRI (Hf3E33) = — — — - — (66869) —  (66869) —  (66869)
Vesting of shares for the share R LB 2SRRI
award scheme (Notes 22and 33 (HFEE321233) = = = = — (262 20673 5549 = = =
Shares issued upon exercise of BRIt 2l TR E
share options under the share C SUGERED
option scheme (Note 31) (P31) 28,102 - - — (%) - - — 19I5 — 19I5
Shares issued upon rights issue RitRmETHRI 2004864 — — — - - — — 2004864 — 004864
Final dividend paid for 2013 THZF-=FKHks
(Note 10) (FzE10) = = = - - - — (47%)  (427%) —  (4279%)
Interim dividend paid for 2014 N E-mEPHRE
(Note 10) (P 10) — — - = - - —(149293)  (149299) - (14929)
Balance as at 31 December 2014~ WZE—-TIE+ZA
=Bk 5852194 —  (1236460) — 63696 13884 (102897) 246499 7055413 9801 7065214
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F—nh+—A=1—HIFE

2015 2014
—2-1F Z—TMF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5E TER TAET
Net cash flows used in operating activities REFBMAREREFHE 37 (3,484,267) (2,749,662)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEREE 12 (27,327) (18,112)
Proceeds from disposal of property, TEME  BENREMREIIE
plant and equipment 70 I3
Net cash flows used in investing activities REGBMAREMEF (27,257) (18,099)
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Net proceeds from bank borrowings fET TRRPERIEFHE 3,392,943 1,076,606
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities TEBESFEHIE 3,726,049 439,262
Repayment of debt securities 1@ REBER (1,539,084) (592,845)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares upon RELE R M EITRG FEHIEFE
placement of shares 30 = 687,223
Net proceeds from rights issue WIS R F 5 30 — 2,004,864
Net proceeds from issuance of shares Rk R TR mE TR
upon exercise of share options PG IR 31 110,811 19,115
Dividend paid to shareholders SN ST &) (539,793) (395,605)
Purchase of shares held under BERERD B &M FA RN
the share award scheme 33 (119,897) (66,868)
Net cash flows from financing activities RETHREREF 5,031,029 3,171,752
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERREEB/MENER 1,519,505 403991
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FORELREFED 889,286 485,295
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEHNTEERE (125) =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRASRREEEY 2,408,666 889,286
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents RERREEBYNERIN
Cash and bank balances Be RRIT#ER 23 1,340,967 658,069
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity B4tk REH B A =B A /)
of less than three months when acquired AEHEHER 23 1,067,699 231,217
2,408,666 889,286

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company™) was incorporated
on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability under the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and its shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) on 8 July
2010. The registered office address of the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block,
Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company
is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
brokerage, loans and financing, corporate finance, asset management, investment

holding and market making.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding company are
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”) incorporated in the

People's Republic of China, respectively.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

—R&EH
RHEELERERERAR(ARA])
AR -_Z-ZTFE=-AN\BREEFERA
EH(FenE)EEBEMALNAR
AR ARAMBHR -_FT-—FFLA
NEEBEMARZMARNR([HR
P ERLET - ARBI MR RN
I REBEERERAETD 181 FILTTESE
B8 - ARRRREERRAR - AR
BRARIENELL EXRRE &
FRE BERE REZERMMWE
7% o

ARRINERZRD R RREER AT
DHAREBRLESEMALNESR
ARERERAR([HRERER]) R
NP EARKAMBEMAZNERE R
ARRNBRAB(TERER]) -

RZZ—RFE+-F=1+—H WHEL
ElEINE

Percentage of equity
Place of attributable
incorporation to the Company
and business FAAEERER AL
Company name AR Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
NRER BEE Bx E# Mg IERH
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (“GJHK") Samoa/ Hong Kong HK$4,031,701,070 100% — Investment holding and provision of general
B%XA%R (B) ARATA BED/BE 4031701 07078 7T administration and support services to its
([ERERER] ) subsidiaries
REARRDAMBARRE-RER kR
i
Guotai Junan Intemational (Singapore) Singapore 5G$300,000 100% Investment holding and provision of general
Holding Pte Limited? gt 30000087 A3 7T administration and support services to its

subsidiaries
REZRRRENBLARG—RERRR
073
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

—RER B
R-_ZE-RE+-A=1+—H HBA
AIMFENT : ()

I.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) I

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as follows: (continued)

8

Percentage of equity

Place of attributable

incorporation to the Company

and business FAAEERER AL
Company name MR LR Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
NAER mEwy Rx =E:4 BE IEER
Guotai Junan Intemational Asset Singapore 5G$300,000 - 100%  Asset management

Management (Singapore) Pte Limited” 71 300,000 ALK T BEEE
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$4,700,000,000 — 100%  Securities dealing and broking and provision of
Limited B8 4700,000000787C wealth management services

BFERES (BE) ARLA ERRERBRN RN EEE RS
Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 = 100%  Futures dealing and broking
ERELHR (FE) BRAA &R 50000000787 HEEEREL
Guotai Junan Finance (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong HK$300,000,000 — 100%  Money lending and trading in securtties
BEREZHY (F8) ARAA Bk 30000000077 BENERER
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 = 100%  Provision of consuftancy and financial services
ERERREARAT &R 50000000787 FR ik R A T RS
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Asset management
HFELAEEE (BM) ARDA  FE 5000000077 BEER
Guotai Junan Fund Management Limited'  Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 = 50%  Asset management and trading in secuntties
BREZESERARLA &8 10,000,000 7C BEEENEREE
Guotai Junan Financial Products Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 100%  Trading in securities
BAREZ e REMARLA EE 1000000727 B5RE
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 = 100%  Leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking
EREZINERRAT &R 30,000,000 7T BREMNER A RELR

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Note |1 The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and operating

policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or remove the

majority of the members of its board of directors.

Note 2: During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has incorporated the
entities in order to carry out the investment holding and asset management

business in Singapore.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 18 March 2016.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, debt
securities in issue designated as at fair value through profit or loss and derivative

financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

2.1

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

—RER @)

MEEl: RARAKREERNZEXERE
EERLHKE  BAKERR
ARENEEXERBNMBREE
R o

RBE-Z-AFtT-A=1—
ALLEE  AEEEMAIZE
B EANEREREZRR
BEEBER -

BizE2 :

ZERBRRERZZ—RF=ATN
RESEefa IR -

mRER
RERBHRRTIREEEGHMAE
([BERGFEAE )RMNE LR
ERA((EBMBREER] - ABEM
RERBEMBREEN  BEGTE
B(TEBEs R R2E)  BEAR
SHRARBEBRARIGIGRE - RED
FEAFARENEREENERAE
EERATEAFABRSMNERTESEE
FRITESRIANATERNEN Z
FHMHHRRCREBEEL KBRS -
RRBEH  GRIRFHBRERIAE
T2 BEMEBEENEAANEER
B TAIE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (ie., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,

and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

@)

Change in accounting policy

In prior years, fees received or paid in connection with securities borrowing
and lending were recorded as handling income or handling expense under
the brokerage business. To align with the accounting policy of Guotai Junan,
fees received or paid are reclassified into interest income or expense under
the loans and financing business. The change in accounting policy has been
accounted for retrospectively and these financial statements have been
restated to conform with current year's presentation. The effect of the

change in accounting policy is summarised below:

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

EHREDRKE

(@)

BHBREH

FF - BREFEERERRZ A
BRSESRERFEERART
BERY - REBNRELTNEHEK
B FUREIANERE
MOBRERKBEEBHSRA
FFEY o R REMEBHREHRA
& BEIIZEHBRRATE

EF2IAR - GHBREHNY
T

For the year ended

3| December

BE+-A=t-BLHFE

2015 2014

—2-1f _—T-@F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T TR

Increase in interest income from securities B EEMS AL M

borrowing and lending 26,549 19910
Decrease in handling income FEBUARD (26,549) (19.910)

Increase in finance costs BB R AL N 1,659 1,784
Decrease in other operating expenses Hi &R R (1,659) (1,784)
Apart from the above changes, the change in accounting policy has had B bt &g - et BEg ey

no impact on the other financial statement line items. Therefore, the
consolidated statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest

comparative period has not been prepared.

tEHRRA L EYE - Akl
RARERRF L BHRENES
MBRRE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZEF-A¥Ff+ZA=1—H
22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 22 EHBREPRKES)
(continued)
(b)  The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first time (b) FEECHRAFEMNTBERRENX

for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS /9 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle

The nature and the impact of each amendment are described below:

. Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from employees or
third parties to defined benefit plans. The amendments simplify the
accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of
years of employee service, for example, employee contributions that
are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the amount
of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service,
an entity is permitted to recognise such contributions as a reduction
of service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered.
The amendments have had no impact on the Group as the Group

does not have defined benefit plans.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)  The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first time

for the current year’s financial statements. (continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in
January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. None of
the amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the amendments which are relevant to the

Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must
disclose the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief description
of operating segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision

maker.

J HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party subject to
related party disclosure requirements. In addition, an entity that
uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses

incurred for management services.

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)
(b)  The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements. (continued)
. The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle issued in
January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. None of
the amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact on
the Group. Details of the amendment which is relevant to the Group

are as follows:

. HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the portfolio
exception in HKFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial
assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as applicable. The
amendment is applied prospectively from the beginning of the

annual period in which HKFRS |3 was initially applied.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into effect for the first time
during the current financial year. The main impact to the financial statements
is on the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the financial

statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

23 CEMEHREMNEBHBRE
3
AEBRANZERBREPERAUT
ERME R AR EROHET REEFTEE
MBMEER -

Effective for financial

years beginning on/after

Standard Content RT3 R#s 2%
%8 AR RN BEEE N
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments | January 2018
BRMBREEREIR LHLA —T-\f—-f-H
Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate | January 2016
10 and HKAS 28 (201 1) or Joint Venture —T-RF-HA—H
BRMBEREER REFZHABLHAE ELXZANEELERTE
F 0 REBBE
R 2855 (BT A)
(Z%——%F)
Amendments to HKFRS Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception | January 2016
10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
BRMBREER REERE : BHGEEAKNDIIMER —F—"F-H—H
F105% - BEMBRS
ERE 12K REE G
EAIE 28R (EFTA)
(Z2—F)
Amendments to HKFRS | Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations | January 2016
BRMBEREER WEREXBR BB % “T-R"¥-A-H
ERILACCHIRS)
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts | January 2016
BERMBWMERRE 145% HEELKE —E-R"F—H—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers | January 2018
ERMBRERANE 5% EFAAMKE “Z-\f-A-H

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |

9



o

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.3
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

ERMERHRERNELHBRE

R (%)

Effective for financial

years beginning on/after

Standard Content RT3 R#s 2%
%8 AR BN BEEEXR
Amendments to HKAS | Disclosure Initiative | January 2016
BERGERE |5 REi1E —F—"F—H—H
SCHEN,
Amendments to HKAS Clantfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation | January 2016
|6 and HKAS 38 BB ERBHTEZ T2 “F-A"%¥-A-H
BERETERE 1651
BB EHERIE 385
(fE5T )
Amendments to HKAS Agniculture: Bearer Plants | January 2016
16 and HKAS 41 BE LEMREY —F-A"¥—A—-A
BRAGEMZ 61
BRERERE 415
SCHEN,
Amendments to HKAS Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements | January 2016
27 (2011) B BRE B % —E-~"E—H—H
BRETERE TR
(BRIXR)(Z2——%F)
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs | January 2016
2012-20/4 Cycle ZRE B HHEER(BETL) —Z-X"F¥—-A—H
“TZFEIT R
BHIF R e
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the

Group is as follows:
S HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from | January 2018.
The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on
the classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets. Further
information about the impact will be available nearer the implementation

date of the standard.
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

. HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS |5 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In September 2015, the HKICPA issued an
amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral of the mandatory
effective date of HKFRS 15 to | January 2018. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 15 on | January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 5.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23 BEMEERERNEBHERE
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) %R 2)
. Amendments to HKAS | Disclosure Initiative C BEDETERNE | ST H T
El
Amendments to HKAS | include narrow-focus improvements in respect of RS ERE | KRB HEY
the presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The amendments MHRREAN 2T R BEEHERN A
clarify: B EOE - ZZEFTES
(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS ; (y BAESTENEIFANE
RERRE
(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and other (i) EBERkEtEEREREH
comprehensive income and the statement of financial position may be BN KRANETIEE T
disaggregated;, an
(iil)  that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the (i) BREILFEEEIUHERRM
notes to financial statements; and ANEFHEERENE K
(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint (v) FEREZEARND GBS
ventures accounted for using the equity method must be presented in NAIREGERRIMEMEE
aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that WM BIEEERIER ER
will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. 27 VEESeTeH

BEFHIBEBRRNZEE
EFEITHEE -

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when PO - ZE B BER IR
additional subtotals are presented in the statement of financial position and MESEhEMEIEWERAZRYEE
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group SVPNEHEEARETE o AEETEH
expects to adopt the amendments from | January 2016. The amendments R-E—RE— A —BRENZS
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial 1BE] - ZE BRI HAER
statements. MR BRREEAMNEATE
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31 December 2015
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable

Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in HKAS 16
and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattem or economic benefits that are
generated from operating business (of which the asset is part) rather than
the economic benefits that are consumed through the use of the asset. As
a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption on | January 2016
as the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of

depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle issued in October
2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from | January 2016. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the

amendments are as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (continued)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Clarifies that the disclosures in
respect of the offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities in HKFRS 7
are not required in the condensed interim financial statements, except where
the disclosures provide a significant update to the information reported
in the most recent annual report, in which case the disclosures should be

included in the condensed interim financial statements.

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits: Clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds used for discounting the post-employment benefit
obligation for defined benefit plans is assessed based on the currency
in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where
the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality

corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: Clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated
by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever
they are included within the interim financial report. The amendments also
specify that the information within the interim financial report must be
available to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and

at the same time.
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments, fund investments, debt
investments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level | — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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31 December 2015
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss

is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset

to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such

parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Shorter of the
remaining lease

term and the

useful life of
Leasehold land under finance leases the buildings
Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible

asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights to trade on or
through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) and The
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. These
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from

indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of these leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the
lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Al regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective

hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest eamned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance

with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the

criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
revenue in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group

of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all

collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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31 December 2015
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carnied at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

operating expenses in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments
The Group's derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at their fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently

remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value

of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whilst the Group enters into a derivative contract for trading purposes or to
provide economic hedges under the Group's risk management framework, it does

not apply hedge accounting,
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts and other payables, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, bank borrowings, obligations under
repurchase agreements and debt securities in issue. The Group determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified

at inception and recognised initially at fair value.
S Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for trading, and

those designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is carried at fair value and
any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the

criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
S Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, accounts payable and interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the share
award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and

the consideration is recognised in equity.

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised financial
institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal business transactions. The
Group has classified the clients’ monies as client trust bank balances under the
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Group is
allowed to retain some or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies and
recognised corresponding accounts payable to the respective customers in the
current liabilities clients on grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’ monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap
571) and the Hong Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance (Cap. 41), the Group is

not allowed to use the clients” monies to settle its own obligation.
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31 December 2015
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the Group provides
brokerage and asset management services of which the Group acts in a fiduciary
capacity and results in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of its customers.
These assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are not included in these
financial statements as the Group has no contractual rights to these assets and its

gains or losses under fiduciary activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets

similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock Exchange,
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited and other regulators. They are intended to be held on a long-term basis

and are stated at cost less impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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31 December 2015
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT

24

TREHERBEE)
FiEsi (&)
FAERRHERZRGSRIDETHE

BE - EATERAIS :

o FEBAHNRZTEIGHERR
BREEXAEMELNELTHRR
E'ﬁﬁ%x%ﬁmﬂﬁﬂﬁ%
win B EEKTE

o HRPRRAMBAANEANESR
HEBEAME - BEEHERD
FRAES - MEEEER T
T &1 R HAE -

HBRABA THRMNERZE  ARR
@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ%
RELEHREE - A RABELRERM
HMANEEZ S HRERZE - &
AARBARBEERRADARABE
BIEREHABEA BRAR - AT
RIS -

o FEBAHNISZTIREREE
FREMELAHRERZBNE
EHEBEE  MEBIXZHE #ﬁ
M ERGBEEBERRETE -

o HRNPRRHEBARNRENAH
REREZRME AAHERER
RATRER AT R AR B - AARABE
3 ERB R AI AA R 2 S B
EHE JERDETRABE



Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

() commission income from securities, futures and options brokerage, on the

transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged;

(i) net income from leveraged foreign exchange transactions, on the contract

dates;

(i) commission income from the provision of insurance brokerage services, on

an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements;
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

)

(vi)

(viii)

(x0)

commission income from underwriting/placing/sub-underwriting in securities,
on execution of each significant act based on the terms of underlying

agreements and mandates;

management, consultancy, financial advisory fees and handling income, when

the services have been rendered,

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive payment has been

established;

performance fees, on the day of the investment funds and managed accounts
when there is a positive performance for the relevant performance period,
taking into consideration the relevant basis of calculation for the investment

funds and managed accounts;

information services income, when the services have been rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease term; and

net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
those held for trading, include realised gains/losses which are recognised on
the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and
unrealised fair value gains/losses which are recognised in the period in which

they arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

@

®)

©

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when

contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on an
approved formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Group after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation
schemes including a share option scheme and a share award scheme for the
purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as

consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

©

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The cost
of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in the “share award reserve” and “share option reserve” under
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in share-based compensation expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the

beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for
equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or
non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all

other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value
of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of earmnings per share.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. In prior years, final dividends proposed by the
directors were classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Following the implementation of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), proposed final dividends are disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a

liability when they are proposed and declared.
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business with
financial institutions and the Group's customers, under which all transactions
are secured in the form of cash. The Group maintains no net position in such
securities borrowing and lending transactions and is not subject to significant price
risk. However, under the securities borrowing and lending arrangement, the cash
collateral received and cash collateral placed is included in the accounts payable and
accounts receivable from brokers and dealers respectively. Fees received or paid in
connection with securities borrowing and lending is recorded as interest income or

interest expense, respectively.

Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

In addition, the Group may enter into repurchase agreements whereby securities
are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to repurchase the securities
at a specified date. The securities related to these agreements are not derecognised
from the Group's financial statements, but are retained within the appropriate
financial assets classification. The Group may be required to provide additional

collateral based on the fair value of the underlying assets if necessary.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos)

The Group may enter into purchases of assets under agreements to resell. Reverse
repos are initially recorded at the cost of the loan or collateral advanced in the
consolidated statement of financial position. These securities are not recognised in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as the counterparty retains
substantially all risks and returns of the securities. In the event of failure by the

counterparty to repay the loan, the Group has the right to the underlying assets.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT

24

FREHERBR S

HEEE S

K‘El%%éﬁi REBLASETFPH
SEEEL  MARZUUREER

Tfﬁ?‘ﬁuwzl&‘ilﬁﬁzi}';ﬁ MEER 5 H

TEESEMFER  RUBAHEANE
BER - A REEFEERYE A
KB ReERmARAEROREE
ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁkfﬁ KIR A I MR AL 42 I
XHEPA ° S BRI

ENERD RIS AN SWALN B
Fo

/\HJ.L

REDBHELENEE(DBIHR)
B REE A BRI @B B E 0 Bt
MR ET A RMETE B 20 38 5 1
ME=ZTHERS - ARZTHENE
SRR BN BRR B HER -
MEFRENEENEREELI BN - 1
VER . RAEBARAERREBEEN
AVERERIMN AR o

REEEHA(RODBHSR) BENE
B

FEERERBEEHILETEER
B REEBHENGRRERIBNE
R KAREG R HBRRRAAR

ZEBEFANARBNOGEMBRRE

AR RARS T REEEESNE
ABORBR K@ - MR 55 REEE

B AASEERBEEHEBEE -



Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the

weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(2)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that

person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iify is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a

parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 IESHEEME®)
Related parties (continued) BHE (&)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (b) ZABRFETIEMEHHELR :
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () #RERBEAZEER-—%

=
=
Smo
s>
el

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a i)y —HEEAZ—ETBR(HS
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); —EENEAT - WBAR
HERMBRA)NEER
GIEFN- YN
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party; (il ZEBLRASEHRR—
ZHMRERA
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an vy —HEBAE=-AERNAE
associate of the third entity; ERA ME—BEBAEE
=HhERNBERT
,I 24 (v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of () ZERAEBREEMNE
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group; ZEEIMX B ABAEE
HASEREHENERNE
8
(Vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); V) ZERBBQQBEMILALHE
sk S 2
(vi) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or (viy R @) EMRATHZESR
is 2 member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a EEAVENBLEBL(
parent of the entity); and gEEEP N )T ESE
EXE R
(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides iy MAEEXMAEEBNTA
key management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of AlRBETZEEASREN
the Group. ERFEMBEBMERK
EUNGIE
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for income and
other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the

determination is made.

3.

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

ERGE AR M
NREAKENYBRERE  EEER
fEHEPENRE FAx BEREEHN
EEREH  HEMBEARIAAE
REMHE - RERR - RERR
fEEt AR E AR A BB BARAH
R ENEEXRENEREFLEX
HE -

I
RERAEESHBRBET Bk
fhats EEEBCEL TIHE - %F

BB B RRIABRRNBELEAY
&

=

BE

BEMGEH R MRARERTEFEL
ERHE - R—REBBRET  ZER
5 R BNRERBERTERETE
%E%ﬁ%ﬁ%%@%ﬁ( REL®
BIMNRBR TR AE © i %S

g

ux

/

°

‘%%JH?QH%
ot e Bt

HHOREHRER BRI CIEN
Z82 MEBMEZERESYEN
MBI AT G I BB R T A

il
i3

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |

125



126

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value
of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses as at 3| December 2015
was amounted to HK$7.0 million (2014: Nil). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2015 was approximately HK$15.7 million (2014: HK$ I 1.7

million). Further details are contained in note |5 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers and accounts

receivable

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable
to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status
of borrowers in the Group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying value of loans and receivables and thus the
impairment charge in the period in which the estimate is changed. Further details

are contained in notes |16 and 18 to the financial statements.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss that are not traded in an active market is determined by using external
valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each
reporting date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent
arm'’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by other market participants. Changes
in assumptions on the valuation techniques could affect the reported fair values
of these financial assets. Further details are contained in notes 20 and 40 to the

financial statements.
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group's senior executive management and in accordance with
HKFRSs. The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each
of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that offers
services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the

other operating segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the income arising from placing and
underwriting of debt securities as well as trading and market making of debt
securities and derivatives was reported under “Fixed income business”. The income
arising from placing and underwriting of debt securities was reclassified and included
in the corporate finance segment while that from trading and market making of
debt securities and derivatives was reclassified and included in the investment
holding and market making segment respectively for the year ended 31 December
2015.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(@

the brokerage segment engages in the provision of securities, futures, options
and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking as well as insurance

brokerage services to customers;

the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of advisory services,

placing and underwriting services of debt and equity securities;

the asset management segment engages in asset management, including fund

management and the provision of investment advisory services;

the loans and financing segment engages in the provision of margin financing
and securities borrowing and lending to margin customers, initial public

offering (“IPO™) loans, other loans to customers and bank deposits;

the investment holding and market making segment represents fund and
equity investments as well as trading and market making of debt securities

and derivatives and the provision of investment products; and

the “others” segment mainly represents rental income and the provision of

information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the prices

charged to third parties. There was no change in the basis during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014.

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

KenrHar @)
ARAREE N BOFERANT -

(a) \&_( E/ %B{ﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁh{/\ﬂu% HH
- HRERERINER B RELIA

(b) BEBENBRSRMAAARE
BB RBREE SRS KA ER

 ZBEBENHRZEEER Bf
ESEE RRBREBAR -

d) EFRBESHRERNFREPIRE
HARRERELREE MEP
RUEBRAABRE(EALAE
ENER - B ERRBITEK

(€) BWERMMEHDBEESREAK
RE BHEFRITETAEER
EHEBARREREER : Rk

 [E D BEBERSWARRE
BRERTS o

RRHZEORH(WME) H2RAE=

HEmmERmET AREERBE
F-AFRZF-MET-A=T—
AILF R REE -

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |

129



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZEF-A¥Ff+ZA=1—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, ReEsHERE)
The segment results of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2015 and HE - Z—REEK-_ZE—NE+_-A
2014 are as follows: =t—HIEFE "EEBHDBEEN
T
Year ended 3| December 2015 BE-_ZE-AE+-A=+—-HLEE
Investment
holding and
Corporate Asset  Loansand market
Brokerage finance  management financing making Others Total
g LERE EEEE BFRAE RERHS Hitr b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR THEL THEL THEL TEL TER
Segment revenue and AHhER
other income: EthlA
Sales to extemal customers  $HE FHBEP 719,945 281,447 53092 1,076,018 146,106 1899 2278507
1 30 Inter-segment sales AL FHE - - - - - - -
Total s 719,945 281,447 53,092 1,076,018 146,106 1,899 2,278,507
Segment results RIS 288,643 17,458 15,650 645,331 101,040 — Ll I2
Income tax expense A (152,689)
Profit for the year ERET 1,015,433

Other segment information: £ A &R :

Depreciation ik 9,003 7,532 474 10,655 = = 28,664
Finance costs RERK 2 — — 204,475 45,066 — 249,562
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-mF{-A=t—A
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REPHBEME)
Year ended 3| December 2014 BZE2_ZE—MNFE+-_A=1+—HLEFEE
Investment
holding and
Corporate Asset  Loans and market
Brokerage finance  management financing making Others Total
B2 G¥mE  AEEE EXR@E RARMW Efts 5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAT TET TR TAT TR TR TAT
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)  (Restated)
(@g5)) (485 (BE31) (KE5)
Segment revenue and PHRER
other income: EftlA :
Sales to extemal customers  HEFINIEP 501,646 287,825 46387 722470 98254 4459 1,661,041
Inter-segment sales AR EHE — — — — — — —
Total it 501,646 287825 46387 722470 98254 4459 1,661,041
Segment results paRE S 200,133 164,058 15,745 466,698 82,582 — 929216
Income tax expense FEHAX (127301)
Profit for the year ERgT 801915
Other segment information: ~ EMAHEH :
Depreciation & 6986 6,146 1,266 945 - - 23643
Finance costs BERA | — — 79489 15672 — 95,162

HEEEZZEBRZERERDA

2015 £ |

131



132

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

(a)  Revenue and other income from extemal customers

4.

KerRER @)
EER

(a) IEKEFYam REMMPA

2015 2014

—¥-1Ff CZT-QmF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Hong Kong BB 2,082,458 1,528,331
Other countries Hib B R 196,049 132,710
2,278,507 1,661,041

The information of revenue and other income above is based on the

location of the markets.

(b)  Non-current assets

Majority of the non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of the

Group are located in Hong Kong.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

REVENUE 5. W&
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WHRN AT :
2015 2014
—B-1F —T-DF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
(Restated)
(&g851)
Brokerage: KESE
Securities EH 628,792 435,037
Futures and options HE o HatE 42,946 30,395
Handling income FEBRA 39,085 32,524
Leveraged foreign exchange BRIME 2,363 1,646
Insurance R 6,759 2,044
719,945 501,646
Corporate finance: LEAE
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting commission R& - AR AHNBE
— Debt securities — BB ES 63,583 86,887
— Equity securities —REHES 121,844 131815
Consultancy and financial advisory fee income BERRREZAERA 96,020 69,123
281,447 287,825
Asset management: BEER :
Management fee income EREWA 42,308 43,06
Performance fee income RRBWA 10,784 3,326
53,092 46,387
Loans and financing: ERRBEEE
Interest and handling income from margin loans FREFRAERFEEUA 924,121 549,716
Interest and handling income from term loans THEFMERFEEBRA 39,350 60,804
Interest income from securities borrowing and lending EFEHEEFBMA 26,549 19910
Interest income from reverse repurchase agreements GIEE-y SN 167 —
Interest income from IPO loans BRARBEEERFSWA 5,684 5308
Interest income from banks and others T R E A F S A 80,147 86,732
1,076,018 722,470
BEREZEBERERDA
2015 £ ]
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
5. REVENUE (continued) 5. Wk&E#)
2015 2014
—B-n% —T-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
(Restated)
(e E7))
Investment holding and market making: RE K
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial BEESSRIANATE
instruments held for trading Wi (B18) F8
— Listed securities — FH&ESH 59,274 9,466
— Unlisted securities —JLmEHR (2,288) (11,641)
Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial instruments BERATETAABRNERIAN
designated as at fair value through profit or loss NFE (B18) /WaEFE
— Unlisted convertible promissory note — I LM A RRERE (5,994) 33616
— Unlisted unconsolidated fund investments —FLEMFEHELILE (22,853) 1,339
— Financial products —EMER 34,351 —
Interest income on financial instruments held BEEESRITANFEWA
for trading
— Listed securities — FH&ESH 68,400 47,169
— Unlisted securities — 3 EME R 6,460 6,364
Interest income from financial instruments designated BERATEABROESH
as at fair value through profit or loss TAMNFEKA
— Unlisted convertible promissory note — I LM A RRERE 3,092 2,985
Dividend income from listed securities held for trading FIEEEM EMREZRHFNHR LA 5,664 8,956
146,106 98,254
2,276,608 1,656,582

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-RF1ZA=+-H
STAFF COSTS 6. BIRK
2015 2014
“¥-Rf —T-@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration): BIXRA (BREESFH:)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - TBAL =R, 396,950 297,562
Share-based compensation expense PARUp R B R R E 5 X2
— Share Option Scheme (Note 31) —BERERTE (PIEE31) 22,130 32,685
— Share Award Scheme (Note 32) — & fn @2l (FEE32) 81,484 34,568
Pension scheme contributions RGBT 5,085 3,807
505,649 368,622
FINANCE COSTS 7. BERE
2015 2014
—E-1f ZT@HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
(Restated)
(fe&7)
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITERREX 238,270 87,120
Debt securities in issue BETREBER 3,783 5924
Securities borrowing and lending BHEE 1,659 ,784
Repurchase agreements EIEiE S 2,178 -
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss BATEABRNEHMIA
— Listed debt securities held for trading —FHHEEEN LTEKES 2,062 —
Others ity 1,610 334
249,562 95,162

HBZZXEBEERERAA
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. RRBIADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NE B WG TSR RS A R, (G
AUTRIERGH -
2015 2014
—E-5f —T—@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TAET
Auditors’ remuneration ZERI S
(i) audit services (i) REIRTS 1,815 1,591
(if) interim review (i) HHREE 620 594
(iif) tax and other consutancy services (iif) B B EL A AR5 653 1,226
Foreign exchange differences, net SN ZHE 5,494 2455
Information services expenses BARB 16,465 12,898
Marketing, advertising and promotion expenses mHHE  ESKEEXH 4,504 6,036
Minimum lease payments under operating leases ReEMEnRER: 1,642 —
’I 36 Professional and consultancy fee BEERHAE 24,283 24,465
Repair and maintenance (including system maintenance) — #H{E R #E (BIE R Fi4EE) 29,290 18,368
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME « BE REEHNKE (70) (8)

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-RF1ZA=+-H
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiBHBEAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on EBNERM IR ENESBEEN G
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. ERTRAIRHE 165%(ZF—NF :
16.5%) B
2015 2014
—B-n% —T-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Current — Hong Kong BN — BB NG
— Charge for the year —FRHAX 166,018 130,304
— Overprovision in prior years - REFEBRERE (1,838) (1,855)
Deferred (Note |5) ERE(FI3E15) (11,491) (1,148)
Total tax charge for the year FANRBRX G 152,689 127,301
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the REREER R I BRBAENTE 2R
statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: BEHERERBRRAE HBER Y 137
HERMT :
2015 2014
—2-EF C—T-MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEL  FAL
Profit before tax BRAE AL R 1,168,122 929,216
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% BEEHE 165%:1E 2 T8
(2014: 16.5%) (ZZ2—MF - 165%) 192,740 153,321
Overprovision in prior years BEFEEERE (1,838) (1,855)
Income not subject to tax BERBBA (54,673) (38,150)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR % 13,859 13,441
Tax losses not recognised AERVEER 718 464
Temporary difference not recognised AERE =R 1,883 80
Tax charge for the year FARBERZ 152,689 127,301

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

ended 3| December 2014, as further adjusted to include the dividend for shares
issued under the share option scheme amounting to approximately HK$4,353,000.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the

Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
10. DIVIDENDS 0. RS
2015 2014
—E-1Ff _—F-QNOF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERr TET
Interim, paid — HK$0.035 RE - B -BREBR0.035ET
(2014 (restated): HK$0.027) per ordinary share (Z2—MEEET) - 0027587T) 242,665 151,344
Less: Dividend for shares held under R AR ARG 22BN E 2
the Company's share award scheme P R 7 B AR B (3,398) (2,051)
239,267 149,293
Final, proposed — HK$0.04 A BRE - BREER004ET
(2014 (restated): HK$0.043) per ordinary share (ZZ—ME(EET]) - 0043587T) 277,372 295,604
Less: Dividend for shares held under B AR EIRG B2
the Company's share award scheme Frisiin AR 2 (3,077) (3,170)
@ 274,295 292,434*
513,562 441,727
g The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$296,787,000 for the year e AARBRBEHE-_ZT—NEF+=

A=+ —HLEFEZRBRELN
296,78700078 7T : P FAEBETA
BRI EREA BB ITRRO R EL
4,353,000 7T ©

FARRRARSBLARABRRE
EBRBFEAE LiLE - HAHEE -



Notes to Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY I,
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

For the year ended 3| December 2015, the Company completed a bonus issue

on the basis of 2 new shares for every | existing share held by the shareholders

of the Company. The effect of bonus element resulting from the bonus issue has

been included in the calculations of basic and diluted eamings per share and the

prior period basic and diluted eamnings per share amounts are adjusted in order to

provide a comparable basis.

(@)  Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamings per share is as follows:

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

BRAEERRREGERET

BE_Z-AF+_A=1+—-BL#HE
E*$“ﬂ5ﬁ$“ﬂ%%§ﬁﬁl%ﬁ
B IR BT 2 IR AR A B2 e A AL AR B
1T %’é‘ﬁﬂﬂxéiﬁ’\]ﬂﬂ FEEIA
BREARBERNMGE  MBED
RAERERLEIRNNEEETRAE
MEMARE-—TE AL REE -

@ BREXEF
SREARFIME AN |

2015 2014
—E-1F —T-NF
(Restated)
(fE7)) 139
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ISYNGIESEREE AN —
holders of the parent (in HK$'000) (AFHTat) 1,013,541 799,791
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 3 AR A A 29 BUR B AR £
issue less shares held for the share ﬁ%ﬁ]?r%hﬁﬁ’]ﬂxf“(%?ﬁr)

award scheme (in '000)

6,818,237 5,747,622

Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) SREABF (LB

14.9 13.9

(b)  Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise

or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

(b) BREFERR
FREFRNDIRGAR LB
HEAFRRNGE - sTERA

A EERNET IS EAE
BRERBMAEBNFAD R
TERBREE  ARBRENM
BEEEELTRREE RETE
HERALTBRECERTRER
TR RRINET I8 -

HBZZXEBEERERAA
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
I1.  EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY 1. BAREERRREGEREF
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued) (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) BRESERNE)
The calculation of diluted eamings per share is as follows: FREERNNERANT ¢
2015 2014
—E-1f Z—T@HmF
(Restated)
(R&70)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity SYNGESER e
holders of the parent (in HK$'000) (AFHTat) 1,013,541 799,791
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in AR ERERBHNM
issue less shares held for the share award scheme B E1TE BRI T
used in the basic eamings per RtAR 10 BB Bl A M AR (D
share calculation (in '000) (ATF31) 6,818,237 5,747,622
1 40 Effect of dilution — weighted average number BEYE - TRROMETIIH :
of ordinary shares:
Share options under the share BRETEITH
option scheme (in '000) B (ATE) 76,723 60,591
Awarded shares under the share R 17 BBy =t 2178 T )
award scheme (in '000) SREMR G (AT 28,077 24,900
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of HEREERNFAEMEH
the diluted earnings per share calculation (in '000)  E@MEE (JAF&T) 6,923,037 5,833,113
Diluted eamings per share (in HK cents) SR ERM (CAEE) 14.6 13.7

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-mF{-A=t—A
12. 9% BERRE
Office Furniture Land and Leasehold
equipment  and fixtures buildings  improvements Motor
BAE HH i He vehicles Total

R KRB kEF  NEREE "E st
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHx FHER FHR THR TR TR

For the year ended HE-T-1%

31 December 2015 TZAZT-RLERE
Asat | January 2015 RZE-1%5-F-H
Cost KA 75427 2670 563831 16,618 3670 662216
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (58,362) (2,606) (70,276) (15,141) (2328) (148713
Net carrying amount FREFE 17,065 64 493555 | 477 1392 513503
Opening net camying amount ENRETE 17,065 64 493555 | 477 1342 513503
Additions AE 14,080 1812 - 10,731 704 27,327
Depreciation charged during the year ERFE (10373) (414 (I5,186) (2,09) (595)  (28.664)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 20772 1462 478369 10,112 1,451 512,166
As at 31 December 2015 W-Z-h%+-A=1-H
Cost A 88,136 4480 56383 27,349 2,993 686,79
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (67,364) (3,020) (85,462) (17,237) (1,542) (174,625)
Net carrying amount REFE 20,772 1,462 478,369 10,112 1,451 512,166

HBZZXEBEERERAA
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. V¥ BERKE 2
Office Fumiture landand  Leasehold
equipment  and fixtures buildings - improvements Motor
MWAR B 1 HE vehicles Total
& REE rEFT  DREE Jat: @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR THEL THET THET T THL
For the year ended BRI
31 December 2014 TZA=T-RLEE
Asat | January 2014 RZZ-MmE-A—-H
Cost XA 60366 2602 448776 15431 2,004 59,179
Accumulated depreciation 2HE (51,518) (2483) (45,634) (14,100) (2004)  (115739)
Net carrying amount REFE 8,848 19 403,142 1331 = 413440
Opening net camying amount FRAFE 8,848 19 403,142 331 = 413440
Additions nE 5,191 68 = 1,187 1,666 18,112
Transfer from investment properties BREMZEE = 102,447 = — 102,447
Disposal HE () — — — = ()
Depreciation charged during the year ENFE (6969) (123) (12,034) (1,041) (324) (20491)
Closing net carrying amount FRRAFE 17,065 64 493555 | 477 1342 513503
As at 3| December 2014 R-E-NE+-A=t+—H
Cost XA 75427 2670 563831 16618 3670 662216
Accumulated depreciation 2ihE (58,362) (2606) (70.276) (15,141) (2328)  (148713)
Net canrying amount REFE 17,065 64 493,555 1477 342 513,503

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-FF+=A=1A
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 3. BFEE
Club
Trading rights ~ membership Total
X5 efe% @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TR

Asat | January 2014, 3| December 2014 R-FT—WNE—H—H

and 3| December 2015 “F-mETZA=tT-AR
“E-RFtT-A=1+—H
Net carrying amounts REFE 1913 910 2,823
As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the Group had three trading rights in The R-E-—MER-_"FT—FE+-A
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and one trading right in The Hong Kong =+—R AEEBRERBEBARS
Futures Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years FERATIN=-ARSEREEHER
ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 as the trading rights and club membership SHERATN—EAXHE - ARR 5
have no expiy date EREFEATEINE  KRE-T

—NER-_E-AFFT-_A=+—HI
FEVTEHEENEE -

HBZZXEBEERERAA
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31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
14, OTHER ASSETS 14 Htt&E
2015 2014
—B-n% —T-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Basic contribution of the guarantee fund paid to INTEAPREEERAF
Hong Kong Securities Clearing ([BBHEEDNREESERMR
Company Limited (“HKSCC") 807 901
Deposits with The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: R&EEBEERX HFARARMNES
— Compensation fund —BEEE 150 150
— Fidelity fund —BiRE® 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit —HERiEe 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC X TFEBELEOENE 150 150
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options REBBMER S EEEE
Clearing House Limited BRARNEER 1,500 1,500
’I 44 Settlement Risk Fund paid to the Shanghai Stock Exchange X1 ¥ EEZESFR ZHNGEERRES 236 250
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited BAE% HELEBERARINESR 1,500 1,500
Funds deposited with the Securities and EELNEEBERLZEE
Futures Commission E’\]Hzﬁ 50 50
5,043 5151
The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their fair values. EEEMEENEREEEATEER

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

5. EELHIE
FRETHBAEREELGHMT :

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBER
Accelerated tax depreciation Fair value gains Total
MERERE PRRLE EH
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-Rf “E-F ZE-Rf “T-NF ZE-RF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Téxr TAT FEr TEx  FER  TER
At | January m—R—A (7,137) (4275) (28,338) (36,114) (35,475) (40,389)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited REBRAETEHIE
to profit or loss (i) WA (1333) (2862) (118) 7776 (1451 4914
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—AR (8470) (7137)  (2845%6)  (28338)  (36926) (35475
Deferred tax assets BEREEE
Losses available for
offsetting against future
taxable profits Share-based
KRR compensation Total
RERANER MR RERHFHM st
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-5f “T-MF -2-5F “TMF -B-EF CFMF
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TArT FEr  TEx  TEx  TEx
At | January R—R—A = 4563 2291 1,494 2,291 6,057
Deferred tax credited/(charged) RERNERHE
to profit or loss WA/ (%) 6976 (4563) 5966 797 12,942 (3766)
At 3| December Rt=A=1+—H 6976 8,257 2291 15233 2291

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
I15.  DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are to be utilised and settled after one year and
the following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

ERLDBR (4)
ERAEENAUBARHAEERR
HHRREEERETHERSRRE—
REREE  AAREEREHEESR
BREEMEH ETHEREERAR
BR—FRTUBRAREE - T T5IE
AAEERHREENSBA AR M
BIRRKRATIE

2015 2014

—®2-Rf _—T-[@F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEr AT

Deferred tax assets BRERBEE 576 24
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAR (22,269) (33,208)
(21,693) (33,184)

The Group has total tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$58.0
million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$ 1.7 million), that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the

losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of losses amounted to
HK$15.7 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$ 1 1.7 million). These losses
have arisen in group companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax

losses can be utilised.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-FF+=A=1A
DEFERRED TAX (continued) 15, BEHEE)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following item: W T SBEAZELRBEE :
2015 2014
—®2-Rf _—T-[@F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Tax losses HIEEE 15,714 11,743
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 6. BTFEFHNERRER
2015 2014
“¥-Rf —T-@OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Margin loans FREX 11,963,214 8,406,678
Term loans to customers BTIEPRTEHER 413,573 693,243
Gross loans and advances to customers KTRFNERRBTEE 12,376,787 9,099,92
Less: impairment " ORE (930) (757)
12,375,857 9,099,164

The movements in provision for impairment of loans and advances to customers

BIRPHEHRBRAERELDY

are as follows: T -
2015 2014
“Z-1F C—TDNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
As at | January n—H—H 757 665
Impairment charged to profit or loss during the year FRFABRORERE 980 92
Impairment reversed to profit or loss during the year FAROERRAREERE (807) =
As at 3| December W+=—A=+—H 930 757

HEEEZZEBRZERERDA
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

16.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

The impairment charged to profit or loss included interest income on impaired
margin loans of HK$87,000 (2014: HK$92,000) for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Save as disclosed above, all loans and advances to customers were neither past due

nor impaired as at 3| December 2015 and 2014.

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities transactions,
which are secured by customers' securities held as collateral. The maximum credit
limit granted for each customer is based on the customer’s financial background
and the quality of related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a Credit and Risk Management Department to

monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged securities,
bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are
repayable on demand. The carrying value of margin loans approximates to their
fair value. No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of the margin loans
business. The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is determined by
the discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by the Group. As
at 31 December 2015, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the margin loans was approximately HK$55,440 million (2014: HK$37,206
million) based on the market value of the securities as at the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

3/ December 2015
—E-A#FtZA=1-H
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued) 6. BFEFNERRBRE)
Term loans to customers BTEFNEREN
The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the interest rates, NEBNRAZPIRETHER - RNEBT
reference is made to the credit standing of the relevant customers and the quality MEE  @2ZBETPNTEEER
and value of the collateral pledged. The term loans granted to customers amounted MUARFFERNEEREZ N2
to HK$413,040,000 (2014: HK$679,231,000), and the accrued interest amounted —FE+-_A=+-HBHEFEFHFE
to HK$533,000 (2014: HK$14,012,000) as at 31 December 2015. The carrying HE R AH4130400008 T(Z T — M
amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their fair values. F:679,231,000/87T) - HEGHESH
5330008 TL(ZF—4 : 14,012,000/
L) B TEPHEHERNREEREA
NFERE -
LOANS TO DIRECTORS 17. RTESNER
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) (d) of the Hong Kong REE B R EMEISE383(1)(d) R A E]
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information (BERESNEZER)ROEIPRE K
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows: SERTEENETHENT ¢
At3l
December
2014 and
[ January ~ Maximum
At3l Maximum 2015 amount
December amount B outstanding At
2015 outstanding =F—MF  duringthe | January
1 during +ZH  prior year 2014
—E-1% theyear =T—HAK EER i
TR #R&ES —B-If Bes —3-MF
=t-B #&EE® -A-B AREEE -A-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  Collateral held
Name ] TER TER ThER TER ThEn BEER
Mr. LI Guangjie BRAFKE 364 1,801 — —  Marketable Securities
AEES

The loans granted to a director bear interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate

plus 3% per annum and have no fixed terms of repayment.

RYEENERNERABTREEME N
FE3%:t e BEETFEESR -
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18. FEWFIE
(@)  Analysis of accounts receivable @) EBRREIN
The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of business ANEBEEBREPRESRNEKD
of the Group are as follows: BHEEEMNT :
2015 2014
—B-nf —T-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage RicEERMEINEIE
— cash and custodian clients ~-HeRAERF 89,662 113,019
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses —BRAREMEREMR 433,509 201,933
— brokers and dealers —RERXHE 1,292,388 541,427
Accounts receivable arising RIS A8 40 AR TS B2 AR Y FE MR RRIE
from insurance brokerage services
’I 50 — cash and custodian clients —-RekitEgr 40 —
- Accounts receivable arising from BHEEEENEKR
securities borrowing and lending
— brokers and dealers ~BRRX5E 69,152 119,002
Accounts receivable arising from corporate finance, F¥EE - EEEERIZE RMM
asset management, investment holding PIEE S M I 3R
and market making
— corporate clients, investment funds and others ~ —(E¥XP - REEE R EM 64,283 37,302
1,949,034 1,012,683
Less: impairment " RE (16,915) (11,580)
1,932,119 1,001,103
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-RF1ZA=+-H
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18. BRREE)
(@)  Analysis of accounts receivable (continued) @ ERREIFE)
The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as JEWFIBRERGEESHNT ¢
follows
2015 2014
—2-1F Z—T-MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRz TET
As at | January K—A—H 11,580 12,228
Impairment charged to profit or loss during the year A5 AB & FR{E 5,626 2,750
Impairment reversed to profit or loss during the year 4F R B8 % KR (B (291) —
Amount written off as uncollectible 6PN :0F e — (3,398)
As at 3| December Wt+-—A=+—H 16,915 11,580
(b)  Accounts receivable neither past due nor impaired (b)  BREARBERINARE M W FRIE
Accounts
Accounts receivable
receivable from
from the corporate
Accounts Stock clients,
receivable Exchange investment
from cash and other Accounts funds and
and clearing receivable others
custodian houses  from brokers ¥
clients BRRR anddealers BF - RE
REeRtE HLER SERXSE EeRif Total
ERERE A FElSIE FElRE Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEn FER TER TR
Asat 3| December 2015 R=B-HEF+=-A=t-H
Neither past due BARBETARE
nor impaired 67,830 433,509 1,361,540 57,589 1,920,468
Asat 3| December 2014 R=-Z-ME+-A=+—H
Neither past due RARBHANARE
nor impaired 101,398 201933 660429 28940 992,700
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

8.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(b)

18. FEWZ

RIE (&)

Accounts receivable neither past due nor impaired (continued) () ERRESFE)
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are neither past BERBENARBENESIR S KT
due nor impaired represent unsettled client trades on various securities EREFIBIENTRE %fz%ﬁﬁj&
exchanges transacted on the last two to three business days prior to the end IRGFEEERR ’é 2 = {fe
of the reporting year. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of ARMABENREPRSFRHT
the directors, an ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the He AREEZAE ﬁtﬁﬁiﬁﬁiuﬁz
nature of these accounts receivable. FEAOME - RS A gRM
BIMEE - HTERERR O o
Accounts receivable past due but not impaired () EEHERHAENERRE
Accounts
Accounts receivable
receivable from
from the corporate
Accounts Stock clients,
receivable Exchange investment
from cash and other Accounts funds
and clearing receivable and others
custodian houses  from brokers %
clients BZXFAR  anddealers FF-RE
ReRAE HULER SLRRZH ELRHM Total
REEWTE EHE kA FElE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TET TR
Asat 3| December 2015 R=F-AF+ZA=t-H
Past due less than B EAA
6 months 8,183 = = 3,399 11,582
Pastdue 6to 12 months  BHIRET={AA = = = 6l 6l
8,183 = = 3,460 11,643
Asat 3| December 2014 R=-Z-ME+-A=+-H
Past due less than B EA LA
6 months 2965 = = 2032 4997
Pastdue 6to 12 months  BHINE+={AA = = = 3,09 3,090
Past due over 12 months BT =fAAM £ = = = 270 270
2965 = = 539 8357
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2015 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to Financial Statements

18.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

©

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired (continued)

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are past due but
not impaired represent client trades on various securities exchanges which
are unsettled beyond the settlement date. When the cash and custodian
clients fail to settle on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to
force-sell the collateral underlying the securities transactions. The outstanding
accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients as at 31 December
2014 and 2015 are considered past due but not impaired after taking into
consideration the recoverability from the collateral. The collateral held

against these receivables is publicly traded securities.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients, investment funds and others
which are past due but not impaired represent receivables arising from
asset management, corporate finance, investment holding and market
making which have not yet been settled by clients after the Group's normal
credit period. The outstanding accounts receivable from corporate clients,
investment funds and others as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 were
considered not to be impaired as the credit rating and reputation of the

trade counterparties were sound.

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

18. BWRER)

(©

BERERRENERTEE)
ERBMERRERKRE RAER
PRIBERTRBRR 5 METR
HERBERNAEENEPRSM
BRHFIE - —BHERAERF
RERGEERBENKE  A5E
KERERTIHEREEFEFT S AR
B o 48 B 1R fm 9 ] g B 14
B RZE-NER-T-—1F
TZA=T—RHREERKR:
KA EEPRBEMHEREREE
FRRE o ZERBGRIBF B MK
MANLARAEENES o

ERBERRENEREERR
REESREREMIERTFPRAR
B —REE N H AR EERN B
B(ELEEEER GERE -
REBRRHET) R_T-—MNF
R_ZE-—RET_A=T—HKE
BRERGERF  REESREKR
Hitn R IERRE  REARSH
FERRERERTIRRESE -
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
18.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18. EWFHEE)
(d)  Impaired accounts receivable d) CBHREEBKRE
Accounts
Accounts receivable
receivable from
from the corporate
Accounts Stock clients,
receivable Exchange investment
from cash and other Accounts funds and
and clearing receivable others
custodian houses  from brokers %
clients BZXFR  anddeaers FF-RE
RERAE HULHR BERXSE EeRHf Total
RFERFHE A L e WA @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TERr T#T

154

Asat 3] December 2015 R-ZE-H&E+-A=+-H

Impaired accounts EREEREE
receivable 13,689 = = 3234 16,923
Less: impairment R (13,681) — — (3,234) (16,915)
8 = = = 8
Asat3| December 2014 R=B-N#+=A=+-H
Impaired accounts EREERE
receivable 8,656 — — 2970 11,626
Less: impairment R A (8610) — — (2970) (11,580)
46 — = = 46
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are considered impaired mEEIFMEIAAELE  BR
when clients fail to settle according to settlement terms after taking into PRI BEERTHETEER
consideration the recoverability of collateral. EUCRE R ERPRES R A
A °
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—F-AFf=f=1—A
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. FBANE REREMBERKE

2015 2014
—®2-Rf _—T-[@F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepayments and deposits BENTERES 187,216 47328
Subscription monies on financial investments RBERMRERE 64,409 77,568
Interest receivables P W B, 7,157 3,956
Total st 258,782 128,852

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets

included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

A ERSTARE o 5 A LREHE
B EN S BAEE L JENTY -

20. RAVEGABENEMEE

2015 2014
—2-1Ff C—TDF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Non-current JEmE
Financial assets designated as at fair value EERATHESABRNSREE
through profit or loss
— Unlisted fund investments (Note (a)) —FLETESKRE (@) 120,141 —
Current e
Financial assets held for trading HIEEBENSREE
— Listed equity securities — FIRAE S 331,335 240,395
— Listed debt securities — LR & 1,331,445 774949
— Unlisted debt securities — L MESES 107,344 128,11
Financial assets designated as at fair value EERATESABRNEREE
through profit or loss
— Unlisted fund investments (Note (a)) - LmEEKRE (MieE) 154,944 52,443
— Unlisted convertible promissory note —JE_E T AT AR A R R 152,756 157,191
— Financial products (Note (b)) —@Em (o) 2,429,123 —
4,506,947 1,353,089
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEAABRNEREERRE 4,627,088 1,353,089

HEEEZZEBRZERERDA
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

Notes:

@

The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital appreciation and
investment income. The interests held by the Group are in the form of participating
shares which provide the Group with the share of returmns from the investment funds,
but not any decision making power nor any voting right. Given that the Group only
held the beneficial interests without holding any voting right or substantial decision
making power as principal, these investments are classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss.

The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity investments,
listed debt investments and unlisted fund investments amounting to approximately
HK$214.8 million, HK$1,414.5 million and HK$487.3 million respectively as at 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil) with the purpose of structuring these financial products
for sales to customers. The variable return to the financial products is not significant
as the risk has been transferred to the customers via the structured notes issued
under the MTN Programme (Note 27). The financial assets included in the above
financial products were partly funded by the obligations under repurchase agreements
of HK$260.3 million (Note 29).

The remaining balance of the financial products represented a bank deposit and
listed fund investments amounting to approximately RMB264.8 million which were
funded by bank borrowings in USD as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). The Group
has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts (Note 21) to reduce the
corresponding foreign currency risk exposure and the fair value asset of such forward
contracts was HK$4.9 million (2014: Nil) as at 31 December 2015.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21.

Notes to Financial Statements

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded
as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. The notional amount,
recorded gross, is the amount of a derivative's underlying asset, reference rate
or index and is the basis upon which changes in the value of the derivative are
measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at

the year end and are indicative of neither the market risk nor the credit risk.

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

2. {TE€MIA

TREJCEREEXRENITEESR
TANATFEHEREAZSE Ak
MEZeBRRBAITETANEEE
SEEXSEUNEHE  YAMETA
BEAEZPFNEE - FREBRARN
FRRZANZZE  BIRMHER
THEERBRNER

Fair value
AF¥E
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
£REH BE af

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TR

As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+-A=+—8H

Cross currency swap RXE¥EH 577,730 19,359 (20,163)

Interest rate swap ) &= 1 1,049,961 567 —

Foreign exchange forward RHINE 1,280,382 4891 (9,603)

Index futures E2HE 27,727 135 —
2,935,800 24,952 (29,766)

As at 31 December 2014 RZZE-—MFE+-A=+—H

Cross currency swap RN EHE=H 501,684 1,766 (1,766)

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.
(“ISDA™) master netting agreements or similar agreements with substantially all
of its derivative counterparties. Where legally enforceable, these master netting
agreements give the Group the right to offset cash collateral paid or received with
the same counterparty. As at 31 December 2015, amounts of cash collateral of
HK$48.4 million and HK$20.8 million were paid to and received from respective
counterparties (2014: HK$6.0 million and HK$6.0 million), which is included in
“accounts receivable and accounts payable arising from brokerage — brokers and

dealers” in notes 18 and 24 respectively.

AEBEETMENTETIARGHIVE
B8 HR I 4T 4 R 15 2 (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc.) ( [ISDA] ) 5%
BIHR AR - EHOEA REIRT
BRT  ZFEREEERER T AEEE
MAEHERRR S THENKERR S E
Fm-R_F-AF+-_A=+t—H HE
ERRERNH484EEETR08AEET
ARINTFRREEERSH (ZF—0F:
COBRBETR6OBERTT) « DhlBIEEN
w18 %24m) [ ACE £ B IGRIA R B3R
B-EekRHE] -
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B RS M

31 December 2015
= S Y=
21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 21, fTHEE€mMIA®)
Certain derivatives of interest rate swap, cross currency swap and foreign exchange REBDIY FIREH - SN E#EH
forward were entered into for hedging the net interest rate risk and foreign REEINERNETITETR - A
exchange risk arising from the financial products (Note 20) and debt securities © BIE M PTE £ R)FF R R R KR INE R
in issue (Note 27). The fair value assets of these interest rate swap was HK$0.6 fr (PHEE20) REBTERZES (M
million (2014: Nil) while the fair value liabilities of these cross currency swap and 27) cRZE—RF+-_A=+—H"
foreign exchange forward were HK$0.8 million (2014: Nil) and HK$9.6 million FZENEREHH AT EEERVCESR
(2014: Nil) respectively as at 31 December 2015. T (ZE—mF:F)  MZERXXE
EERRERINEN AT EEBED AR
08EEAL (ZF—WF : F) K96
BEAL (ZE—WE:F) -
22. RECEIVABLE FROM REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 22. REEEHEERRIE
The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises when the securities are AEERERARBHREERS &
bought by the Group with a concurrent agreement to resell at a specified later BRF Y —BpEAREEE®A
date and price. These securities are not recognised in the Group’s consolidated HAREREEFS - ZEBHFUENK
statement of financial position as the counterparty retains substantially all risks and EEGREUEMRIRPER  REEX
returns of the securities. The amount paid by the Group is recognised as receivable. SHRBZEFZBEFNBAE D B K&
In the event of default by the counterparty, the Group has the right to sell the e REBXNHRIBREZRSERR
underlying securities for settling the outstanding receivable. H o WX HFTEL  AEEEELER
FESFNEERE B EIKFUR -
As at 31 December 2015, the outstanding amount paid for the reverse repurchase RZE—HF+-_A=+—08 "' %
agreements was HK$509,695,000 (2014: Nil) and was recognised as receivable RABEHEINOREEREA
from reverse repurchase agreements. 509,695,000/ (ZE—MF : &)
SR A I ) 18 10 PR MR IR
The following table specifies the fair value of financial assets received as collateral TREANRERD WEEAS KRG BEW
for the outstanding receivable at the year end. RIEEA RN REERNATE -
2015 2014
—B-1Ff ZT@OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Financial assets held for trading RIEEEMERERE
— Listed debt securities (Note 28) — FmEKES (HE28) 505,243 —
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2015 ANNUAL REPORT



23.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

3/ December 2015
—F-AF+-A=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. BeRELEEY
2015 2014
—¥-1F —T-MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FTET
Cash and bank balances BE RIRITHS 1,340,967 658,069
Time deposits EHER 1,067,699 231217
2,408,666 889,286
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET

Denominated in: RATEEE

HKS$ BT 1,122,691 736,393
Us$ eV 169,046 102,784
RMB AR 1,110,713 49219
Others Hid 6216 890
2,408,666 889,286

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$I,110,713,000 (2014:
HK$49,219,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

REBEEHELERE AEERE K
BOEBRUARBIARE Dt @E
B1,110713,0007% JT(=
49219,000/87T) - ARERNGEHLA
REMEY Al REPEIHNEER
REE EERNEEEMAT  ~5E

T-me:

AEEREETIEXHNRITRAR

BHBREMLEE -

HEEEZZEBRZERERDA
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 23.

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
eam interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are

deposited with creditworthy banks with no history of default.

BeRBREEEN L)
BOGRERTRBIERARET
FEEFE - EHEBMETRNES %M?
—BE=fR  BAKENNERE
ki WIRABESRTHES ﬂ+#
B BITRBEFAGERITAREAER
BEHRITH

24.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 24. BARE
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET
Accounts payable arising from brokerage F i EE R RN ZIE
— clients -EF 15,214,731 9,109373
— brokers and dealers —RERRHE 757,770 25735
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses —BRAREMEREMR 29,760 228,444
Accounts payable arising from BHEEEENENTIE
securities borrowing and lending 542,502 379,305
Accounts payable arising from corporate finance, rERE  BEER REBERK
asset management, investment holding T E A RO R 5RIA
and market making 1,673,295 29,993
Accounts payable arising from R 8 40 AR TS 2 HE B0 R 1R
insurance brokerage services 254 2

18,218,312 10,004,468
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PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued) 24. ENRE#E)
The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except for certain AR ENTIBEESHENEREEE
accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits received from clients HETENTEENREARTENE
for their trading activities in the normal course of business. Only the excess EEKBETETEEZHURELH
amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand. RESKRIN  FEBLBEEREENE
BARNBRERERP -
The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within one business AEBERE | BAEEBNEEMENRK
day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, the ageing ER REFBVEFREZERKHT RE
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these businesses. REZZRIZEEBONLE Rk
M eRHtEIMEE -
Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust accounts with ENTFEENTIAINS TN R ] 1
authorised institutions of HK$14,663 million (2014: HK$9,010 million), Hong BELEPM 14663 FEBT( 22—
Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited and other futures dealers of F:9010H&BL) BEEHELEES
HK$3 17 million (2014: HK$ 159 million). RARKEMBERFHELIINTEES
T(ZE—OF : 19ESET) °
Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services includes those payables R 40 R BT £ 0 B B BRI
in trust accounts with authorised institutions of HK$241,000 (2014: HK$2,000). EREETERP RN FIE241,00078 7T
Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing, except for the accounts payable to (ZE—MEF : 200087T) - REMNEP
clients. SN ERFIASTEE
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 25. HttEMARERETRE
2015 2014
—2-nf —THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Other payables Hfth IR 5,785 10,836
Accrued liabilities JERT AR 254,157 185,829
259,942 196,665
Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and have an average HMENREREATEBE SR

term of three months.

BHRR3M@EA o
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B RS M

31 December 2015
= S Y=
26.  BANK BORROWINGS 26. RITIER
2015 2014
—¥-1F —T-MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Non-current ERE
Unsecured bank borrowings EIERRITER 3,090,000 990,000
Current k)
Secured bank borrowings CHEARITER = 200,000
Unsecured bank borrowings EERRITER 4,765,662 3,272,719
4,765,662 3,472,719
Total bank borrowings RITEREE 7,855,662 4,462,719

162 2015 2014

—E-F1F —T-NOF

HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET

Denominated in: B TBEE
HK$ o 6,600,000 3,600,000
Us$ e 1,255,662 589,517
RMB ARE — 273202

7,855,662 4462719
The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered Rate plus ARBRITEFORBITRAEFEMNS
an interest spread. Except for the non-current bank borrowings amounting to EHE -BRAENBEEL(ZE
HK$3,090 million (2014: HK$990 million) which was repayable between one to —F 990 BEBTT) W IEENERITE
three years, the bank borrowings were repayable within three months or less at the REAR—Z=FNEEN RBREHR
end of reporting period. MRITEZRHDEAR=EA I T 2 RE

iﬁ o

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their fair values as ARTROFES TBEX - NRERE
the impact on discounting is not significant. HEOREEERAFERS
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-mF{-A=t—A
27. DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE 27. BRTEXES
2015 2014
“E-1f —TmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
At amortised cost: REERA -
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes (Note (a)) FEmEERFEHER (N @) 429,040 171,123
Designated as at fair value through profit or loss: EERATE AR
Structured notes issued in relation to financial BERETHEREDERL
products (Note (b)) REEMERE(MFE D)) 1,929,048 —
2,358,088 171,123
2015 2014
“E-RF C—T@OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes dominated in: T 3§55 ERIE LT ERE
HHIZE -
HKD BT 156,000 83,800
usD ETT 155,020 —
RMB AR 118,020 87,323
429,040 171,123
Structured notes issued in relation to BT EBIIENEETHESR
financial products dominated in: Emil AEENRE
HKD AT 112,518 —
usD ET 654,080 —
RMB ARK 1,162,450 —
1,929,048 —
2,358,088 171,123

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

27. DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE (continued) 27. BRITERESRE)

Notes: BT -

(@)  The outstanding balance of HK$429.0 million (2014: HK$171.1 million) stated at () REHERAIIBRORERBEI0
amortised cost represents unsecured unlisted notes issued by the Company under BEAL(CZ—MFE: 7. 685
the Company's Medium Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme”). As at 31 TR RN BIRIBEARA B R EZE
December 2015, the debt securities in issue bore fixed interest rates ranging from 0.3% 2[R ERZEETE )BT EE R
to 4.1% (2014: 0.1% to 3.49%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities in issue FETEE-R-_ZE—RF+_-A
approximate to their fair values as the impact on discounting is not significant. =+—H  BEETEEEFRETEH

KOSE4IB( T —TF0I%E
349%)5t B - HRNHMENFEYL

N E?é‘ﬂfi mﬁ’?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ\’\
TERE

(b)  The outstanding balance of HK$1,929.0 million (2014: Nil) represented unlisted b) KREEBEHBIIVIBEEELZZE
structured notes which arose from selling structured products under the MTN —OF  E)EREPHEETEIHE
Programme with underlying investments related to listed equity investments, listed EdBEGREANIELTABHEE
debt investments and unlisted fund investments. % HEEREE ETRARE - £W

BRRERFLTESRERR -
The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with AEERFRATEERTMAS - FIS
respect to their liabilities during the year (2014: Nil). FEMABTEEANBR(ZE—NO
FoE)-
The debt securities in issue are repayable on demand and the Group has a practice BETEREFEREREER  mMAE
to satisfy the request for redemption on the settlement date. BHERREENREmEEERK -
28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 28. BAVEFABENERAR

LOSS

2015 2014
—¥-1Ff ZTQmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TET

Financial liabilities held for trading: REEBENSRARE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAE 5 97 —
— Listed debt securities — EEHES 505,243 —
505,340 =

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Notes to Financial Statements

29.

The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the securities are sold

by the Group with a concurrent agreement to repurchase at a specified later date

and price. These securities are not derecognised from the Group's consolidated

statement of financial position and are retained within the appropriate financial

assets classification. The amount received by the Group is recognised as liabilities as

the Group retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities.

As at 31 December 2015, the outstanding amount received from repurchase

agreements was HK$400,517,000 (2014: Nil) and was recognised as obligations

under repurchase agreements.

The following table specifies the amount included within financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss subject to repurchase agreements at the year end (Note 20).

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

(51 55 thh o (9 1R R

FEERBEOBHEHERS  BEER
BRI —AHHEARIEERE R B RE
ROEES - AFTFHFULERNAEB LS
AR BRRRTERER  TREEE
EEREENEA - AR BRI FUR
BRRAE RARAEBEREZEFH
BAEDPEBRRDRE

R-Z-RAF+-A=t—H @&
195 2 B B AR 455 3R IR 43.400,517,000 7
T(ZE-—mF: ) YRARDER
HNEE -

TRIFPRERZATFEFABENE
BEERXOERZRBATEN T
20) °

2015 2014
—®2-Rf _—T-[@F
HK$'000 HK$000
TER TAT

Financial assets held for trading

— Listed debt securities

Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

— Financial products

147,749 —

ST REE

426,448 =

574,197 —

HBZZXEBEERERAA
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. BRA
Number of
issued and fully Share capital ~ Share premium Total
paid shares HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBRTR R R RE #st
#REROHE THR FAT TET
At | January 2014 RZZ—-ME—-HA—H 727,650,000 172,765 2,959,240 3,132,005
Transfer to issued capital ~ EEE ETRA = 2,959,240 (2,959,240) —
Shares issued upon R E R & TER D
placing of shares 160,000,000 687,223 = 687223
Shares issued upon R R Z TR R R
rights issue 378,560,000 2,004,864 = 2,004,864
Shares issued upon R AR AEST 21 T A
exercise of share BRI mETHMRD
options under the (FizE31)
share option
scheme (Note 31) 7,666,128 28,102 = 28,102
At 3| December2014and RZE—ME+ZA=+—HRK
| January 2015 —Z-1¥—-H—H 2,273,876,128 5,852,194 = 5,852,194
Shares issued upon RATRRE T TR
bonus issue (Note) (PH=E) 4,619,758,070 = = =
Shares issued upon ABRERT 8 T a0 B AR
exercise of share BT MBI THRG
options under the (PH&E31)
share option
scheme (Note 31) 40,674,003 152,168 = 152,168
At3l December20l5 ~ RZT—RF+-A=1—H 6,934,308,201 6,004,362 — 6,004,362
Note: BiEE

On 12 June 2015, the directors proposed to make a bonus issue of two new shares for every
one existing share held by shareholders whose names are on the Registry of Members on 30

June 2015. The bonus issue was completed and 4,619,758,070 bonus shares were issued on

9 July 2015.
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31.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members.
The Board of Directors has the discretion to grant share options to employees
and directors of any members of the Group, including independent non-executive
directors. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless

otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date

(ie, 18 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 0%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within any
|2-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
(ie. 16,400,000 shares). Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is

subject to shareholders approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders” approval in

advance in a general meeting,

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date
of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of offer of the

share options.

31

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

BRERE

RRARE —EE R 3 ([B AR
g) EHEBHEE BERIBIR
BT £ BNBRAKEEFKE
ARMEEREZ(BREBUFNITE
F)REBEE - BRE BN -_F—F
FRATABER MBEIFRTIER
B3 BRI EZ RS I0F(HE-Z
“EERNATAB)BHK -

BREEIAT BT ERITENER
BMBETORNBETEETRBER
BREEBAEBARAEEITROK
10%( 8 164,000,000 8% ) o 7 ] + = {H
REBMAAREBERERNERETET
MEEAARL2AERTNRRROE
B BRRAAR RN ERECD B#ITR G
#9 1%( BN 16,400,000 8% ) o {a] £ {1 1L FR
BHE—IREBERERCRENRRE
A& L#E -

RYARAESRITHAE  IARFE
ABEANELRE HAELEGEY
FMITESMRE - tLoh - RER+ =
BAHEARTARABIUFATE
ERAREEMBEANEMBRE
LB R B E B R 2 BATA D Y
0.1% S EBEREARRNRH A
REFE)BBSAEET  HARKER
AE LEEMBRROBE -

REBRENZEOTAARABZY
AHRHA T N\BARNEERE
AR IBTTRES - IR BRENTT
FHREFET REZAERER
MBEHETRTEZARL -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
31. SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued) 3. BREREE)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but BRENTFEERESETE - ELAE
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the RAT&EE : ()RNARRDRERE
Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average ZXHBERRAOWRTE  RiHARD
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for the five trading days AIROREZZYEHRRERSBE
immediately preceding the date of offer. B S PE FHT(E
On 11 June 2015, the Company granted 4,500,000 share options at the exercise RZEBE—RHFEXNA+—H  ARAER
price of HK$14.56 per share to its directors and employees under the Share BB ZIRTTEE B 145678 7T
Option Scheme. Among the share options granted, 3,000,000 share options were HEZ N {E 8K H4,500,00017 BEALAE -
granted to the director of the Company. The option period of the share options is TERTIREERMEE A » 3,000,00017 %4
from |1 June 2015 to 10 June 2025. Every one-third of the share options granted ERTRATNES - BIRENSWE
will be vested on the first, second and third anniversaries of the date of grant B-_E—RFAA+—HEE-_Z_-F
respectively. The closing price of the Company's shares prior to the date of grant FXATHIE FIRERENE=52
(i, 10 June 2015) was HK$13.62 per share. —HoRIREHBEENE— = =/
FEARE - ARRARMHHUFELEZH
(A=—Z—AFXA+TAH) pnkmE
REIRI362ETT
The fair value of the equity-settled share options was estimated on the date of NERTERRENATENFEHRE -
grant using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions AEEBEANRE B RETHT UK
upon which the options were granted. ST R IR 1 1 P HE RO R R M6 o
The following table lists out the key inputs to the model used: TRIWEFRELNHNEERE
Share price at the date of grant (HK$ per share) R R B RE(FRET) 1422
Exercise price (HK$ per share) TR EERET) 14.56
Expected volatility TRHER R IE 49.87%
Expected dividend yield R B = 3.09%
Risk-free interest rate R FIx 1.71%
Weighted average share option price (HK$ per share) TR REER (BT 4.69
The expected volatility and the expected dividend yield reflect the assumptions that FEHR I RTIEHRE MR R B R
the historical volatility and the historical dividend yield, respectively, are indicative of BREBEREWRZZEDRIR KK BEIE
future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome. BORE  MZEET—ERAERER -
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31.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued) 31

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise price and the
number of shares to be issued and allotted under the outstanding share options
had been adjusted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme in the

manner set out below:

Immediately before the

completion of the bonus issue

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

BREREE)
RZZE-RhFLANBTRARET
& RAARTTEBRES T RITRAL%
HOBD BT EE (B K 20 B B R IBE R
B RRBEMT

Immediately after the

completion of the bonus issue

REARBTTHRA EBARBTTAEK
Adjusted

exercise price Adjusted

Exercise Number of per share number of

price per share outstanding (HK$) outstanding

(HK$) options FCE options

Date of share options granted BRITRE RTE BRITHEE - RKEBRRTE

RIHMRRAERN A (Br) BRENHE (Br) BRENHE

241412012 248 4,856,448 0827 14,569,344

10/1/2014 379 36959910 | 264 110,879,730

117612015 14.56 4,500,000 4.854 13,500,000
After adjustment for the bonus issue, for the year ended 31 December 2015, RARBETHER BE_T—LF

1,007,916 and 2,955 share options with an exercise price of HK$1.264 each lapsed
and forfeited (2014: 1,000,000 share options with an exercise price of HK$3.82

each lapsed) prior to the vesting date as a result of staff resignation.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

+:H:+*E¢¢E*EKEE%
B 1TEEAERI 2648 THI1,007,916
13 52,9557 B AR AE A 57 /B B HART R K
B (ZE—MF : 1TEEARETR382
7B TLHI 10000001 BERRIER ) ©

BREY B TRA AR S HAER
RAE LREMER -

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |

169



170

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

31.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)

40,674,003 share options were exercised during the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: 7,666,128 share options), resulting in the issue of 40,674,003 shares
(2014: 7,666,128 shares) for a total cash consideration of HK$ 110,811,000 (2014:
HK$19,115,000). An amount of HK$41,357,000 (2014: HK$8,987,000) was
transferred from the share option reserve to the share capital account upon the
exercise of the share options. After adjustment for the bonus issue, the weighted
average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the
year was HK$3.41 per share (2014 (restated): HK$1.72).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has recognised an equity-
settled share-based compensation expense of HK$22,130,000 for the share options
under the Share Option Scheme in profit or loss (2014: HK$32,685,000).
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BREREE)

BE-_T-—AF+-_A=1+—-HLHF
[E+ 406740031 B R BT (=
T—HF 76661280 ERE) B
17406740030 R A (ZF — 0 F -
766612810 ) RRBRERE
2 110811,000%8 T(Z T — M F -
19,115000% 7T ) - REEREEITRE
41,357,000 7L(ZF — M 4 : 8,987,000
BT )NREEERERBERERAE
B NRARFBRERFNETRARE
BRENTERRNMEFORERER
3HBL(ZE—WEMEED) : 1725

JT) °

BE2-_Z—AF+-_A=+—BLF
B ARBEEREREAEBETHER
BRBRBERARNAERREENH
18 F % 22,130,000 L(Z T — W F :
32,685,000/ 7C) °



31.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)

Movements of share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme during

the year are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

31

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

BREREE)
FRBRETEIREATERRENE
BT

2015 2014

s

Weighted
average

exercise price

if —T-mF
Weighted
average

exercise price

mEFY N9

TfEE 1TEE
HK$  Number of HK$  Number of
per share options per share options
SRET BREHE BRBT BREHE
At | January m—A—H 331 77,819,265 250 35850000
Granted during the year FERRE 1456 4,500,000 382 50000000
Adjusted during the year FAHE 1.567 92,632,716 329 635,393
Forfeited during the year FRRIK 1.264 (2,955) — —
Lapsed during the year FRXM 1264 (1,007,916) 382 (1,000,000
Exercised during the year FATTRE 2724 (40,674,003) 249 (7,666,128)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 1.585 133,267,107 331 77819,265

At 31 December 2015, the Company had 133,267,107 (2014: 77,819,265)

share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which represents

approximately 1.92% (2014: 3.42%) of the Company's shares in issue as at 3|

December 2015. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under

the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 133,267,107

additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of

HK$211,209,000 (before issuance expenses). The option periods of the share

options are from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021, from 10 January 2014 to 9 January
2024 and from || June 2015 to 10 June 2025.

R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—HB &K
DAl ABI133267,107(ZF — W F
7781926517 ) BB RR #E 5t &1 T i R T8
HMERE GAARRZE—RFT=
A=T—BEETROHNL192%(=F
—E :342%) ° REBALD A B AIHE
AR BHRBERETHIR 28
BEEINEE AT 133267, 107 R AN DX A) X @
&+ AR EBIMNIRZR 211,209,000 % 7T (KA
FRETTHX) - BRENHETESRER
“E-—FNAZFtMAZE=E=_—F
NANB ZE-NE-ATHEZZE
“ME-AABR-_ZE-RESAT—
BE-Z-AFX A+H-
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

32.

SHARE AWARD RESERVE

On 27 October 201 I, the Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme™) under which shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”)
may be awarded to selected employees (including directors) of any members of
the Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules
and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The share award scheme became
effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will

remain in force for |0 years from that date, i.e, 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under
the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme is
limited to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
(ie. 164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may
be awarded to a Selected Employee in any |2-month period up to and including
the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital of

the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000 shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include
service and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of Directors of the
Company at the time of making the award and become entitled to the shares
of the Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer the

relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award Scheme

shall be exercised by the independent trustee who shall abstain from voting.
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32.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

SHARE AWARD RESERVE (continued) 32. RORBREEE)
Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 31 December 2015 are R-E—RFE+-_A=+—RABHEX
set out below: HENRBROOFEHIINT
Average
fair value Number Number of
per share  of Awarded Number of Number of Awarded
(HK$) Shares Awarded Awarded Shares
Date of Awarded BR¥H granted Shares vested  Shares lapsed unvested
Shares granted AE RURE CHEBRE CARRE REBRRB Vesting dates
RHRBROHEH (Br) BKROMNEE KRONHEE BKRONEE KONHE SEEH
Before adjustment for bonus issue
PALRBATREA
9/4/2014 4.00 9,406,000 (6,228,000) (113,000) 3,065,000 30/11/2016
15/4/2015 9.87 ['1,551,000 (3,858,000) (27,000) 3,843,000 30/11/2016
3,823,000  30/11/2017
After adjustment for bonus issue
PMARBITRABR
9/4/2014 1.33 28218000  (18,684,000) (339,000) 9,195000 30/11/2016
15/4/2015 329 34653000  (11,574,000) (81,000) 11,529,000  30/11/2016
11,469,000 30/11/2017

The Group has recognised HK$2,833,000 (2014: HK$3,516,000) in profit or loss
for the dividend paid to grantees with the Awarded Shares on the vesting date. The

Group has also recognised a share-based compensation expense of HK$78,651,000

for the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme in profit or loss (2014
HK$31,052,000). 20,166,000 Awarded Shares have been either transferred to the

grantees or sold in accordance with their instructions at no cost (2014: 8,271,000

Awarded Shares) for the year ended 3| December 2015.

AEBEERINTHEERSARERE
ROMARANKREERE P HER
2,833,000/ (= T — I £ : 356,000
BIL) o REBIRE sk REFEIET
R AR (D N IB R FERIARD R AR M
BRI 78,651,000/ L(ZF— M4 :
31,052,000/ 7T) ° 20,166,000 B R EHAL (5
EREE_Z-AF+_A=+—HL
FE(ZT—F 82710008 EEE
ETERASBBEEETREE -
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

32.

33.

SHARE AWARD RESERVE (continued)

291,000 Awarded Shares lapsed prior to their vesting date as a result of staff
resignations for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 238,000 Awarded
Shares).

After considering the number of shares which were granted in prior years, as at 31
December 2015, the total number of the Awarded Shares that can be awarded
was 126,800,000 which represents appropriately 1.83% of the Company's shares in

issue as at 31 December 2015.

SHARES HELD UNDER THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during the year are as

32. RORBREEE)
BE-_T-—AF+-_A=1+—-HLHF
& mRMESER - 291,000 8% 228 AR D
(ZF— U4 : 238,000 IR 17 ) A E
5B A HRTR -

KBZRIANFERTHREHE
# RZT-—AE+ZA=+—H 7
TR B S E AR 1 42 807 126,800,000
B AR RAR S —AF+=A
=T—HEBTRIEY 1.83%

33. REROGRBEZSEORS
RER D REE SR BNROREAN

follows: EIT
2015 2014
—EB-RE —E-EF
Number Number
HK$°000 of shares HK$'000 of shares
TEx ROEAE TET BRHEE
At | January R—A—H 102,897 24,381,800 56,702 18,354,000
Purchased during the year RENEE 119,897 10,410,000 39,691 9,171,000
Subscription for rights issue B AR — — 27,177 5,127,800
Adjustment for bonus issue AR EITHE — 62,303,600 =
Vested and transferred out RERFERE T
during the year (23,151) (20,166,000) (20,673)  (8,271,000)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 199,643 76,929,400 102,897  24381,800

During the year ended 3| December 2015, the trustee acquired 10,410,000
ordinary shares (2014: 9,171,000 ordinary shares) of the Company for the Share
Award Scheme through purchases in the open market, with entitlement of
13,540,000 bonus shares on 9 July 2015, at a total cost, including related transaction
costs of approximately HK$ 119,897,000 (2014: HK$39,691,000).
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34.

35.

Notes to Financial Statements

RESERVES 34.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are presented in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 represents
a merger reserve, being the difference between the issued share capital of
HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited and the amount of share
capital and share premium of HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company transferred and
issued to GJHL in exchange for the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited on 14 June 2010.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35.

AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease payables

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—FE-AFFA=1—H

&
ARENRESERAEZHNGAER

BHENZE -

RZE-NER-F-RAF+=A
=T—H AEEHMHEERE M
- BERER(BR)ERATNSE
1TIRA 31,980,000 B TR ZE—FF XA
THARARANBRELRERERER
BOIRARBRODGEN(UBRBRERER
(BB)ERRAAMEHEBITRA) S
1,268,440,000 78 7T 2 R ) Z %8

REMEAE  BFRERHMA

R-E-AF+-A=1+—H X&HE
REFAIHHESEHEE TRBRAZ
M RRENOREBETREENT :

2015 2014

—F-1Ff ZT@OF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TRT TRT

Within one year —FR 4,841 —
In the second to fifth years, inclusive _EhFE(BEEERTF) 7,989 =
12,830 =

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
AND OTHER COMMITMENTS (continued)

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and renovation of
premises of approximately HK$ 1,364,000 which were contracted but not provided
forasat 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$6,681,000).

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO, takeover and
merger activities and financial obligations to loans facilities granted to customers.
As at 31 December 2015, the underwriting and financial obligations were
approximately HK$ 1,383 million and HK$ 1,272 million respectively (2014: HK$12.3
million and HK$763.0 million).

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

3/ December 2015
—E-RF1ZA=+-H
36. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 3. EEREHREEEMS
Directors’ current emoluments ) EZEEHE
The current emoluments of every director of the Company paid/payable by AEBHZ_ZT-NFER-_T—TF
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 are set out F+-A=+—-RILEEEHN/E
below: NEREBESRENMEEIM
T
Year ended 3| December 2015 BZ-_ZE-1%+-HA=t+—-HIL
EE
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
Directors’ Salary and  Discretionary scheme
fee allowance bonuses EEMEMKE Total
EEHE  HIREE BiEA sHEIHER -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director ESf4 TER TER ThR TER Thr
Executive directors: HITEE -
Yim Fung (Note (1)) i (BT EE (i) — 3,301 6,750 18 10,069
Wong Tung Ching L5 — 3,150 8,000 18 11,168
Qi Haiying (Note (i)) ARG (P 5E (if)) — 2,963 5,000 — 7,963
Li Guangjie AR = 2910 4,000 18 6,928
Li Sang, Edward (Note (i) 254 (Y (i) — 2,580 2,840 18 5438
Independent non-executive 1L HHTTEE
directors:
Fu Tingmei (ERE2S 378 = = = 378
Song Ming R 378 — — — 378
Tsang Yiu Keung 125 378 = = = 378
,134 14,904 26,590 72 42,700

HEEEZZEBRZERERDA

2015 £ |

i



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

36. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 3. EEREREEEME 2
(continued)
(a) Directors’ current emoluments (continued) @ ESEEME (&)
Year ended 3| December 2014 BE-T-ME+-A=+—-HI
£
Employer's
contribution
to pension
Directors' Salaryand  Discretionary scheme
fee allowance bonuses EFMEAKE Total
EXHE  FoREM BfETEAL st Bl 15t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director EEE FAL FET FAL FET TET
Executive directors: HITEE -
Yim Fung (Note (1)) A& (B 2 (7)) — 1,944 13500 17 15,46
II 7 8 Wong Tung Ching L5 — 2466 7350 17 9833
- Li Guangjie FHA — 18] 2100 17 3998
Li Sang, Edward (Note (iil)) 24 (B3 (i) — [,768 1,750 17 3535

Independent non-executive 781/ BT TEF

directors:

Fu Tingmei fBEx 315 — — 315

Song Ming KB 315 — — 315

Tsang Yiu Keung L 315 = = = 315
945 8,059 24700 68 33772

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive FRNTEEEHTETHAEHNE

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. IR B RE R HI 2 -

Note (i): B RE i)

Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer of the Company. BB+ AR AT RNITEERITHE

o

Note (ii): PR (i) -

Ms. Qi Haiying was appointed as an executive director with effect from 5 March BEELTTEZEARTESRE R

2015, T-AF=-ARARLEM -

Note (iii): B (i -

Mr. Li Sang, Edward has resigned as an executive director with effect from 24 BEAEDE-E—NE—f -+

February 2016. BRBEMITES

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

36. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Directors’ deferred emoluments

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or less over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration

disclosures.

Certain directors were granted share awards under the share award scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements. As at 3|1 December 2015, the total number of the
Awarded Shares to directors’ amounted to 13,766,000 and HK$39.0 million

share-based compensation expenses has been recognised in profit or loss.

The amount of share-based compensation expense illustrated in the below
table represents amortisation to profit or loss of the fair value of these
share options and awarded shares granted to the directors measured at the

respective grant dates.

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

3. EEREHEEEMS (£

(b)

EZELEMS

RER - BTESREARARBR
B E AR KB R RO RS M
BRERE £ SR EENTG
WRME3 - ARBREND T
EHENHFBHREABRRTHER)
TR L BHEE - Mat AXEE
PHERROEBECIALEEER
TRITHRABHMEET -

ETESREAQ ARG RE) 2
BEBROER E£-—FFFAR
BHEREMEN - RZT—HF
+ZA=1+—H BTEZENEE
WD 4B 8 5 13,766,0000% * 39.05
EBATUARN AERNREERXE
RIBEPHER

TR AR A AR FEFX
SBERRTEEMRRERZRR
HRERRL B ENQFER
BERTHOBHEEE -

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
36. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 3. EEREHEEEME 2
(continued)
(b) Directors’ deferred emoluments (continued) (b) EBEZEME(E)
Year ended 3| December 2015 BZ-_E-RE+-A=+—-AHI
£E
Share-based compensation reserve
URGBAERBERER
Share option scheme Share award scheme
B E 8 Rt R Bt &
Share award
Share option expense
expense (Note 32)
(Note 31) R R
BRERX Fx
Dateof  (Mf&3I) Date  (ftik32)
1 80 grant HK$'000 of grant HK$'000
Name of director EEnP R AH TR R AH THET
Executive directors: HITEE
Yim Fung (Note (i)) T (BT (i) 4222013 1,322
1/10/2014 1,506 4/912014 4300
4/15/2015 16,890
Wong Tung Ching FL5 4122013 431
1/10/2014 793 4/9/2014 1,215
4/15/2015 9,201
Qi Haiying (Note (ii)) B8 3 (PMTEE (1)) 6/11/2015 4,600 —
Li Guangjie RN 421013 104
1/10/2014 396 4/9/2014 346
4/15/2015 2,627

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

Directors’ deferred emoluments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

3. EEREREEEMS (&)

) EBELME(S)

BZE-Z-hR%+-HA=+—-HL
EEE)

Share-based compensation reserve

URG B EREERE
Share award scheme

gy iHE i

Share option scheme

BRETE

Share award

Share option expense
expense (Note 32)
(Note 31) R R
BRI X
Dateof  (Mf&3I) Date  (ftik32)
grant HK$'000 of grant HK$'000
Name of director Esns R AH TR R A THET
Li Sang, Edward (Note (iii)) 2 A (PR3 (i) 412212013 98
1/10/2014 396 4/9/2014 288
4/15/2015 2,191
Independent non-executive BUIHTEE -
directors:
Fu Tingmei B3 — -
Song Ming R — —
Tsang Yiu Keung LR _ —
7,691 39,013

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

36. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b) Directors’ deferred emoluments (continued)

Year ended 3| December 2014

36. EEREREEEME (£

(b) EBELEMEE)
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—H1t
£33

Share-based compensation reserve

AR BER R (S (A

Share option scheme Share award scheme
FRERT 2] Rxin st El

Share award

Share option expense

expense (Note 32)

(Note 31) R fn 228

BRI % 53

Dateof  (Fi&E31) Dateof  (Pi#E32)

grant HK$'000 grant HK$'000

Name of director EE S Kt B8 TAET KA THET
Executive directors: HITEE -

Yim Fung (Note (i)) T (BT (i) 3/3012012 1319

412412012 417 412212013 2,729

/1022014 2916 4/9/2014 7525

Wong Tung Ching FL5 3/30/2012 365

412412012 208 412212013 890

1/10/2014 1,535 41912014 2,126

Li Guangjie RN 3/30/2012 83

41242012 104 4/22/2013 215

1/10/2014 768 4/9/2014 610

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

Directors’ deferred emoluments (continued)

Year ended 3| December 2014 (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

36. EERESHEEEMS (£

(b) EBEZEME(Z)

BE_T-NF+t_A=1—HIt
FE&)
Share-based compensation reserve
B RER A E R

Share option scheme Share award scheme

FRERT 2] Rxin st El
Share award
Share option expense
expense (Note 32)
(Note 31) R fn 228
BRI % 53

Dateof  (Fi&E31) Dateof  (Pi#E32)
grant HK$'000 grant HK$'000
Name of director EE S Kt B8 TAET KA THET
Li Sang, Edward (Note (ii)) 24 (B (ii)) 3/3012012 83
412412012 104 412212013 204
/1012014 768 4/9/2014 509
Independent non-executive directors: I FEHTTEFE -

Fu Tingmei (ERES 42412012 35 —
Song Ming RE 412412012 35 =
Tsang Yiu Keung TR 412472012 35 —
6925 16,658

HEZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

36.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(b)

Directors’ deferred emoluments (continued)

Note (i):

Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer of the Company.

Note (ii):
Ms. Qi Haiying was appointed as an executive director with effect from 5 March
2015.

Note (ii):
Mr. Li Sang, Edward has resigned as an executive director with effect from 24
February 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors received total
remuneration amounting to HK$89.4 million (2014: HK$57.4 million),
which included share-based compensation and share award expenses of
approximately HK$7.7 million (2014: HK$6.9 million) attributable to share
options granted and of HK$39.0 million (2014: HK$16.7 million) attributable
to share awards granted by Company, part of which is in respect of their

services to the Company.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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37.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

37, RETHELENRESRE

2015 2014
—B-1Ff CZT@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz TERT

Cash flows from operating activities RETHELENHESRE
Profit before tax BR B AT Al 1,168,122 929216
Adjustments for: R

Depreciation nE 28,664 23,643

Share-based compensation expense PARR R RE R R ER X 103,614 67,253

Net impairment charge on loans and BTEFERKBRREREE

advances to customers 173 92
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BFE RREMERE (70) (8)
Net impairment charge of accounts receivable NI R EF 5 5,335 2,750
1,305,838 1,022,946

Decrease/(increase) in other assets HEwEERD, /(3EMm) 108 (1,921)
Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AT EFTABZM & EEN (3,273,999) (369,372)
Increase in derivative financial instruments TSR I AEM 4814 —
Increase in loans and advances to customers BT RPERRBIEN (3,276,866) (3,093,864)
Increase in accounts receivable FEU FRIRE I (936,351) (4972)
Increase in receivable from reverse repurchase agreements [ [/ [21 % 17 =2 FE 4 IR 38 40 (509,695) —
Increase in obligations under repurchase agreements (5] 8% 175 = A0 (R TR 52 400,517
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JEfFUIE * & R H th FEUGRIRE N (129,930) (107511)
Increase in financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFABRO SRS B

through profit or loss 505,340 =
Increase in client trust bank balances KPSt RITA M (5,653,082) (1,043,068)
Increase in accounts payable FERTFRIAIE M 8,213,844 884,088
Increase in other payables and accrued liabilities Hfth A FRIE K B 5t A IS N 63,277 57,636
Cash used in operations REXEHRAR S (3,286,185) (2,656,038)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBNEH (198,082) (93,624)
Net cash flows used in operating activities RETHHRREREFE (3484,267)  (2,749,662)
Cash flows from operating activities included: REZHNHEREEHE

~ Interest received —EFE 1,073,000 766,873

— Interest paid —BRFE 242,705 91,228

— Dividend received —EBRE 5,664 8,956

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

AUEEHFMAL
BRABEMATELENHERENTAX
MRS FRAMLRDH MW
BEBR=-R(-T-—HEF ME)E
FEHMARBER EXME36 - FR
ﬁﬁm%(:ﬁfﬂi‘:%)#%$&
HMESMFBHEOT

38. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 38.
Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales generated by the
individuals, the five highest paid employees during the year included three (2014:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 36 above. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining two (2014: three) non-director and highest

paid employees for the year are as follows:

2015 2014

—¥-1F —T-MOF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TRz TRT

Salary and allowance e KR 5,490 5,049

Discretionary bonuses BIETEAT 13,500 17,150

Employer's contribution to pension scheme BF MRS TEHK 36 34

Sub-total et 19,026 22,233
/I 86 Share-based compensation reserve MR RERHERX

— Share option expense —BRER X 476 1,792

— Share award expense — R fn 22BN B 8,564 2918

Total At 28,066 26943

The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of the Group fall within the AEEEREMALTHMEN TUTE
following bands: HE
2015 2014
—E-EfF —E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Emolument bands [V
—HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 —7,000,001 7T ZE 7,500,000 7 7T = |
— HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 —7,500,001 & 7L & 8,000,000 47T — |
— HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000 —12,000,001 #JTZE 12,500,000 & 7T = |
—HK$13,000,001 to HK$ 13,500,000 —13,000,001 7L E 13,500,000 57T | —
— HK$14,500,001 to HK$ 15,000,000 — 14,500,001 7L E 15,000,000 % 7T | =
2 3

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

3/ December 2015
—F-FFt=f=+-A
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BBAIXS
(@ Inaddition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the financial @) BREBBREITHINNR S RE
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with related BN NEBRERNEBE FETT
parties during the year. WTERRS °
2015 2014
—B-n% —T-IF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
FieE TER TEX
Commission expenses to the ultimate X TREAZFRAFMNAELEZ
holding company (0) (9,246) (2,802)
Professional and consultancy fees paid X FRANBARINEERHEHE
to a fellow subsidiary (i) (14,640) (12,920)
Management fee and performance fee BAARZEMBARIEER
income from a private fund managed ~ RIZMBARIRENILEES
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of FRRERBRARKBEERA
the Company and invested ’I 87
by a fellow subsidiary (i) 7,426 4160
Total fees received from a private fund  FLEESWEHNEEH (iv) 581 1,052
Commission income from a public fund BRI ZMBAREEMNAEES
managed by a fellow subsidiary B AEKA v) 449 330
Commission income from the BRNERRAIKERSBERA
intermediate holding company (vi) 2,027 1,216
Commission income from the BREERARIKBNAEEKA
ultimate holding company (vii) 301 353
Commission income from BEEERARKBRNEEKA
the immediate holding company (viii) 123 235

HBZZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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B RS M

31 December 2015
= S Y=
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) BBAERS (&)
(@)  (continued) @ (#&)
2015 2014
—B-1F —T-DF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5E T TR
Management fee income from a public BARAEZEHBAREER
fund managed by a wholly-owned RNERRAARENAEES
subsidiary of the Company and KRR EEBRA
invested by the intermediate holding
company (ix) 7,200 10,622
Management fee income from public ~ BAARZEMBARERR
funds managed by a wholly-owned R ERR AEHN AR E S KEE
subsidiary of the Company and EREWA
controlled by the intermediate holding
company x) 1,462 1,066
Management fee income from a public BARAZEMBAREER
fund managed by a wholly-owned R % HE’AE& EMAEES
subsidiary of the Company and BEBEERBRA
invested by a fellow subsidiary (xi) 779 949
Commission income from the BREESREHASRA
investment fund (i) 30 85
Professional fee and consultancy fee X FRAERARINZEERFBHE
paid to the ultimate holding company (xiii) (200) 271)

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

()

(vi)

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were calculated
based on the percentage of the transaction value stated in the cooperation

agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Professional and consultancy fees paid to a fellow subsidiary for the provision
of capital market information were charged at HK$ 14,640,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$12,920,000).

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a private
fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by
a fellow subsidiary were charged at |.5% per annum of the net asset value at
the last working day of each month and 20% of the positive increment in the

net asset value for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Total fees received from the private fund mentioned in note (iii) above
included commission income which was based on 0.25% of the transaction

value.

Commission income received from a public fund managed by a fellow
subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement

with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Commission income received from the intermediate holding company was
based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with wholly-

owned subsidiaries of the Company.

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

39. BHBARS(E)

@ (&)

(iii)

)

X FREERD RN AEH
X BARRRN—REEM
BRRBINEER DA
RAEBDLEE -

BE-T—RF+=-A=1—
BIEFERRZM B A ARE
BAMBERNBEERZAE
1 14,640,00078 7L (—F—T
1 12,920000587T) °

BARRZEMBRARERER
FAMERARRENLERES
WERH) B B IRARKRIRER
ARBE_Z-LF+_H
St HLEFERAREK -
BITHERNBEEFESS 5%
VAR & FE B 1B ANEE &Y 20% 12
o

ER MR- - A
OMBERBERERSEN
025%TEHIAEHRA

BRRMBAREENAEE
LREBHEE WA AKRART]
—RK2ENBRRARILNEL
AR EBKE -

BN ERARERA ALK
ATHREARR —REEME
DRIFRR]EVAEAC 1R T AL A
TEEURER -

HEZXEBEERERAA
2015 £ |
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B RS M

31 December 2015

ZEF-A¥Ff+ZA=1—H

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@)  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(viii)

(i)

(i)

Commission income received from the ultimate holding company was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.

Commission income received from the immediate holding company was
based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income received from the public fund managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by the intermediate
holding company was charged based on the percentage prescribed in the

investment management agreement for the year ended 3| December 2015.

The management fee income received from three public funds (31 December
2014: three) managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
controlled by the intermediate holding company was based on a percentage
prescribed in the respective investment management agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The management fee income received from a public fund managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary
was based on the percentage prescribed in the investment management

agreement for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Commission income received from the investment fund mentioned in note (xi)
above was based on the percentage stated in the signed brokerage agreement

with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Professional fee and consultancy fee paid to the ultimate holding company
were based on the usage of research reports and financial advisory services
provided to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally

engaged in the provision of futures dealing and broking services.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@)  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xiv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

Included in the Group's accounts payable is a broker payable due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$99,321,000 (2014: HK$43,634,000) arising
from the dealing in securities as at 3| December 2015. The balance is
unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under the relevant

market practices.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable is a broker receivable due from
the ultimate holding company of HK$251,285,000 (2014: HK$42,059,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 3|1 December 2015. The credit terms
provided to the ultimate holding company are consistent with the practice
of the securities dealing industry. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and

receivable on the settlement day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the accounts receivable are management fee and performance fee
receivables due from investment funds managed by the Group mentioned
above of HK$808,000 (2014: HK$4,251,000) arising from the provision
of asset management services as at 3|1 December 2015. The balances are

unsecured, interest-free and receivable monthly in arrears.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable is the accounts receivable to the
certain investment funds mentioned in note (v) above arising from dealing in
securities in an aggregate amount of HK$71,000 as at 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: Nil).

Included in the client trust bank balance is a deposit from an intermediate
holding company which is HK$48,816,000 as at 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: HK$54,610,000).
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

39.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

The Group's ultimate holding company, Guotai Junan, is subject to the
control of the PRC Government which also controls a significant portion
of assets and entities in the PRC (collectively referred to as “state-owned
enterprises’”). Therefore, transactions with state-owned enterprises are

regarded as related party transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group were entered
into with state-owned banks. In addition, the Group enters into transactions
with state-owned enterprises that relate to the Group's normal business
activities, including but not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance
business, asset management business, loans and financing business and
investment holding and market making business. These transactions are
entered into in the ordinary course of business at an arm’s length and
under the normal commercial terms and conditions as to those that would
have been entered into with non-state-owned enterprises, which were not

considered as individually significant in accordance with HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii), (v) to (viii), (x) and
(xiii) above also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group

are disclosed in note 36.
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40.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and monitoring of these risks which are an inevitable consequence of
being in business. The Group's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise a potential adverse effect on the Group's

financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the Board of Directors
and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information. The Board of Directors provides written principles for
overall risk management. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies

to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised

below:

Credit risk
Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to customers, accounts
receivable, debt securities, bank balances and client trust bank balances which are

included in the Group's asset portfolio.
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Board of Directors delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor
the credit risk of the Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia,
the Chief Executive Officer, Responsible Officers, the Chief Financial Officer and
the Head of Equity Financing Department. The Credit Committee is responsible for

the development of financing business and approval of major credit exposure.

The Equity Financing Department is responsible for approval, monitoring and
review of the Group's credit risk of margin clients. It is also responsible for making
settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits.
Failure to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of the client’s position. The
credit limit and margin limit for each client and the lending ratio of securities
acceptable as margin collateral prepared by the Equity Financing Department will

be further approved by the Credit Committee.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of
credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure by performing a detailed credit
analysis, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance. These key investment decisions are also subject to approval by the

Credit Committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription of new
shares are normally settled within | week from the drawdown date. Forced
liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within

a specific period of tolerance after the IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's ratings
or their equivalents are used by the Risk Management Department for managing
credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group’s own assessment through the

use of internal rating tools.
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40.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group's bank balances are deposited in respectable and large commercial
banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in segregated accounts,
they are deposited in authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk

of bank balances and client trust bank balances are considered to be manageable.

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients arising from
dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement
term of | to 3 days. The Group allows credit up to the settlement dates of the
respective securities transactions (normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All applications
for credit limits must be reviewed by the Credit Manager and approved by any
member of the Credit Committee. However, no credit limit would be granted
to new clients. The Equity Financing Department determines whether a forced
liquidation action is to be taken against clients with overdue balances on a case-by-

case basis. The Credit Committee regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for futures, options
and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking. No transaction is allowed to
be executed if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The
margin deposit placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposits of each
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange contract are timely monitored
by both the dealers and the Risk Management Department. Margin calls will
be executed by the on-site duty staff for futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange brokerage business if there is a deficit with the margin deposit. Forced
liquidation of the customer’s position will be executed if the customer fails to meet

the margin calls.

With the above stated controls, management considers that the credit risk of the
Group resulting from securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange

brokerage business as well as margin and other loan financing is manageable.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial
institutions which are govered by regulators. The credit risk of accounts receivable

from brokers and dealers is considered to be manageable.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from corporate finance, asset management and investment holding and
market making businesses are manageable as the credit rating and reputation of

trade counterparties are sound.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing

houses are considered to have minimal credit risk.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding amounts at
least monthly or more regularly depending on individual circumstances or market
condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined
by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period on a case-
by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment
normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that individual
account. Generally, impairment allowances will be provided when clients fail to
meet margin call requirements and clients’ collateral are insufficient to cover their

outstanding loan balances.
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40.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancements

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties

fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the reporting period, in relation to

each class of financial assets, is the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in

the statement of financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the

Group at 31 December 2015 and 2014, without taking account of any collateral

held or other credit enhancements attached.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@)

Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the majority of cash
and bank balances are located in Hong Kong. As the Group's bank balances
and client trust bank balances are deposited with a number of financially
sound financial institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances is

insignificant.

Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to customers
(including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan financing) and accounts
receivable from clients are individuals who are mainly located in China.
The Equity Financing Department and Risk Management Department
daily prepares key margin client and future, options and leveraged foreign
exchange client exposure for review to avoid excessive concentration of
risk. As the Group trades with a large number of diversified clients, in the
opinion of the directors, the concentration of risk of loans and advances to

customers and accounts receivable from clients is manageable.
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

(c)  Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing houses and

others

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers and
dealers from its securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange
brokerage business as well as other receivables from asset management,
corporate finance and investment holding and market making businesses.
Responsible Officers timely monitor excess deposits placed with dealers
and brokers to ensure the concentration of risk of accounts receivable is

manageable.

Securities borrowing and lending

In the normal course of brokerage business, the Group may enter into securities
borrowing and lending arrangements with financial institutions and the Group's
customers. As at 31 December 2015, the Group borrowed equity securities
of HK$57,653,000 (2014: HK$103,342,000) from financial institutions and set
aside equity securities of HK$259,144,000 (2014: HK$218,694,000) pledged by
margin clients, for such lending arrangements to customers. Cash collateral of
HK$542,502,000 (2014: HK$379,305,000) was received from the customers while
HK$62,335,000 (2014: HK$119,002,000) was placed to the financial institutions.
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40.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Secunties borrowing and lending (continued)

The Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and lending
transactions and is not subject to significant price risk. However, under the securities
borrowing and lending arrangement, the cash collateral received and cash collateral
placed are included in the accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers
and dealers, respectively. The Group is principally liable to repay the borrowed

secunities in case of any default by the customers.

In the normal course of investment holding and market making business, the
Group may also enter into securities borrowing and lending arranged with financial
institutions. As at 31 December 2015, the Group borrowed exchange-traded
funds of HK$6,492,000 from a financial institution for the market making activities
and placed HK$6,817,000 to the financial institution as cash collateral. As at 31
December 2014, the Group set aside exchange-traded funds HK$ 16,632,000

pledged by margin clients for its market making activities.

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as

interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed it to interest rate
risk and price risk. The market risk mainly includes cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk. The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and

controlling the market risk arising from these financial instruments.
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers, accounts receivable,
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, accounts payable to
clients, bank borrowings, debt securities in issue, receivable from reverse repurchase
agreements, obligation under repurchase agreements, client trust bank balances and
cash and bank balances. Debt investments usually bear a fixed rate interest and they

are managed through the strategy of trading them within a short period of time.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at variable rates exposed the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Other financial assets and liabilities which are
mainly carried at amortised cost are either non-interest-bearing or fixed interest-
bearing with short term maturities within one year, of which the interest rate
risk is also considered to be minimal. The Group mitigates its interest rate risk by
monitoring market interest rate movements and revising the interest rates offered
to its customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential adverse effects of
interest rate movements on net interest income. The Group regularly calculates
the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate shift on its portfolio of bank

borrowings, margin loans receivable and interest-bearing bank deposits.

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the interest rate by 1% (2014: 1%),
with all other variables held constant, the net interest income for the year ended 3|
December 2015 would have been increased/decreased by approximately HK$215.3
million (2014: HK$143.6 million), but the fair value of the debt investments for
the year ended 31 December 2015 would have been decreased/increased by
approximately HK$ 3.6 million (2014: HK$20.6 million). The estimated [% increase
or decrease represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change

in interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting period.
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40.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The financial products and derivative financial instruments held by the Group are
structured as debt securities in issue for sales to customers. They are not subject to

significant risk as the risk has been transferred to customers accordingly.

Equity Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity instruments and
fund investments held by the Group which are classified in the statement of financial
position as financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Price risk
is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations, whether
such a change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or
factors affecting all instruments traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its price
risk by performing detailed due diligence analysis of investments and dedicated

professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance of investments.

At 31 December 2015, the profit before tax would increase/decrease by HK$24.9
million for the equity and fund investment held for trading (2014: HK$9.6 million)
should the Hang Seng Index (the "HSI") increase/decrease by 10% (2014: 10%).
The analysis is based on the assumption that all the equity instruments move
according to the historical correlation with the HSI and with all other variables held

constant.

The asset quality of the margin clients’ margin collateral will deteriorate when the
market comes down drastically. Scenario analysis and stress testing are regularly

performed on an individual client basis.
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign currency

exchange rates will affect the Group's financial results and its cash flows.

The Group's foreign exchange risk principally arises from its leveraged foreign
exchange dealing and broking business as well as the Group's transactions which

are denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars.

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group hedges the
majority of the client positions through back-to-back transactions with external
counterparties. As the Group adopts a stringent control over its positions, it is

considered that foreign exchange risk exposure is manageable.

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars (“USD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group is not
exposed to matenial foreign exchange risk because HKD is pegged with USD. The
Group also conducts appropriate hedging activities when it is exposed to material
exchange risk in RMB. Other foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal to its
total assets and liabilities. The foreign exchange risk is daily managed and monitored
by the Finance Department. As a result, it is considered that foreign exchange risk

exposure is manageable.
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40.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
the Finance Department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining available

committed credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by the Finance Department to ensure the

availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprising
undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows in strict compliance with statutory requirements. This is
achieved by monitoring the liquidity position of the individual companies within the
Group on a daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all
obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such as the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.

The following table summarises the maturity profiles of the Group's financial

liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash flows.

40.
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31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 40. TREAKRER %)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRR(E)
As at 3|1 December 2015 R=B-ZFt=-A=+-H
Upto |tolessthan 3 to less than
| month 3 months 12 months | to 5 years Total
—-fBAR —-E=fAR =Et+=fEA -Z28f st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TRT TER TET TR
Liabilities &
Accounts payable e300 18218312 — — — 18218312
Bank borrowings RITER 4,772,128 — - 3,095,580 7,867,708
Debt securities in issue BRITEBES 1,929,048 311,610 — 127,711 2,368,369
Financial liabilties at fair BAFER ARRA
value through profit or loss eRA% 505,243 — — — 505,243
Obligations under B =GR
repurchase agreements 400,517 = = — 400,517
25,825,248 311,610 = 3223291 29,360,149
Off-balance sheet items EESERIMER
Underwriting obligations R Gh 1,382,578 = = = 1,382,578
Financial obligations to loan faciities B R BB E (T 1,272,086 — — — 1,272,086
Capital commitments BRI 1,364 = = — 1,364
2,656,028 = = — 2,656,028
Derivative cash flow TERER
Derivative financial instruments 1R @R EM
settled on a gross basis TeemIA
Total inflow R — 13513 13,662 515,061 542,236
Total outflow @ = (13,513) (13,662) (515,061) (542,236)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2014

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

40. TREBRERZ)
RBESEB(E)

R-Z-OE+=A=+-H

Upto  ltolessthan  3to less than
| month 3 months |2 months | to 5 years Total
—f@AR —E=fA =E+_fA —Zh%¥ @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET T TR T

Liabilties =L

Accounts payable JERT TR 10,004468 — — — 10004468

Bank borrowings AERITEN 3479,195 — — 990,000 4469,195

Debt securities in issue BR{TESRER 87,542 83952 — — 171,494
13,571,205 83952 — 990,000 14,645,157

Off-balance sheet items BEESERMNEE

Underwriting obligations AR 12320 — — — 12,320

Financial obligations to loan faclities B A KA 763041 — — — 763,041

Capital commitments BEAEE 6,681 — — = 6,681

782,042 — — — 782,042
Derivative cash flow TERER
Derivative financial instruments RBBEER
settled on a gross basis TEeRIE
Total inflow @iRA — 7,734 14090 557,585 579,409
Total outflow @i — (7,734) (14090) (557,585) (579,409)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities not measured at fair value are not materially different from their

carrying amount due to their short term nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Group's valuation process

The Level | and Level 2 fair values of financial assets are measured by reference to
quoted market prices and brokers’ quotes, respectively. The Group has engaged
an independent professionally qualified valuer, International Valuation Limited, to
perform the valuation of financial instruments in Level 3 for financial reporting
purposes. These valuation reports are sent to the Finance Department and the
Audit Committee for discussion at least twice per annum, which is in line with the

Group's reporting dates.

At each financial year end, the Finance Department reviews all significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to measure the fair values of
financial instruments in Level 3. Changes in fair values of Levels 2 and 3 financial

assets are analysed at each reporting date.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

40. SRERERS)
SRMEERARNAPEG)

RAFEGIENZHIAGE)

AFESH
TEMAREESRIANATENE
=2

BATES BOEE -

R-ZB-AE+ZA=+-H

Fair value measurement using

RANTRENAVENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB EBEAYUE  EREX
TERE £28 BE2Y
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(BI1&R) (&FE28 (B3R ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TET
Financial assets held for trading BIEEESRMERE
— Listed equity securities — ERAES 331,335 — — 331,335
— Listed debt securities — L hiERES — 1331445 — 1331445
— Unlisted debt securities — R MRS ES — 61,944 45,400 107,344
Financial assets designated as at fair EERATESABENERMEE
value through profit or loss
— Unlisted fund investments —FFLMEGEEA — 154,944 120,141 275,085
— Unlisted convertible promissory note ~ —JE_E M Al AR E i — — 152,756 152,756
— Financial products —eRER — 2429123 — 249,13
Derivative financial instruments TES@ITA — 24,952 — 24,952
331,335 4,002,408 318,297 4,652,040
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 40. TREAKRER %)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) SREEREBNATE(E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEAENSHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZER(E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BRATEFENEE : (£)
As at 3| December 2014 RN-BE-—NE+=-A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
FRAUTEENATERTE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ER BEAAE  EAEEZE
208 TERE  ESB  BESH
- (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(FI1HR) (B28R) (B34) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FAT FHET
Financial assets held for trading FIEEBESREE
— Listed equity securities — ERAES 240395 — — 240395
— Listed debt securities — EMERES = 774,949 = 774,949
— Unlisted debt securities — ¥ FHERESR — 41,285 86,826 128,111
Financial assets designated as at fair BEEAFEFTABRNEREE
value through profit or loss
— Unlisted fund investments —JFESKRE = 52,443 — 52443
— Unlisted convertible promissory note  — FE LT AR R & — — 157,191 157,191
Derivative financial instruments TEE2mIA — 1,766 — |,766

240,395 870,443 244017 1,354,855
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-mF{-A=t—A
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SRIEKREEZ)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) SREEREBNATE(E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) B FEEAEN BT AE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZR(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: BATEENRE
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-—RFE+-A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
RAUTRENA PEE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB BAWE  EXREX
mEHRE Z2H8 BEZH
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Tota
(BI1&R) (E2H (B3R At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T T TERr T
Financial liabilities at fair value BRATESABRNSRAE
through profit or loss
— Debit securities in issue —BETEEES —  (1,929,048) —  (1,929,048)
Financial liabilities held for trading KIEEESRAR
— Listed equity securities — ERAE S 97) — — (97)
— Listed debt securities — FmEKES — (505,243) — (505,243)
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA — (29,766) — (29,766)
(97)  (2,464,057) —  (2/464,154)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
= S Y=
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 40. TREAKRER %)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) SREEREBNATE(E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) B FEAENEHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEER(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) BRATEFENAE: (B)
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+=-A=1+—H
Fair value measurement using
RANTRENLTETE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB BAUE  EAEE
210 TERE  meM  BELK
- (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1&) (FE28)  (FB3®) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TET FET
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA — (1,766) — (1,766)
(@)  Financial instruments in Level | @ FIKERIA
The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based RREBERMGEENEMIALD
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A market is TERERSHRNT S RE
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from B RREBNTISIEAE S KE
an exchange, dealer, broker and those prices represent actual and regularly BRRSM  R5E  KERER
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market BEmiE  MRZERERREAT
price used for financial assets and financial liabilities held by the Group is the HEETHNERRERATSERS -
current bid price and current ask price. AEERFemEERERBEMN
AT SRERENNEREBRE

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(b)

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter) are determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs used in the valuation for financial instruments

are observable, the financial instruments are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market

data, the financial instrument is included in Level 3.

Except the conversion of the Convertible Preference Shares (level 2) into
ordinary shares of the Investee listed on the Stock Exchange (level I) in May
2014, there was no transfer of fair value measurement between Level | and
Level 2 for the years ended 3| December 2014 and 2015.

PR R IR
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015

ZE-RFETZA=T—AH

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 40. SREKREEE)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) SREEREBNATLE(Z)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEAENSHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZER(E)

() Financial instruments in Level 3 o E3REMT

—~

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial instruments for TREWNEHEZ-_E—NER_Z

<

the years ended 3| December 2014 and 2015. —AF+ZA=+-HLEFE £
3REMIANES -

For the year ended 3| December 2015 BE-_E-HF+=-A=+—H
fI:3: 4
Unlisted
convertible Unlisted
2 1 2 promissory fund
 —— Unlisted note investments

debt (Note 20)  (Note 20)

securities ¥LEm LT
¥Em THRBREE EERE Total
ERES  (MFE20)  (B¥EE20) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTEx FTERT FTER

At | January 2015 R-ZZE—hF—H—H 86,826 157,191 — 244,017
Purchases %i‘é’ — — 120,141 120,141
Receipt on maturity FA B HR R LUK (32,000) — — (32,000)
Accrued interest income FEGTRIBIA 3,324 3,092 — 6,416
Receipt of interest income WER B (3,324) (1,533) = (4,857)
Net (loss)/gain recognised PRI E AR

in profit or loss (B518) /W58 (9,426) (5,994) - (15,420)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—hF+-A=+—H 45,400 152,756 120,141 318,297
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(©

Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

40. SREREE#)
SREERBBNLATEE)
BLFEGEN AT AE)
PNFEER(E)

() BIREMIAE)

HE_T-ME+_A=1—HL

FE

Unlisted

Convertible

Promissory

Unlisted debt Note

Investments (Note 20)

LM

LW ABERE Total 213

EBES (F¥3£20) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET TRT

At | January 2014

Accrued interest income

Receipt of interest income

R-Z—NF—A—H
REUEE N
Y BRI 8 M A

Net (loss)/gain recognised in profit B2 A FER Y

or loss

(BR)/ W FE

At 31 December 2014

R-ZE-—NF+-A=1+—H

94,197 123575 217772
3321 2985 6306
(3,103) (2985) (6,088)
(7,589) 33616 26027
86,826 157,191 244017
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
= S Y=
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 40. CREAREE#E)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) CRMEEREBNATE(E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEAENSHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEERE
() Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) () BIREMIAE)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of TYALRTITAR_ZE—NEL
financial instruments as at 31 December 2014 and 2015: —E-RF+-_A=+—H#E
NBABZBER2HUME -
31 December 2015 —E-F%+=-H=+—H
Valuation
technique Significant unobservable input Average Sensitivity of the fair value to the input
fafE R ERELERSY 13 SYHATENSBE
Unlisted debt securities Binomial pricing  Credit spread above 53% 2% increase or decrease in the credit spread
model risk free rate above the risk-free rate, the fair value would
be decreased by HK$0.5 million or increased
by HK$0.5 million, respectively.
IF EERES “EAEEEN SRERRMENEESE 53% BRERRNENEESEE MRS
2% AHERDRIH0SBEEATRE
JOSEEET °
Unlisted convertible Binomial pricing  Pricing multiples of market |0% increase or decrease in the underlying
promissory note model comparable companies used to stock price, the fair value would be increased
determine the estimated equity by HK$11.0 million or decreased by HK$!1.0
value of the Project Company: million, respectively.
— Price to revenue multiple 1.8
— Price to book multiple 22
— Price to eamings multiple 22.1
FEEMARRER “BAEEEA ARETER QARG REEE BRARE LA skfER 0% - ATFERS R
5 A & LR R E (B S BN ORBATIAD | | 0ABAT
g
—hER 8
— kX 22
—Mmax 2.
Unlisted fund investments Recent N/A N/A N/A
transaction price
FEMESRE THZHE TEm Tam Tam
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
()  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

31 December 2014

Valuation

technique Significant unobservable input

fhERM EREERRESY

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

40. cREBEEZ)
SREERABNATEE)
BATEGTENZHIAE)
NEEERE)

( HE3REMIAE)

“E-PNFE+-A=+—H

Average/range Sensitivity of fair value to the input

TH/EE  SHHATENRER

Unlisted debt securities Binomial pricing ~ Credit spread above risk free rate
model

FEMERES “EAEERY SRERRMENEEEE

Unlisted convertible Binomial pricing  Pricing multiples of market

promissory note model comparable companies used to

determine the estimated equity
value of the Project Company:
— Price to revenue multiple
— Price to book multiple
— Price to earings muttiple
FEMABRRER “EATERE RBRNEBTERA QA REE
ENTEAELRRANEE

56% - 144% 2% increase or decrease in the credit spread
above the risk-free rate, the fair value would
be decreased by HK$ 1.2 million or increased
by HK$ 1.2 million, respectively.

5.6% - 144% RRNERBRMNENEESEENIHD
% RFERDPHRD 12BEBTK
BMI2ABAT
10% increase or decrease in the underlying
stock price, the fair value would be increased
by HK$11.7 million or decreased by HK$1 1.7

million, respectively.

16

23

152
HERZER LASRE 0% AFE
BAREMI7EEBTERL 178
BATL -

16

23

152
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital management
The Group's objectives for managing capital, which represent a broader concept

than the “equity” on the face of the statement of financial position, are:

J to comply with the capital requirements under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its subsidiaries which are licensed

corporations;

S to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders;
S to support the Group's stability and growth; and

S to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed subsidiary's
management based on the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. The
required information is filed with the SFC on a timely basis. The SFC requires each
licensed corporation to maintain a level of required liquid capital which is the higher
of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million and 5% of

the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities and clients’ margin.

A subsidiary of the Group is a member of the Hong Kong Confederation of
Insurance Brokers and is required to maintain a minimum net asset value of
HK$0.1 million at all times. Another subsidiary of the Group is a Registered Fund
Management Company registered with the Monetary Authority of Singapore and
is required to maintain a minimum base capital requirement of SGD250,000 at all

times.

Al licensed corporations within the Group complied with their required liquid

capital during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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41.

Notes to Financial Statements

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the Continuous Net
Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and trade payables with HKSCC
and it intends to settle on a net basis as accounts receivable from or accounts
payable to the Stock Exchange. The net amount of CNS money obligations
receivable or payable with HKSCC and guarantee fund placed in HKSCC do not
meet the criteria for offsetting in the financial statements and the Group does not

intend to settle the balances on a net basis.

4].

Gross amount

of recognised

financial (assets)/

Gross amount liabilities offset

of recognised in the financial

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

EHCREERSRAE
AEBRAEARETMITRNEHE
EEAENRBEFIERR(BEFER
WORBERER 5 ENFR - WHERIFR
HEEDBRRLENBRARREE -
HEBEENREFRRINEERLE
NERMNFELERNBEEENREE
X FHERABRRABHROFE
AEETRFREREE ARG

Net amount Related
of financial ~ amounts not
liabilities  set off in the

reflected in  statement of

financial assets/ statements  the financial financial

(labilities) ~ RE B &K statements position

BRR  HE#ECER RUBER  HARYE
tREE/ SR(EE)/ EiMEM RAREHN Net
(BR)2E BE4R AEFE BHER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn ThR TEn AR

As at 31 December 2015 RZE-Z%+ZB=1-H

CNS money obligation receivable & F R EUER 971,846 (802,324) 169,522 — 169,522
CNS money obligation payable  FHEFBRKENEE (802,324) 802,324 — — —
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

41. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(continued)

4].

Gross amount

EHeHEERSRARD)

of recognised ~ Net amount Related

financial (assets)/ ~ offinancial ~ amounts not

Gross amount  liabilities offset liabilities  set off in the

of recognised  in the financial reflected in ~ statement of

financial assets/ statements the financial financial

(labilites) R TR statements position

WA EHCER  REBRR  HAREH
SREAE/ SR(EE)/ 2IMER MRREHD Net
(BR)EE AERRE AEFE L e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEL TAL BT TR TAT

As at 31 December 2014 R=Z-DmF+=A=t+-H

CNS money obligation receivable & F BRI EUER | 462,105 (1462,105) — — —
CNS money obligation payable & FERMEME (1679,114) 1,462,105 (217,009) — (217,009)

The “net amounts of financial assets reflected in the financial statements”, as set

out above, is included in “accounts receivable and accounts payable arising from

brokerage — the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses” in notes 18 and 24

respectively.
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42.

Notes to Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 42.

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

PR R IR

31 December 2015
ZF-AFFZA=+—H

AR B HMRR R
BRARDRREEHROMBARAKA
BROT

2015 2014
“2-1f C—T@HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REMEAT 5,363,854 3,344,165
Current assets M)A E
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRRE - B1E KA EKKE 7,689 4299
Due from subsidiaries JEAR BB A R FE 3,380,287 2918447
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHeEEY 14,673 40,497
Total current assets RBEEAR 3,402,649 2963243
Current liabilities RBAE
Accounts payable JERTRIE (12,047) —
Accrued liabilities fE5T R (2,625) (849)
Debt securities in issue EBEITNERE S (2,358,088) (171,123)
— At amortised cost —RE AR (429,040) (171,123)
— Designated as at fair value through profit or loss —EERATEFABR (1,929,048) —
Total current liabilities RBAEAR (2,372,760) (171,972)
Net current assets RBEERE 1,029,889 2,791,271
Total assets less current liabilities and net assets BEERRBEGREERE 6,393,743 6,135436
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B RS M

31 December 2015
ZE-RFETZA=T—AH
42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 4). ADPTMBERRERE)
(continued)
2015 2014
—®2-Rf _—T-[@F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
Equity B
Share capital BB 6,001,378 5,849,210
Share-based compensation reserve PR AR RETER B
— Share option reserve (Note) — AR RE A (P EE) 44,469 63,696
— Share award reserve (Note) — Bfn BB A (BT e) 50,948 13,884
Shares held under the share award scheme (Note) R A 00 R =t 8l F 8 Bk fn (TR (199,643) (102,897)
Retained profits (Note) R (K1) 496,591 311,543
Total equity ERAE 6,393,743 6,135,436
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. QI Haiying
G]gr wgRLt
Director Director
EE EZ

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2015 ANNUAL REPORT



42.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R IR

31 December 2015
—E-mF{-A=t—A
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 4). ADPTMBERRERE)
(continued)
Note: MisE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: NRIEEBRENT ¢
Share held
under the share
award scheme
Share option ~ Share award RERG Retained
reserve reserve HEHE profits Total
BRERE RORBREE SENRHG REBER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TERT
At | January 2015 R-ZE—h%—A—H 63,696 13,884 (102,897) 311,543 286,226
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENEAE
for the year = = = 702,666 702,666
Recognition of equity-settled share-  TERRIARE AT H LARR (D A&
based payments (Notes 31 and 32)  EEHEAIFTFR(FFE31 K. 32) 22,130 78,651 — — 100,781
Purchases of shares held underthe B8 EARIEAR (7 S2EDET 235 A
share award scheme (Note 33) AR 17 (A5 33) — — (119,897) — (119,897)
Vesting of shares for the share award X7 52 Bh=T ZI5R B AR (D
scheme (Notes 32 and 33) (BIFE32 233) — (41,587) 23,151 18,436 —
Shares issued upon exercise TR 8 T e Bk
of share options under the share BT m B THR M (HEE31)
option scheme (Note 31) (41,357) = = = (41,357)
Final dividend paid for 2014 INZE—MERMRE
(Note 10) (FiFzE10) — — — (296,787) (296,787)
Interim dividend paid for 2015 INZE-—AFRHERE
(Note 10) (PzE 10) - - — (239,267) (239,267)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-—hF+-A=+—H 44,469 50,948 (199,643) 496,591 392,365
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31 December 2015
ZE-AF+ZA=1—H

42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Note: (continued)

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

42.

AREHMBMRREK(E)

BiteE : (&

DAlFEHRENT :

Share held
under the share

award scheme

Share option Share award IR Retained
reserve reserve RENETE profits Total
BRERE RORBRE  SEORD REEN w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TER TAT TET
Balance at | January 2014 RZZ-ME—A—B&R 39,998 9,054 (56,702) 236,003 228353
Total comprehensive income FATHIGAHE = = = 462,080 462,080
for the year
Recognition of equity-settled share-  FERRIARE RS 5 AR 17 A ELTE 32,685 31,052 — — 63,737
based payments (Notes 31 and 32) ~ E9TRR(FiE31 & 32)
Purchases of shares held under the BB IRIRAR (7 22B)H 845 B — — (66,868) — (66,868)
share award scheme (Note 33) H9 R (P EE33)
Vesting of shares for the share award %7 22 Bh 51 315 B AR (D — (26222 20673 5,549 —
scheme (Notes 32 and 33) (P332 % 33)
Shares issued upon exercise of AR AT 21 T R0 BB AR (8987) — — — (8987)
share options under the share BT MBEITARG (PHEE31)
option scheme (Note 31)
Final dividend paid for 2013 IRN—T—=FRERE — — — (242,796) (242.796)
(Note 10) (F#E 10)
Interim dividend paid XN ZE—MEREHRE = = — (149,293) (149,293)
for 2014 (Note 10) (PtzE 10)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—NF+=-A=+—H 63,696 13,884 (102,897) 311,543 286,226
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